% o

N

YORK

CEITY QF

COUNCIL

N

/

Notice of a public meeting of

To:

Planning Committee A

Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fisher (Vice-Chair), Ayre,
J Burton, Clarke, Cullwick, Melly, Steward, Whitcroft,
Wann and Moroney

Date: Thursday, 24 October 2024

Time: 4.30 pm

Venue: West Offices

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence
To receive and note apologies for absence.

Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 2)
At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are
asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on
this agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the
Register of Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of
the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it
becomes apparent to the member during the meeting.

[Please see attached sheet for further guidance for Members].
Minutes (Pages 3 - 26)

To approve and sign the minutes of the Planning Committee A
meetings held on 1 August 2024 and 5 September 2024.



Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines are set as 2
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at our meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on 22 October
2024.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the
registration form or the meeting, please contact Democratic
Services. Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will
be webcast including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

During coronavirus, we made some changes to how we ran
council meetings, including facilitating remote participation by
public speakers. See our updates
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for more information on
meetings and decisions.

Plans List
This item invites Members to determine the following planning
applications:

Site of 19 to 33 Coney Street, York (Pages 27 - 128)
[22/02525/FULM]

Redevelopment of 19 to 33 Coney Street, land to rear of 35 to 37
Coney Street and 39 Coney Street to 2 Spurriergate comprising
conversion of retained buildings and new build elements of 3 to 6
storeys to create commercial/business/service floorspace (use class
E), purpose-built student accommodation (sui generis) and public


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy

realm works including riverside walkway, landscaping and access
further to partial demolition of buildings [Guildhall Ward]

Site of 19 to 33 Coney Street, York (Pages 129 - 148)
[22/02526/LBC]

Internal and external alterations associated with the redevelopment of
19 to 33 Coney Street and 39 Coney Street to 2 Spurriergate (involving
conversion and new build elements) following full and partial demolition
of buildings [Guildhall Ward]

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.



Democracy Officer:

Angela Bielby

Contact details:

e Telephone: (01904) 55 2599
e Email: a.bielby@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:
o Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

Alternative formats

If you require this document in an alternative language or format (e.g. large
print, braille, Audio, BSL or Easy Read) you can:

Email us at; cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk

Call us: 01904 551550 and customer services will pass your
request onto the Access Team.

g Use our BSL Video Relay Service: _
www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService o ..}1
Select ‘Switchboard’ from the menu. o o
@l e ! We can also translate into the following languages:
Y MR MNESRHMEEESS (Cantonese)

g3 U7 AIF IS S (7Tl (TS It | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (olist)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)

G D G T, (Urdu)



mailto:cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk
http://www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService

(1)

Page 1

Declarations of Interest — guidance for Members

Members must consider their interests, and act according to the

following:

Type of Interest

You must

Interests

Disclosable Pecuniary

Disclose the interest, not participate
in the discussion or vote, and leave
the meeting unless you have a
dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

Disclose the interest; speak on the
item only if the public are also
allowed to speak, but otherwise not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Affects)
OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Affects)

Disclose the interest; remain in the
meeting, participate and vote unless
the matter affects the financial
interest or well-being:

(a) to a greater extent than it affects
the financial interest or well-being of
a majority of inhabitants of the
affected ward; and

(b) a reasonable member of the
public knowing all the facts would
believe that it would affect your view
of the wider public interest.

In which case, speak on the item
only if the public are also allowed to
speak, but otherwise do not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Agenda Item 2

(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or
their spouse/partner.

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations,



Page 2

and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992.



Page 3 Agenda Item 3

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee A

Date 1 August 2024

Present Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fisher (Vice-

Chair), J Burton, Cullwick, Melly, Steward,
Whitcroft, Moroney, Rose (Substitute for Clir
Clarke) and Fenton (Substitute for Clir Ayre)

Apologies Councillors Ayre, Clarke, Wann, and Whitcroft
Officers in Gareth Arnold — Development Manager
attendance Ruhina Choudhury — Senior Lawyer

Natalie Ramadhin — Development
Management Officer

107. Declarations of Interest (2:09pm)

Members were asked to declare at this point in the meeting any
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they might
have in respect of business on the agenda if they had not already
done so in advance on the Register of Interests. None were declared.

108. Public Participation (2:09pm)

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general
matters within the remit of the Planning Committee A.

109. Plans List (2:09pm)

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of Planning
and Development, relating to the following planning applications,
outlining the proposals and relevant policy considerations and setting
out the views of consultees and officers.



Page 4

110. Land Lying to the South Of Hull Road Heslington, York
[15/00166/FULM]

Members considered a major full application for the erection of a
residential development of 153 dwellings with access, landscaping,
highways, open space and associated infrastructure and Outline
planning permission for 9 self and custom build plots in Hull Road
Ward.

The Development Manager gave a presentation on the application
and outlined that the application was not within the green belt.

In response to questions from members, the Development Manager
confirmed that:

e The development was surrounded on all sides with urban
development and as such Officers subscribed to the view following
consultation with the Local Plan that this was not within the green
belt.

e Page 54, paragraph 24(b) of the report detailed a shared cyclist-
pedestrian footpath which had not yet been built.

Members were provided with an update concerning Gypsy and
Traveller pitches, in that:

) Additional consultation responses had been received from
Strategic Planning Policy regarding offsite contributions for
Gypsy and Traveller pitches.

i)  York Traveller Trust had submitted documentation questioning
why Gypsy and Traveller provision could not be provided on-
site.

lii)  Additional information had been received from Persimmon
Homes regarding an off-site search for Gypsy and Traveller
pitches.

Members were provided with an update to the Committee Report,
and it was confirmed that:

) Concerning paragraph 5.18 of the report, the figure of 30% was
a minimum amount, and following consultation with the
developer this figure could increase up to 50%.

i)  Concerning paragraph 5.43 of the report, consultation had now
taken place with the developer to install a signalised crossing
on Field Lane, which would increase the cost of crossing
contributions by £150,000, to a total of £450,000.



Page 5

i)  The University of York had withdrawn their land available for
Woodland Planting, and that the developer had since sourced
alternate land for this.

Public Speakers

Geoff Beacon spoke in objection to the application on that in order for
City of York Council (CYC) to meet the aims of Net Zero by 2030
developments like these could not go ahead. He stated that this
development went against national government policy due to the
increase in emissions from more cars encouraged by each dwelling
having two parking spaces.

Andrew Mortimer spoke in support of the application and
recommended the implementation of a condition to remove
developmental rights to convert dwellings to HMOs (Houses in
Multiple Occupation) He also recommended the creation of a safe
crossing from the development across both Field Lane and Hull
Road. Andrew commented on the uncontrolled parking within the
development, and stated concerns that this would lead to university
visitors using the parking spaces.

Ben Ffrench spoke in objection to the application and stated that the
development did not fulfil the local need for affordable houses. He
also commented on the need for houses on the development to be
energy efficient and for protections against dwellings being converted
to HMOs, in response the Chair noted that all dwellings would be built
to C3 use and that authorisation would be required for a dwelling to
be converted to a HMO.

Abbie North spoke in objection to the application on behalf of York
Travellers Trust. She stated that they had no objection to the
development of affordable family homes, but objected to the lack of
onsite provisions of traveller pitches, she highlighted that this was not
in line with policy H5 of CYC’s Local Plan.

Karen Madison spoke to the committee on behalf of the University of
York and expressed that they would like to withdraw their objection to
the application.

Graham Whiteford (the Applicant) spoke in support of the application
and noted that the development was to include 9 self/custom build
dwellings.



Page 6

In response to questions from members, Graham confirmed that:

He was not against the development forming a residents parking
scheme if residents saw this as necessary.

It was possible for parking spaces around the development to be
attributed as disabled parking if needed.

The development was looking to reduce emissions even more
than stipulated in the Council Plan.

Wheelchair accessible houses covered a variety of homes styles.
Unless it was adopted by CYC, there would be an annual fee to a
management company by residents for the upkeep of the
development.

Private shared driveways would not be upkept by the management
company as these would only be used for access, and were not
through roads for pedestrians.

Officers then answered further questions from Members, and it was
confirmed that:

Policy H5 was in a consultation process during the time of the
meeting and therefore it was not possible to implement this policy
to its’ full effect. This application was compliant with the relevant
H5 policy in the Local Plan 2018, which has since been tightened
up prior to going out for consultation.

The three-metre path to Bishop Holgate School was an
unsegregated shared use pathway.

This development complied with providing sufficient space for
houses to have room for waste and recycling.

Parking regulations could be added post development as part of
the adoption process by the LA.

A conditions had been added to require planning permission to
convert C3 dwellings to C4.

The target of a 10% reduction in single occupancy vehicle trips,
detailed in paragraph 5.44 of the report, was a reasonable target,
and what around what would usually be expected.

The Self and Custom Build Housing Plots Marketing Strategy
dated June 2024 was a standard document which helped to
secure, finalise, and finish self-build plots.



Page 7

The Development Management Officer issues a correction to the
report, in that Condition 14, on page 51 of the agenda, should have
read:

o “... If within the lifetime of development, any tree, hedge or shrubs
are felled, removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, or becomes, in
the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, seriously damaged,
diseased or defective, it/they shall be replaced by planting as
originally approved, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its
written approval to any variation. This replacement planting shall
be undertaken before the end of the first available planting season
(October to March inclusive for bare root plants), following the
removal, uprooting, destruction or death of the original trees or
plants”.

Councillor Melly proposed an amendment to the recommendations to
amend paragraph 19 of the Committee Report to reflect access
iIssues on adopted and non-adopted highways, and to include an
additional informative regarding short-term letting accommodation
and the use of c3 accommodation, this was seconded by the Chair
and it was resolved:

That delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning and
Development Services to APPROVE the application subject to:

I The completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure the
following planning obligations:

e Affordable housing 49no. dwellings (secured through 13no.
First Homes and 36no. Social Rent) and the mechanisms
and frameworks by which they are delivered and
transferred to a registered provider.

e  Self-build housing 9no. Self-Build Plots and the
mechanisms for marketing and delivery.

e Education £1,480,168 — off-site secondary, early years and
SEND contributions.

e Gypsy and Travellers £300,000 for off-site provision of two
pitches.

e Healthcare £165,259 towards offsite provision.

e Sports £47,747 towards off site provision.

e Highways/Transport £450,000 — signalised pedestrian
crossings. £16,000 - passenger information displays on the
existing ‘Deramore Drive’ bus stop flags on Field Lane
£10,000 - bus stop shelters at the existing ‘Deramore
Drive’ bus stops on Field Lane A contribution to be paid
after 5 years after first occupation if 5-year travel plan



Page 8

targets are not met. Cycle tracks/pedestrian footway on
Hull Road connecting to western and eastern footways
outside of the site. Improvements to an existing footway on
Hull Road up to Pinelands Way. New bus stop and layby
on Hull Road and improvements to existing bus stops on
Field Lane.

e Ecology 700sg.m. of woodland planting

e Planning obligation monitoring fee to ensure the Planning
Obligations are fulfilled.

1 The Head of Planning and Development Services be given
delegated authority to finalise the terms and details of the
Section 106 Agreement.

lii.  The Head of Planning and Development Services be given
delegated authority to determine the final detail of the schedule
of planning conditions.

Clir J Crawshaw, Chair
[The meeting started at 2.06 pm and finished at 4.39 pm].



Page 9

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee A

Date 1 August 2024

Present Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fisher (Vice-

Chair), J Burton, Cullwick, Melly, Steward,
Whitcroft [until 7:54pm], Moroney, Fenton
(Substitute for ClIr Ayre), Rose (Substitute for
ClIr Clarke), and Vassie (Substitute for ClIr

Wann)
Apologies Councillors Ayre, Clarke, and Wann
Officers in Gareth Arnold — Development Manager
attendance Jonathan Kenyon — Principal Officer

Development Management
Ruhina Choudhury — Senior Lawyer

111. Declarations of Interest (5:01pm)

Members were asked to declare at this point in the meeting any
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they might
have in respect of business on the agenda if they had not already
done so in advance on the Register of Interests. None were declared.

112. Public Participation (5:02pm)

It was reported that there had been one registration to speak at the
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general
matters within the remit of the Planning Committee A.

Gwen Swinburn commented on the planning application process and
guestioned why names and addresses were published online in
relation to this, she also expressed that information within reports
should not be amended once published.

The Committee noted that Councillor Pavlovic, Executive Member for
Housing, Planning and Safer Communities, was investigating the
issues raised with Officers.



Page 10

113. Plans List (5:06pm)

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of Planning
and Development, relating to the following planning applications,
outlining the proposals and relevant policy considerations and setting
out the views of consultees and officers.

2a) The Retreat, 107 Heslington Road, York YO10 5BN
[22/02257/FULM]

Members considered a major full application for conversion and
redevelopment to provide 120 dwellings and ancillary communal
space, including new build dwellings, the demolition of modern
extensions and ancillary building and associated car parking,
landscaping, and other works.

The Development Manager gave a presentation on the application
and outlined that the application included a mixture of listed and
unlisted buildings.

The Development Manager, and Principal Officer, Development
Management, noted that roof terraces and balconies to be introduced
to the South West Wing building had been proposed for suitable
places and had been chosen carefully, and that development of new-
build housing included 23 dwellings, including 5 houses which were
larger. The listed coach house building was to be converted for some
of these.

In response to questions from members, the Development Manager
confirmed that:

¢ As Heslington Road narrowed, there would be conditions applied
by Highways creating a priority system, and the main entrance to
Heslington Road was outside of the site.

e There was no noticeable reduction in grass spaces across the site,
and there was to be a variety of cycle storage spaces, including
some shared-use cycle storage when basement storage was not
possible.

e There would be no change to the public’'s access to the burial
grounds, and public access would be possible across Thief Road
and Heslington Road.

e Conditions within the plans regulated the requirement of disabled
parking. The plans stipulated 30 parking spaces for visitors.



Page 11

Members were provided with an update in which the Principal Officer
Development Management amended the officers’ recommendations
by including a condition to make sure that the results from an
arborical culture survey, requiring tree protection and detailing
information of nesting birds during construction, were adhered to.

Public Speakers

Geoff Beacon spoke in objection to the application and suggested
that the proposed dwellings were only directed at affluent people, and
he raised concerns that the application did not adhere to the Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which placed an obligation on
Local Authorities to plan for sustainable development.

Martin Ford spoke in support of the application on behalf of the
Trustees of the Retreat and stated that the retreat provided mental
health services, but that the buildings were too old to deliver the care
that they needed to offer, and needed a new use. He reported that
the Retreat had experienced financial losses, and that the sale of the
land would provide security for the future of the charity.

In response to questions from members, Martin stated that the
Retreat had confidence in the new development to champion the
history of the charity following construction.

Richard Lawrence and James Woodmansee (the Applicant) spoke in
support of the application and stated that the designs of the
development had been made in consultation with Council Officers
and different interest groups, and that their finances had been
assessed as suitable to dealing with the upkeep of land. He
highlighted that the process to get this far had been very thorough to
ensure high standards for the conversion of the premises, and that
they had converted historic buildings in the past.

In response to questions from members, Richard and James stated
that:

e The developers wished to create a limited access heritage trail to
promote the history of the site and to maintain public safety.

e The Quakers would have contractual, unlimited access to the
burial grounds.

e There would be 220 external parking spaces, including wheelchair
spaces. Smaller properties would have one parking space, with
larger properties having 2 spaces.



Page 12

Investigations were ongoing regarding the possibility of laying
conductive charging for electric vehicles (EVSs).

The installation of PV solar panels was a possibility on site where
necessary and appropriate, the developers were working with
Historic England in regard to this.

There could be the possibility of upgrading some windows to
improve insulation, but investigations were needed to explore this
due to the historical significance of the windows in the buildings.
Upon access to the site, the gates would open inwards to give
priority to bicycles and to slow down bigger vehicles.

The cricket pitch would remain as it is in order to maintain the
history of the site, but would not be open to the public in order to
maintain the tranquillity of the burial ground.

Members then asked officers a number of questions to which they
responded that:

The money available for offsite improvements needed to be spent
within 15 minutes from the site.

Section 39 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
required Local Authorities to exercise the function with the
objective of contributing to the achievement of sustainable
development, this requirement was related to planning policy. The
sustainability assessment was carried out in relation to the Local
Plan and in making planning decisions officers had regard to the
Development Plan. Officers considered those policies developed
in accordance with the relevant legislation.

The applicants had engaged with Historic England and there was
an agreement for the demolition and restoration of the central
building as much as possible.

Councillor Rose proposed an amendment to paragraph 16 of the
report to include an additional condition to support the environmental
performance of the listed building, this was seconded by Councillor
Fisher, and it was resolved:

That delegated authority to be given to the Head of Planning and
Development Services to:

)

Determine the final detail of the planning conditions, with the
inclusion of additional conditions regarding tree protection and
an informative regarding nesting birds as set out in the officer’s
update, and an additional condition as proposed by Councillor
Rose and seconded by Councillor Fisher regarding the
environmental performance of the listed building.



Page 13

Refer the application to the Secretary of State for Communities
and Local Application Government under the requirements of
Section 77 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, and
should the application not be called in by the Secretary of State,
then APPROVE the application subject to planning conditions
and completion of a s106 legal agreement to secure the items
listed below.

Affordable housing: Off-site contribution equivalent to three
dwellings of £1,446,802 - in respect of tree protection and
informative on nesting birds.

Education - Contributions towards school places £875,412.
Sustainable travel - £48,000 to be committed towards
implementation of the travel plan. To include a budget of
£24,000 towards car club membership and drive time for first
occupants.

Off-site-Sports - £70,077 towards facilities within a 15-minute
walk of the site.

Healthcare - To fund expansions to capacity at either Park View
or Tang Hall Lane surgery or an alternative specified facility
within a 1.5km distance of the site) - £112,826.

Retreat Gardens - A scheme to provide for limited public access
to the grounds and provision for ongoing maintenance of the
grounds.

Monitoring Fee - £7,800.

114. The Retreat, 107 Heslington Road, York YO10 5BN
[22/02258/LBC]

Members considered a Listed Building Consent application for
internal and external alterations to include conversion and
redevelopment of the site to provide dwellings and ancillary
communal space, demolition of modern extensions and ancillary
buildings, with associated landscaping works. It was resolved:

That delegated authority to be given to the Head of Planning and
Development Services to:

)
i)

Determine the final detail of the planning conditions and
planning obligations below.

Refer the application to the Secretary of State for Communities
and Local Application Government under the requirements of
Section 77 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, and
should the application not be called in by the Secretary of State,
then APPROVE the application subject to planning conditions.



Page 14

[The meeting adjourned from 7:44pm until 7:54pm]

115. Development Site Hospital Fields Road And Ordnance
Lane. York [24/00221/FULM]

Members considered a Major Full Application for the Demolition of
existing buildings, alterations to 'The Married Quarters Building' and
erection of new buildings to provide 101 residential dwellings (Use
Class C3), 139 sgm of commercial, business and service floorspace
(Use Class E) and 150 sgm of community floorspace (Use Class
F1/F2) with associated open space, landscaping, access, parking and
ancillary development.

The Development Manager gave a presentation on the application,
and it was reported that: Block 6 of the application had been omitted,
and that access for bin lorries had been improved in order to allow bin
lorry access throughout the development.

In response to questions from members, the Development Manager
confirmed that bin lorries would need to drive through the gates along
the roads one by one, and gated areas could act as turning points.

Members were provided with an update in which the Principal Officer
Development Management advised that changes to the
recommendations had been made following legal advice, it was
proposed that references to money from conditions: 4, 21, and 23 be
removed. It was also proposed that condition 14 be amended in so
far that they are redrafted to align with advice received from Ecology
Officers, and that condition 22 be amended to correct admin errors in
the original wording that was used.

Public Speakers

Denise Craghill spoke in support of the application and stated that
this application was proposed to go beyond low energy use buildings,
and made low-carbon living possible. She advised that the highest
number of new build dwellings as possible should be affordable
homes.

Councillor Whitcroft, councillor for Fishergate Ward, spoke in support
of this application and stated that the proposed dwellings would
support nearby local services, and that having 80%-100% of the
homes affordable was a step in the right direction for City of York
Council.



Page 15

The Chair exercised his discretion to allow Geoff Beacon to speak as
Mr. Beacon had not been included on the registered speakers list due
to an administrative error. He spoke in support of the application and
stated that efforts to control car parking would result in lower car use,
and support decarbonisation.

Sophie Round, Housing Delivery Programme Manager, spoke in
support of the application on behalf of City of York Council (the
Applicant). She stated that this application was an amended proposal
to an application that had already been approved. She advised that
people were prioritised above cars in this application and that more
than 300 cycle spaces were included within the proposal.

In response to questions from members, Sophie confirmed that:

¢ |nvestigations were ongoing to decide if a micro residents’ parking
scheme would work on this scale.

e Bollards would deter drivers from proceeding up the road to places
they could not access.

¢ Results from community consultation showed there was a lack of
community centres in the area, and investigations were ongoing to
consider how these could operate.

e The development would be a mixture of affordable and shared
ownership homes.

¢ As the development would not be on an adopted highway, there
would be more leeway in allocating accessible spaces and blue
badges.

e Low carbon and low car ownership was a priority for the
development.

Members then asked officers a number of questions to which they
responded that:

e The application was made prior to the introduction of legislation to
require 10% Biodiversity Net Gain, and as such this requirement
was not applicable.

e There was no space to include sports provision on the
development, and as such this had to be delivered off-site.

e Further investigations would be needed to implement more on-
street charging spaces for EVs.



Page 16

Councillor Vassie proposed to accept the officers’ recommendations
and the amendments included within the officers’ update, this was
seconded by Councillor Steward, and it was resolved:

That delegated authority to be given to the Head of Planning and
Development Services to:

) Determine the final detail of the planning conditions and
planning obligations, with the inclusion of the amendments
proposed by Councillor Vassie and seconded by Councillor
Steward below:

e That references to money from conditions: 4, 21, and 23 be
removed.

e That condition 14 be redrafted to align with advice received
from Ecology Officers.

e That condition 22 be amended to correct admin errors in the
original wording that was used in the report.

i) Refer the application to the Secretary of State for Communities
and Local Application Government under the requirements of
Section 77 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, and
should the application not be called in by the Secretary of State,
then APPROVE the application subject to planning conditions.

Cllr J Crawshaw, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.58 pm and finished at 9.17 pm].



Page 17

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee A

Date 5 September 2024

Present Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fisher (Vice-Chair),

Ayre, J Burton, Clarke, Cullwick, Fenton (Substitute
for Clir Wann), Melly, Rowley (Substitute for Clir
Steward). Whitcroft and Moroney

In Attendance Becky Eades — Head of Planning and Development
Services
Jonathan Kenyon — Principal Officer Development
Management

Erik Matthews— Development Management Officer
Sandra Branigan — Senior Lawyer

Apologies Councillors Steward and Wann

117. Declarations of Interest (4.37pm)

Members were asked to declare at this point in the meeting any disclosable
pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they might have in respect
of business on the agenda, if they had not already done so in advance on
the Register of Interests. There were none.

118. Minutes (4.37pm)

Resolved: That the minutes of the last meeting held on 22 July 2024 were
approved as a correct record subject to the following changes:
e The second paragraph before the resolution for the York

Central application [23/02255/REMM] being amended to:
Cllr Fenton moved the Officer recommendation to delegate
authority to the Head of Development of Services to
determine the final detail of the planning conditions below
then approve the application subject to planning conditions
listed in the report and amended Condition 6 to reflect the
retention of 8 Blue Badge places in perpetuity in Plot F2 and
to review those in Plot F1B as per the original wording of
Condition 6, and an additional informative for consistent
approach to tactile paving. This was seconded by ClIr
Cullwick.



Page 18

e Under public speakers for the York Central application
[23/02255/REMM] the sixth bullet point under David
Sweetings submission to begin ‘The use of the facades for
bird boxes’

119. Public Participation (4.39pm)

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the meeting
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general matters within
the remit of the Planning Committee A.

120. Plans List (4.39pm)

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of Planning and
Development, relating to the following planning applications, outlining the
proposals and relevant policy considerations and setting out the views of
consultees and officers.

121. Land to the south of New Farm, Lords Lane, Nether Poppleton
Report [23/02254/FULM] (4.39pm)

Members considered a major full application from Mark Wood for the
Installation of a solar farm with associated infrastructure, access, security
fencing and landscaping on land to the south of New Farm, Lords Lane,
Nether Poppleton, York.

The Head of Planning and Development Services outlined and gave a
presentation on the application. In response to a Member question she
showed the site of the clay extraction site, to the south of the site.

Members were provided with an update noting that the applicant had
agreed to the upgrading of passing places on Newlands Lane between its
junction with the A59 and Lord’s Lane. This had been amended in
Conditions 19 and 20. Members were advised that there was an
amendment to condition 14 to refer to an updated Construction Traffic
Management Plan (CTMP). Clarification was given on the terminology EIA
development, and it was confirmed that there had been additional
representation from a local property expressing concern in respect of Area
A of the proposal. He was asked by a Member where the passing places
on Newlands Lane between its junction with the A59 and Lord’s Lane were
on the site layout.



Page 19

Public Speakers

Geoff Beacon spoke on the application regarding car provision and the
green belt. He cited research on the green belt.

Scott Johnson spoke in support of the application on behalf of the
applicant. He detailed the assessment of the site and engagement with the
landowners of the site. He explained that the land was flat and was
screened by hedgerows. He noted Poppleton Parish Council’s input into
the plans and that public consultation had been carried out. He added that
the applicant had engaged with Newlands Farm. He added that the solar
farm would have a net benefit to wildlife and noted the key benefits of the
supply of clean energy. In response to Member questions Scott Johnson
explained that:

e There was 32.6 megawatts at peak power. He noted that peak power
was close to export power.

e |t was necessary to decommission the solar farm after 30 years due to
the uncertainties in technology and solar technology.

o Officers were then asked and explained the passing places for
construction traffic and they confirmed that the impact on the Public
Right of Way (PROW) network would be during the construction of the
solar farm.

Following debate, Clir Fisher moved the Officer recommendation to
approve the application after referral to the Secretary of State and subject
to the conditions listed in the report and amendment to conditions 14, 19
and 20. This was seconded by ClIr Fenton. Following a unanimous vote in
favour it was:

Resolved: That the application be given approval after referral to the
Secretary of State subject to the conditions listed in the report
and amendment to conditions 14, 19 and 20:

Condition 14
Updated Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP).

Condition 19

The development hereby permitted shall not come into use until
the following highway works (which definition shall include
works associated with any Traffic Regulation Order required as
a result of the development, signing, lighting, drainage and
other related works) have been carried out in accordance with
details which shall have been previously submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, or
arrangements entered into which ensure the same.




Reasons:

Page 20

Upgrading of passing places on Newlands Lane between its
junction with the A59 and Lord’s Lane

Such scheme shall specify:

1) Dimensions,

i) Surfacing,

i) Provision for maintenance,

Iv) Sighage

The upgraded passing places shall be retained and maintained
for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: In the interests of the safe and free passage of
highway users.

Condition 20

The development hereby permitted shall not be undertaken
beyond site layout works until a scheme to assess the need for
additional passing places on Newlands Lane and Common
Croft Lane has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Should the scheme identify
additional spaces the following information shall be submitted:
1) Dimensions,

i) Surfacing,

i) Provision for maintenance,

Iv) Sighage

v) Programme for implementation

Any agreed additional passing places shall then be provided,
retained and maintained for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: In the interests of the safe and free passage of
highway users.

The proposal for the construction of a solar farm to produce
32.6 MW of electricity per annum over a 55.9-hectare site in two
portions lying to the northwest of Nether Poppleton village is
acknowledged to be inappropriate development within the
Green Belt. However, subject to appropriate conditions the
proposal is felt to be acceptable in terms of flood risk and
drainage, biodiversity, loss of agricultural land, landscape
Impact and transportation and access. It is felt that the clear
environmental benefits when put in the context of the declared
climate emergency, of generation of a significant quantity of
renewable energy clearly outweighs the harm to the Green Belt
and the localised harm to the adjoining landscape character.



Page 21

The proposal is therefore felt to be acceptable in planning terms
and approval is recommended following referral to the
Secretary of State, on the basis that it falls within the thresholds
in respect of development in the Green Belt contained within
the 2024 Town and Country Planning (Consultation) England
Direction.

122. Huntington South Moor, New Lane, Huntington, York
[24/00282/REMM] (5.05pm)

Members considered a reserved matters application from Barratt David
Wilson Homes for the layout, scale, appearance, landscaping and access
of 280 dwellings and associated infrastructure following outline planning
permission 21/00305/0UTM at Huntington South Moor, New Lane,
Huntington, York.

The Head of Planning and Development Services outlined and gave a
presentation on the application. Members asked several questions to which
she explained that:

e Concerning the different colours of highways on the site plan, some cul-
de-sac areas had private drives which would be block paved (shown in
white). The pink areas showed where tarmac would be used.

¢ She showed where the water attenuation tank and play areas were.

e All car parking spaces were large enough for disabled parking and there
was visitor parking on the highway. It was explained where visitor
parking was scattered around the site.

Public Speakers

Yann Golanski, a local resident, spoke in objection to the application. He
explained that the applicant had a lack of concern to the residents of
Sadlers and Forge Closes. He noted that there had been a lack of
consultation and he explained his concerns about the impact of the scheme
on levels of light and wildlife.

Geoff Beacon spoke on the application regarding car provision and the

green belt. He suggested that most new residents would be affluent and
there would be a high level of car emissions. He noted that the scheme

was against the NPPF and the carbon emissions expected could not be
considered sustainable.

Liam Tate spoke in support of the application on behalf of the applicant. He
noted that consultees had provided feedback into the proposal and he
explained public engagement during consultation. He explained that the
scheme included 30% affordable housing and provided substantial open



Page 22

space. He added that the scheme would made a S106 contribution of
£3.6million. In response to Member questions he explained that:

Regarding the integrity of the hedgerow at the cemetery the applicant
would be meeting with the cemetery committee. He added that there
was a play area to the east of the cemetery and there would be a 6m
high security fence on the boundary to the cemetery.

The two play areas were not restricted to age ranges and they would
have a range of equipment for a wider group of children. It was
explained that a play area had moved after discussion with the owner of
Huntington Grange.

The location of the benches on the site was explained.

[At this point the Head of Planning and Development Services was
asked and confirmed that car parking was a material planning
consideration].

There was a requirement to provide a number of parking spaces per
dwelling.

The site was a sustainable site with public transport links.

All the houses had Electric Vehicle (EV) charging.

The safeguards in place for the protection of trees. He added that the
applicant could look at covenants in relation to the trees at the point of
sale of the properties.

What the different highway colours on the site plan showed. It was noted
that the materials were yet to be agreed.

The applicant had met with Ward Councillors, the Cemetery Committee,
and the owners of Huntington Grange and they would continue to meet
with them.

There would be a site manager and site office on site where complaints
could be lodged, and the complaints procedure was in the construction
method statement.

Regarding whether the carbon footprint would be reduced, the
properties would be built to building regulations and there would be solar
panels and EV charging points.

There would be management fees and each property would be charged
a proportion of ground rent.

The fees to residents would be agreed later down the line.

[The meeting adjourned from 5.48pm until 5.58pm]

In response to questions from Members, officers explained that:

The council would not collect waste from unadopted roads on new
schemes.

The extension of the cemetery was to the east boundary of the
cemetery.



Page 23

Regarding the protection of the cemetery boundary, there was a
wildflower meadow after the kick about area.

The addition of a condition regarding the adoption of roads would be
done at the outline planning stage.

The authority could not require a developer to adopt a road. The
application was progressing on the understanding that roads would be
adopted, apart from the private driveways. The developers would get the
roads to adoptable standards and bin wagons could only go down
adoptable roads.

[At this point the Senior Lawyer advised that the authority could not
require developers to have adoptable roads and Mr Tate had indicated
that the applicant would be offering the roads for adoption. The Head of
Planning and Development Services advised that the plans showed that
the roads would be built to an adopted standard].

The veteranising of trees related to the age of the tree. The veretanised
tree would not be impacted by the development and it was understood
that the tree would be subject to a Tree Preservation Order (TPO).
Expectations around a complaints policy could be made clear in the
construction management plan which was included in the outline
planning permission.

Afforable housing was looked at in the context of local housing needs
assessment and it showed a need for more one and two bedroom
properties. The evidence also showed a need for more social rent
properties.

The council landscape management team was aware of the TPO
assessment.

The site could not contribute to the traveller community as it was part of
the outline planning permission.

Regarding the timeframe for the road to be adopted there was a phasing
plan and adoption would usually come at the end of this.

Asked if maintenance fees could be conditioned, the Senior Lawyer
advised that the level of management fees was not a planning
consideration.

Access to the site was included in the outline planning permission and
the construction management plan would come through the discharge of
conditions. If there was a technical highway issue this would be
discussed with the developers. [At this point the Senior Lawyer
reminded Members that they could only consider reserved matters].
Regarding what car parking policies could be taken into account, there
wasn’t specific local guidance and the NPPF would be referred to and
was explained to Members. It was noted that most houses on the site
would have one car parking space and the carparking layout was
standard to the location.



Page 24

e The separation distances between Forge and Sadlers Closes was 2m.
The hedgerow at the back of them was not consistent and there was
variable boundary treatments for which the outline planning permission
had not set any parameters.

During debate it was confirmed that there could be an informative regarding
communication. Clir Rowley proposed the officer recommendation to
approve the application with an amendment to condition 4 regarding the
landscaping near the cemetery, and the wording of informative 1 regarding
the construction management plan delegated to the Head of Planning and
Development Services. This was seconded by Clir Melly. Following a vote
with ten voting in favour and one abstention it was:

Resolved: That the application be approved subject to the conditions listed
in the report, an amendment to condition 4 regarding the
landscaping near the cemetery, and the wording of informative
1 regarding the construction management plan delegated to the
Head of Planning and Development Services.

Reasons:

1. The proposed layout adheres to the parameter plans
approved at outline planning permission stage. The layout
design promotes active travel and health and wellbeing by
virtue of its infrastructure for walking and cycling and the
green infrastructure on site. The layout has distinctive
character and provides suitable levels of amenity for existing
and future residents. The mix of housing is appropriate,
considering identified local need. The scheme accords with
NPPF advice and the National Design Guide, in particular in
respect of place-making and the promotion of sustainable
and active travel. The scheme is also consistent with
relevant policies in the Neighbourhood Plan and the DLP
2018.

2. Conditions are deemed necessary in respect of the
landscaping and the layout, to approve detailed design in
respect of boundary treatment, play equipment, planting plan
(including stock sizes) and to secure the agreed types of
crossings over New Lane. Other matters are already dealt
with in the outline permission.

Cllr J Crawshaw, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 7.00 pm].



Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27 Agenda Item 5a
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 24 October 2024 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 22/02525/FULM

Application at: Site Of 19 To 33 Coney Street York

For: Redevelopment of 19 to 33 Coney Street, land to rear of 35 to 37

Coney Street and 39 Coney Street to 2 Spurriergate comprising
conversion of retained buildings and new build elements of 3 to 6
storeys to create commercial/business/service floorspace (use
class E), purpose-built student accommodation (sui generis) and
public realm works including riverside walkway, landscaping and
access further to partial demolition of buildings

By: Helmsley Securities Limited
Application Type: Major Full Application
Target Date: 29 September 2023

Recommendation: Approve subject to Secretary of State Decision

1.0 PROPOSAL

The site

1.1 This application relates to a number of existing properties in Coney Street,
namely 19-33 Coney Street and 39-43 Coney Street / 2 Spurriergate which also
backs on to the river Ouse (referred to as Zone 2, 3 and 4). There is a separate
application for Zone 1 pending recommendation.

1.2 Coney Street is a historic location within York as a hub for trade and
commerce and it provides primary retail frontages within the city centre (defined as a
primary shopping street in the Draft Local plan 2018). Zone 2 contains three retail
units and office/ancillary spaces for the retail uses. Zone 3 consists of five small to
medium sized retail units fronting onto Coney Street. Each plot has small, private
external space backing onto river and basement for storage. The majority of upper
floorspace is used as ancillary offices, storage and other ancillary retail functions.
Zone 4 comprises two larger retail units, with no external space. Upper floorspace is
utilised for retail and ancillary uses.

1.3 The site extends from Coney Street to the river Ouse and is composed of
narrow deep shaped plots with mostly retail uses. The site includes historically
Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 28

varied buildings which have been altered and extended piecemeal, with unattractive
and inactive frontage onto the riverfront. Many upper floors are vacant or provide ad
hoc storage for the retail premises. The river frontage character is irregular and
reflects back-of-house service area uses of Coney Street retalil.

1.4 Key designations that apply to the application site are set out below:

- Coney Street is identified as a primary retail frontage in the Draft Local Plan
2108.

- The site lies within the City Centre Area of Archaeological Importance (AAIl) and

- The site lies within the Central Historic Core Conservation Area (CA) — sub area
Main Shopping Area.

- The rear of the site is within flood zone 2 or 3 and the Coney Street frontage is in
flood zone 1.

1.5 The three zones within the application site comprises:

Zone 2 19 Coney Street - Building of Merit

Zone 3 21 Coney Street - Building of Merit
23 Coney Street - Grade Il Listed
25-27 Coney Street - Grade Il Listed
29 -31 Coney Street

33 Coney Street - Grade |l Listed

Zone 4 39 - 41 Coney Street - Grade Il Listed
43 Coney Street — 2 Spurriergate — identified as a detractor in
the Council’s CA appraisal.

1.6 There are properties between zones 3 and 4 outside the applicant’s ownership
which are not included in this application.

The Proposed Development

1.7 The proposal comprises the conversion of retained buildings, partial demolition
of buildings, and new build elements of 3 to 5 storeys to create -

- Commercial/business/service floorspace - 3,884 sqm GIA in 12 units.

- Purpose-built student accommodation (PBSA) — 358 bedrooms. The PBSA will
also comprise communal amenity space such as common rooms, lounges, a
cinema room, gym, yoga studio, quiet study rooms, café space and external
amenity space.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 29

- Access to the riverside from Coney Street/Spurriergate
- Public realm including Waterloo Place and a riverside walkway.
Zone 1 (not in this application)

Zone 2 (19 Coney Street)

- Retention and refurbishment of existing retail floorspace (circa 1,228 sqm GIA) at
ground floor.

- Rationalisation of the fenestration including improvements to the principal
elevation including shopfront alterations and student accommodation entrance
door in Coney Street.

- Conversion of the upper floors to create 85 student rooms.

- Creation of a rooftop amenity garden.

- Creation of public realm including a riverside walkway.

- Associated access, plant, bin and cycle stores.

Zone 3 (21-33 Coney Street)

- Demolition of 29-31 Coney Street (unlisted) and ‘modern’ rear extensions at Nos.
21, 23 (grade Il listed), 25 (grade Il listed), 33 (grade Il listed).

- Retention and refurbishment of existing retail floorspace (circa 784sgm) at
ground floor fronting Coney Street and conversion of upper floors for student
accommodation (c. 1094sgm GIA) at Nos. 21, 23 (grade Il listed), 25 (grade Il
listed), 33 (grade Il listed).

- A courtyard is provided at the rear of the retained buildings and a new block
ranging from 3-5 storey is created, fronting the riverside, with leisure uses at
ground floor and PBSA on the upper floors.

Zone 4 (39-43 Coney Street)

- Demolition of 43 Coney St (Boots) and rear section of 39-41 (WH Smith).

- Retail units facing Coney Street and Waterloo Place (658 sgm GIA)

- Leisure units on the riverside elevation (811 sgm GIA). Student rooms on the
upper floors. New build is 5-6 storey in height.

- Zone 4 also includes new public realm leading down to the river Waterloo Place
and a riverside walkway.

1.8 A phasing plan shows zones 2 and 3 delivered first, followed by phase 4.
1.9 Revisions through the process have involved the following:

- Reduction in scale and mass resulting in fewer student bedrooms reduced from
407 to 358.

- In Zone 3 the central riverside block (rear of 25 Coney St) reduces in scale by 2
storeys. Across the entirety of Zone 4, the top storey has been omitted.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 30

Whether EIA (Environmental Impact Assessment) development
1.10 The development is not regarded to be development that requires an EIA.

1.11 A relevant threshold in the regulations is met (over 150 dwellings) and
therefore the Council should determine whether the scheme is likely to have
significant effects on the environment. The possible significant effects in this case
relate to locational factors; the impact on archaeology, listed buildings and the
Central Historic Core Conservation Area.

1.12 National planning guidance (NPPG) advises only a very small proportion of
Schedule 2 development will require an EIA. To aid local planning authorities to
determine whether a project is likely to have significant environmental effects, the
NPPG includes a set of indicative thresholds and criteria. The scale of the
development is below those in the indicative screening thresholds. In terms of
archaeology the applicant has undertaken pre-application advice and site
investigation and monitoring to aid in understanding the potential effects. The
Council is content mitigation could be dealt with through the planning process and
an EIA is not necessary. The scheme is not of a scale and nor does it have
significant effects on listed buildings and conservation areas or other criteria to the
extent that an EIA is required.

Planning History

1.13 Planning policy guidance encourages developers to engage with the local
planning authority and third parties prior to submitting a planning application. As well
as discussions with officers, the developer has engaged with key stakeholders
including York Civic Trust, Make It York and the York and North Yorkshire LEP.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise (section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).
The Statutory Development Plan for the City of York comprises the saved policies
and key diagram of the otherwise revoked Yorkshire and Humber Plan Regional
Spatial Strategy (2008) and any made Neighbourhood Plan. There is no
Neighbourhood Plan for the area the application site is within.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 31

2.2 In accordance with Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Building and
Conservation Area) Act 1990, the Local Authority must pay special attention to the
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the
conservation area in exercising its planning duties. Section 66 of the same Act
requires the Local Planning Authority to have special regard to preserving the
setting of listed buildings or any features of special architectural or historic interest it
possesses. Where there is found to be harm to the character or appearance of the
Conservation area (or the setting of a listed building,) the statutory duty means that
such harm should be afforded considerable importance and weight when carrying
out the balancing exercise.

2.3 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the government’s
planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. The NPPF
Is supplemented by national planning practice guidance (NPPG).

2.4 The Publication Draft Local Plan 2018 (DLP 2018) was submitted for
examination on 25th May 2018. It has now been subject to examination and is
expected to be adopted late 2024/early 2025. The DLP 2018 policies can be
afforded weight in accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF. Of relevance to this
case policy H7: Student Housing has been subject to modifications and is subject to
objections.

2.5 Key relevant DLP 2018 policies are:

DP2 Sustainable development

DP3 Sustainable communities

DP4 Approach to development management

SS1 Delivering sustainable growth for York

SS3 York city centre

EC2 Loss of employment land

HW?7 Healthy places

H2 Density of housing development

H7 Student housing

D1 Placemaking

D2 Landscape and setting

D4 Conservation areas

D5 Listed buildings

D6 Archaeology

D7 The significance of non-designated heritage assets
D10 York city walls and St Mary’s abbey walls

GI6 New open space provision

CC2 Sustainable design and construction of new development

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 32

ENV1 Air quality

ENV2 Managing environmental quality

ENV3 Land contamination

ENV4 Flood risk

ENV5 Sustainable drainage

T1 Sustainable access

DM1 Infrastructure and developer contributions

3.0 CONSULTATIONS
INTERNAL

City Development / Local Plans team

3.1 Proposed commercial units — no objections as overall the scheme is seen as
positive economically. The proposals will reduce the number of retail units in the
city centre primary shopping area but will provide new hospitality and leisure units
and repurposing of upper floors. There is continuing demand for larger units in the
primary shopping area, including live enquiries from current occupiers who would be
displaced by the development; we encourage the applicants to consider providing
larger units as part of the development to ensure that York’s mix of independents
and chains is maintained.

3.2 Regeneration and reconfiguration of the site - The development principles set
out in policy SS3 for the city centre are broadly achieved through the site’s
redevelopment, including improved permeability between and opening up of the
river frontages. There would be a significant benefit of opening up riverside access.
The proposals also address some of the challenges inherent in making better use of
city centre properties — where access and accessibility to upper floors, which are
often under-utilised, has been a significant challenge. The opportunity to diversify
the use of property, even along this key city centre retail street, by creating valuable
upper floor use is welcome, and fits with ‘Our City Centre’ Vision, recently endorsed
by Executive.

3.3 Student Accommodation — Policy H7 requires a need for student
accommodation is demonstrated. It is accepted there remains an unmet need for
purpose-built student accommodation in York.

Carbon Reduction Team

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 33

3.4 York has set the target of achieving Net zero Carbon by 2030, to do this the
development of new residential and non-residential properties will need to make
efforts to reduce carbon emissions. Officers therefore request conditions in
accordance with DLP 2018 policy CC2 —

- A reduction of carbon emissions compared to building regulations.

- Areduction in dwelling emission rate compared to building regulations (to
achieve a more energy efficient building fabric).

- Water consumption rate below building regulation requirements

- BREEAM Excellent

Design & Conservation — Archaeology

3.5 Recommend conditions. Reports on 6 months of monitoring have been issued
and on-site investigations to inform the proposed mitigation. High quality Roman
archaeology exists beneath basement floors which is classed as a designated
heritage asset in NPPF terms. The monitoring shows the condition of the
archaeology is in decline.

3.6 Recommended conditions -

- WSI for second phase of archaeological evaluation.

- Mitigation following evaluation (archaeological remains management plan
submitted, implemented and final report to be issued).

- Foundation design to preserve at least 95% archaeology in-situ.

- Works to riverside wall — to ensure that the hydrological link between
archaeological deposits and the river is maintained to allow preservation of
organic archaeological deposits and surviving features.

- Hydrological monitoring — to preserve waterlogged deposits.

- Photographic recording of listed buildings and buildings of merit.

Design & Conservation — Conservation
Impact on listed buildings

3.7 The most recent revisions have further improved the setting and sustainable
use of the listed buildings within the application site. The revised drawings show
retention of front windows to retained buildings (it was initially proposed to replace
some with windows of different dimensions). The fire strategy for 39-41 should be
subject to a condition to ensure minimum impact on historic fabric. Officer note — a
fire strategy and audit of interior showing retained features would be conditions of
the companion Listed Building Consent.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 34

3.8 Less than substantial harm is identified to the setting of Grade Il listed 4
Spurriergate. Avoiding demolition of 43 Coney Street (and associated need to open
the whole area above the below-ground sewer) in favour of a snickleway connecting
to the river would have been preferable as far as the setting of 4 Spurriergate is
concerned.

Conservation Area

3.9 Officers identify low to medium harm to the conservation area due to the
proposed demolition and comprehensive development of rear plots. The proposed
townscape does not preserve or enhance the character of appearance of the
Central Historic Core Conservation Area (CA) (because it does not respect historic
plot shapes and the urban grain).

3.10 Urban grain - The proposal merges all plots, in groups of 3-4. Whilst a change,
this is not uncharacteristic; (at the site) Nos. 23-24, 25-27 and 35-37 Coney Street
(this leaves the unlisted 29-31 & Grade Il 33 where leisure unit 3 is proposed), as
well as later development along the riverfront, set a precedent for merging deep
building plots. That said, historically, merged plots reinforced their boundary lines
and retained the relationship between river and street. The proposal emphasises the
river front by merging built mass and roofscapes across the historic plotlines but
leaving the depth of the plots empty (i.e. introducing courtyards). The resulting urban
grain runs perpendicular to the historic one (of deep building plots running down to
the river) and it seems alien to the CA.

3.11 Massing — To respect the existing townscape between Coney Street and the
river and preserving wider views (due to the current masing of buildings on the
riverside, this arrangement affords wider views of the varied roofscape; a strong
positive characteristic of the central historic core CA, as identified in the area
appraisal) generally 4 storey along Coney Street and a careful mix of 4-5 storey
along the riverside (taking into account topography and lower ground levels closer to
the river) was recommended. The existing river front building in Zone 4 (Boots) is
noted as a detractor in the CA character appraisal. Whilst the reduced roof heights
of the proposed Zone 4 still somewhat exceed expectations, the overall design and
the setting back of the building from the riverfront is a visual improvement; on
balance, agree that the impact on the CA of this element is minor.

Design & Conservation — Design

3.12 The proposal was previously assessed (comments 09/02/2024) as having
substantial harm to the conservation area (CA). These harms are reassessed

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 35

following submission of the current scheme. The harm to the CA is now regarded
as being in the mid-range of less than substantial. Despite the improvements of the
current scheme officers are unable to support the proposal on architectural design,
master-planning, and CA grounds. This is not considering any public benefits (which
should be weighed against harm when assessing the scheme according to the
NPPF).

Urban Grain

3.13 The rear of buildings in zone 3 are late 20" century extensions The plot
subdivision loss remains in the scheme, by organising space planning of the
riverfront new build at right angles to historic grain crossing all historic plots with
single floor slabs on upper floors. The reduction in massing of the current scheme
has helped make the external architectural expression of a row of plots look more
convincing, because of more dramatic height variation. In Zone 4 current building
WH Smiths has combined two former rear plots into one. The current Boots building
combined four into one (although it's a bit hard to tell as plot development is
complex). The proposal goes further in combining all into one floorplate on upper
levels, albeit losing some building footprint in creating new Waterloo Place. The
proposal is therefore an erosion of important historic townscape character. The fact
that important character is already eroded makes the character more precious to
retain and/or repair.

3.14 Proposed new road Waterloo Place is uncharacteristically even wider than
Coney St, rather than the more modest back-route scale it should be to reflect
historic character/pattern. Its width is generated out of an easement that
materialises once the existing Boots building is demolished, awkwardly exposing a
long blank side elevation that was never meant to be revealed as it slices down to
the river. It coincidentally needs to be this wide to achieve adequate daylight when
flanked by proposals of this height. So, if we accept that Boots demolition is an
intrinsic economic part of this proposal, we accept the nature of new Waterloo Place
as proposed and it can be seen in some ways as a version of Duncombe Place or
Parliament Street. For the public there are substantial benefits of making new public
spaces and these would be legible wide spaces that should feel genuinely public,
subject to confirmation on any private seating spaces etc. Officer note — a legal
agreement would be imposed to approve extent of public access.

Massing

3.15 A middle section of the proposed riverfront building has reduced by two floors
in the current scheme. This tips the balance so there are more lower forms than high

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 36

forms. This has beneficial impacts. The large parts are still unusually tall when
considering the whole of the varied riverfront here, but they have a benefit of
softening to a degree the current crude slab like at the edge of the site (rear of Next)
by roughly flanking its height with more articulated forms.

3.16 In Zone 4 in the current scheme a floor has been removed from the riverside
elevation, the southern block has changed in material and massing is more
articulated. These amendments make the development appear less monolithic and
it better respects the choppy sea of pitched roofs found in the conservation area.

Townscape / Riverside views

3.17 If accepting a development of this size, the architectural proposal has many
good qualities and the huge complexity of the ambition is admirable. There are not
concerns by the regular rectangular shape of the riverside elevation. How the whole
riverside composition appears between the two bridges, and in this an addition of a
section of rectangular shape (without parallel pitch roof or gable front) is appropriate.

Overall roof treatment

3.18 Whilst pitched roof looking from the outside there are large areas of flat roof.
These should probably be brown or pebble finished to colour coordinate with a
unifying grey of slate mansard style top floor. Officer note — roof materials would be
subject to approval on both conservation and ecology grounds.

Design & Conservation - Ecology

3.19 The development will be beneficial to local ecology, through the provision of
green roofs and soft landscaping. It is however recommended that the applicant
continues to work with a consultant ecologist to ensure the ecological
enhancements recommended within the Ecological Appraisal (refer to section 8.0
Species Appraisal) are included with the final design.

3.20 Due to the proximity of the River Ouse and the complexity of the site’s built
environment, the provision of a construction management plan (CEMP) is
recommended to minimise and mitigate the potential impacts of construction works
on ecology.

3.21 Although the proposed work is to take place in phases, a site wide CEMP is
required to ensure and on-going ecological constraints and bordering features, such
as the River Ouse, are afforded appropriate protection. It is also recommended that

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 37

the CEMP is viewed as a working document and is reviewed and updated per phase
to ensure its relevancy.

3.22 Lighting - with the aim of maintaining and improving foraging and commuting
habitats for bats, limiting light spill onto the River Ouse and protecting new
ecological features, a sensitive lighting scheme should be incorporated.

Design & Conservation — Landscape

3.23 All the riverside tree planting would need to be in planters (due to the riverside
wall and required flood water storage provided below the river walkway). Officer
note - trees can be accommodated without planters along Waterloo Place outside of
the sewer easement. Unfortunately, this means that the trees would not attain a
substantial mature size. The scale of the trees would therefore be relatively small
compared to the existing Hornbeam and other trees on this part of the river that
have recently been removed. Officers had recommended that the number of trees
could compensate for the loss, specially of the Hornbeam which has a TPO, but
since concept stage the number of trees proposed along the riverside has reduced
slightly.

3.24 The riverside ‘space’ is linear, parallel with, and sandwiched in between, the
building blocks and the river. It would perform better as garden space relating to
historic plots if the spaces were more generous. Deeper gardens moving up the
slope would also allow more substantial tree planting.

3.25 In terms of the scheme more details of planting and maintenance would be
required.

- Zone 3 is adequate as a riverside walkway with seating.

- Zone 4 riverside space has deteriorated since the last iteration — both
aesthetically and functionally; and in its relationship with the scale of the
proposed building.

- The level changes along Waterloo Place are simplified to better effect (boulders
within the landscaping are not necessary & omission recommended).

Lead Local Flood Authority

3.26 No objection subject to conditions which require; provision of mitigation
measures (detailed in the flood risk assessment) to prevent increased flood risk
elsewhere; no surface water discharge until the approved surface water drainage
scheme is approved and installed; approval of detailed drainage strategy.
Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 38

Highway Network Management

3.27 Officers raised objections as follows —

Disabled parking provision is adequate in amount but the space requires multiple
changes of gear to access. Officer note — this is an existing space and access
between buildings; there is no scope to provide any more manoeuvring space
and no other land at the site for car parking as the site is developed and in the
footstreets.

Cycle parking - 60% provision is proposed. This is accepted as initial provision
but whilst the plans show room additional spaces (subject to demand) it does not
show how many additional spaces could be provided. It is queried if the lift in
zone 4 would be functional as doors are on different sides.

Housing Strategy

3.28 In accordance with the proposed Local Plan Policy H7: Off Campus Purpose
Built Student Housing, an affordable housing off site contribution would be required
for this application. Officers advise on the formula and for 385 student rooms the
contribution would be £2,295,370.

Public Protection

3.29 No objection subject to conditions on the following

Further information and approval of the sound insulation between the ground
floor retail/leisure use and first floor residential.

Further information on noise levels from any external plant/machinery and
approval of necessary mitigation measures

Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP),

External lighting

Site investigation works and any required remediation of the land contamination
Submission and approval of details of extraction plant or machinery for treatment
of cooking odours from any commercial units.

Sport & Leisure / public realm

3.30 No objection and no contributions sought. Advise the Council have not
typically sough open space related contributions when schemes have provided an

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 39

element of open space and/or public realm. This scheme provides a sufficient
degree of open space, including new public realm.

EXTERNAL
Consultation was carried out on the revised plans in May 2024

Active Travel England
Recommend approval subject to conditions regarding the cycle parking provision.

3.31 Advise they would be in support of a commuted payment, if sought, to provide
on-street cycle parking nearby. Officer note — the scheme already shows 14 cycle
spaces provided in Waterloo place. A commuted sum is not sought in this case as
such provision is not explicitly required under the DLP 2018 and in any event it
would not be possible to accommodate stands outside the site reasonably close to
the site in Coney Street due to servicing requirements.

Council for British Archaeology (amenity society)
Object (to superseded scheme).

3.32 The designed use of around 400 student lets is dictating an architectural form
that would create an unjustified level of harm which could be reduced by creating a
less intensive mix of residential uses on the upper floors of the listed buildings
specifically, but also across the site. The viability of this, compared to less impactful
strategies of future residential use, should be established to justify the level of harm
to the listed buildings on Coney Street and the conservation area.

3.33 The historic grain of the Central Shopping Area character area of YCHCCA is
fundamental to its significance within the city in its legibility of the historic use and
development of Coney Street and its relationship to the river for trade and
commerce. This is identifiable from the long linear plots running between Coney
Street and the river and the clear distinction in character between the front and rear
of plots. Development that cuts across these lines harms this character and future
legibility of the area’s historic grain. To limit the effects on the significance of this
row of listed buildings and buildings of merit, changes to floor prints should:

- Retain the possibility to read and to experience historic boundary lines.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 40

- Enable long-term, resilient uses. The resulting units should be able to be utilised
for other residential purposes without significant alterations and further loss of
historic fabric. Conjoining listed buildings should be minimised to conserve their
significance as independent plots and future proof versatility into the domestic
use of the upper floors.

Environment Agency
No objection subject to a condition

3.34 No objection subject to a condition requiring the development and proposed
flood mitigation is carried out as set out in the submitted Flood Risk Assessment.
The EA also requires the applicant be made aware of the requirement for
environmental permitting.

York Conservation Area Advisory Panel
No objection

3.35 Welcome the major changes to the proposed development including the
reduction in scale of some of the buildings, the better mix of pitched and flat roofed
buildings and the improved modelling. It was considered that the majority if the
comments & recommendations made at its meeting in December 2023 have been
accommodated.

Guildhall Planning Panel
Object (comments dated Feb 2023 and prior to submission of latest scheme).

3.36 Zone 4 buildings are 1 or 2 storeys too high). Asked for improved articulation
at the corner between Coney Street and newly created Waterloo Place. Officer note
— the revised plans do reduce the building heights in zone 4 and reconsider corner
articulation between Coney Street and Waterloo Place.

3.37 Accommodation mix — prefer to see some residential units in addition to
student accommodation and smaller commercial units for independent traders.

3.38 Queries as follows (followed by officer response) —

- Will courtyards receive sufficient daylight?

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 41

The Building Research Establishment guide in respect of sunlight daylight is that
properties respect the urban grain. Small scale courtyards and intimate spaces
are characteristic in the Central Historic Core Conservation Area.

- Will the riverside access be restricted?
A condition will require a suitable degree of public access. There are intervening
properties between zones 3 and 4 in different ownership which mean this scheme
does not deliver a continuous walkway.

- Will opening hours of commercial units be controlled in the interests of amenity of
occupants of the upper floors?
The applicants have stated commercial premises will close at 23:30. This is a
central city centre location with an abundance of existing premises subjected to
licencing and not planning restrictions. It is not reasonable or necessary to
control opening times through the planning process.

- Cycle stores accessible?
There is either ramped (at an acceptable gradient) or lift access to all stores.

- Alternative accommodation for existing traders?
This is a commercial matter. From a planning perspective the site is in the city
centre where there are alternative premises and the scheme provides a variety of
commercial spaces.

Historic England
No objection

3.39 Broadly welcome the proposed development. Support the principle of the mix
of uses proposed and making the river frontage publicly accessible. An objection
due to the architecture of the new buildings in zone 4 (south extent) has been
withdrawn following revised plans.

- Townscape - note the reduction in height and more in-keeping material palette,
but nevertheless feel that the design is not as bold or imaginative as the originally
submitted scheme; feel that the opportunity for a more creative contemporary
building is being missed.

- The new block would cause less than substantial harm to the character and
appearance of the conservation area due to its massing, design and flat roof.

- The use of red brick as the predominant material responds more appropriately to
the material palette of York. The removal of a storey has reduced the impact of
the bulky appearance of the building.

- Stepping down different parts of the Waterloo Place new build elevation serves to
create a more visually attractive frontage. Lowering and stepping back the block
closest to Zone 3 creates a better transition down to the buildings fronting the
river to the rear of the listed buildings.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 42

- Welcome the sympathetic proposals to renovate the shopfronts along Coney
Street, based on surviving evidence and historic images. This will serve to
strengthen the historic character and appearance of the streetscape.

- No objection to the internal alterations to the Grade Il listed buildings and
buildings of merit. It is clear that the upper floors of the historic buildings are in
need of investment and a new use.

- Waterloo Place - wide open boulevards are not typical of York. The proposed
width of the new access route means that it would fail to respond to the historic
form of the alleyways and snickelways that link Coney Street and the river. With
creativity, a more articulated and mixed route in terms of alignment, stepped
floorplates etc, could create an attractive and active route.

3.40 Archaeology - The site is within the Area of Archaeological Importance (AAl),
has archaeological potential for complex waterlogged deposits, and should be
considered of national importance until demonstrated otherwise.

- Continued ground water monitoring is essential.

- Modifications to the river wall may have considerable effect on surviving
waterlogged deposits.

- Further investigation is essential and a mitigation strategy requires delivery. The
post evaluation analysis and publication of such is necessary before first
occupation of the scheme.

NHS
Financial contribution sought

3.41 Healthcare services closest to the site do not have spare capacity. Due to
increased demand that would result as a consequence of the development a
financial contribution (£218,439) is requested. The contribution would fund health
infrastructure development either at the York central or within the existing York
Medical Group Primary Care Network to accommodate the additional population
created by the proposed development. Officer note — contributions have not been
sought by the Council for PBSA schemes as this is not a permanent residence of
occupants and as the universities also provide medical facilities.

North Yorkshire Police

No objection

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 43

3.42 Commented in relation to designing out crime. The student entrances are
supported, it is considered that this arrangement will be safer than having secluded
accesses provided deeper in the scheme. The lighting proposed is acceptable as it
will ensure people’s faces will be visible thus reduce the fear of crime.
Compartmentalisation of the cycle storage is supported as this allows greater
guardianship so that unauthorised access is challenged.

Twentieth Century Society (amenity society)
Object.

3.43 Advise that the WHSmith extension building is physically attached to Grade Il
listed 39 and 41 Coney Street. It should be regarded as a non-designated heritage
asset. A more thorough heritage assessment to justify demolition of the 1970’s
addition is requested. The 1970’s building is considered to have architectural
gualities and is sympathetic to its setting. Its demolition is objected to.

Yorkshire Water

3.44 No objection and recommend conditions.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1 There have been 27 contributors, 12 registered as objections to the scheme.
Summary of representations received:

York BID

Support

4.2 York has missed out on recent Levelling up funding; there will be no
immediate large scale regeneration money handed down to Councils. Coney Street
Riverside looks to build on the street's long heritage as a thriving hub of commerce,
culture and community whilst opening it up through new access routes and
reconnecting this vital area of the city with the River Ouse. This mixed use of the
buildings is vitally important, as York city centre needs people living and working in
the city to support the business community. This will make the city more sustainable
in the long run and less reliant on the peaks and troughs of tourism.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 44

York Civic Trust
Support

4.3 Raised initial concerns/objections to the scheme but support the revised
proposals. The accumulation of properties along the street/river by the developer
presents a once-in-a-century opportunity for the city to affect positive change here. It
can reconnect historic association between Coney Street and the river following a
century of disconnection. It can create of a new community in the heart of the city.
The principle of the upper floor levels on Coney Street is supportable as 'above
shop' reuse, especially of listed buildings, believing this is the best way to maintain
historic properties.

4.4 Zone 4's building height has been lowered and is now approximately the same
height as the parapet of the building it most resembles architecturally, No.2 Low
Ousegate (‘Linley & Simpsons'), which the Trust previously recommended as a
maximum height. It is also now lower than the parapet of No.19 Coney Street.

York Georgian Society
Object (to superseded scheme).

- Loss of plan form to listed buildings.

- Form and scale of new development in Zone 4 out of character on riverside
setting and junction between Coney Street and Waterloo Place uncomfortable in
the street scene.

4.5 The objection was received in 2023. Since the comments the scheme has

been revised. The amendments sought to address the concerns raised. In the

listed buildings the interconnections between buildings has been removed (with
individual staircases in each property), Zone 4 has been reduced in scale and the
architectural treatment of the corner with Coney Street reconsidered.

York & North Yorkshire Chamber of Commerce
Support

- On a social level it will breathe new life into one of York's most historic and famed
streets, as well as vastly improving accessibility.

- On an economic level, there is a hugely compelling case for its being granted
approval. An independent report from respected planning firm and economic
development consultants has shown the Coney Street plan would deliver £175m
In economic benefits to York over the next 15 years. It demonstrates that for
every £1 invested, £3.93 would be generated for York - a superb return.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 45

Further Public Comments:

- Linking of Coney Street to riverside is a positive.

- Riverside frontage no more than a walkway connecting leisure units.

- Support for composition of uses proposed. Objections to the loss of larger
commercial uses for high street retailers. These are the types of stores local
residential would prefer.

- Value in the rear extension to WH Smith and preference for retention as part of
the scheme.

- The introduction of additional noise sensitive residential uses in close vicinity to
the existing longstanding, lawful noise generating late-night leisure venues will
increase the potential for complaints by the new residents in respect of these
established late-night uses.

- Objection from owners of 35-37 Coney Street (which lies between the two
development zones. The proposed redevelopment plans rely on incorporating
the rear of Nos. 35-37 Coney Street to provide access along the river to the
development plots. Oppose this principle; the owners propose future
redevelopment at the rear of this site for residential use. This land is not available
to the applicant and cannot be relied upon to provide future access between their
development sites.

- Proposals change the ambience of the city, will the proposal cause flooding, will
tourist be able to enjoy the new buildings.

5.0 APPRAISAL
KEY ISSUES

- Principle of the development:

- Impact on heritage assets (conservation area, listed buildings, archaeology)
- Design

- Amenity

- Affordable housing

- Promotion of sustainable transport

- Flood risk and drainage

- Sustainable design and construction
- Biodiversity

- Open space

- Planning balance

- Equalities assessment

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 46

Principle of the development (proposed uses)
Commercial uses

5.1 The site is on a primary shopping street. The scheme includes a reduction in
retail floorspace (although much of the loss is from upper floors, which are less
desirable to operators).

Existing 5,213 sgm of retail floorspace in 10 units.
Proposed 3,884 sgm of retail and leisure floorspace in 12 units.

This includes the loss of larger retail units —

19 Coney Street Next 1,342 sgm
39-41 Coney Street WH Smith 1,090 sgm
43 Coney Street Boots 1,279 sgm

5.2 Of the proposed 12 retail units one large retail unit is proposed — unit 1 with
1,130 sgm. Units 7 and 8 could be combined (subject to demand) and provide 658
sgm.

5.3 As part of the amendments through the process the entrances to the Student
accommodation (in each zone) have moved onto Coney Street. The entrances to
the student accommodation will be through what had historically been shop-fronts
and the design would repair and refurbish these elements.

5.4 NPPF paragraph 85 states planning decisions should help create the
conditions in which businesses can invest and significant weight should be placed
on the need to support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both
local business needs and wider opportunities for development. Planning decisions
should support the role that town centres play, by taking a positive approach to their
growth, management and adaptation (paragraph 86 of the NPPF).

5.5 DLP 2018 Policy SS3 relates to York City Centre. The City Centre is identified
as a priority area for a range of employment uses and is fundamental to delivering
the plans economic vision. During the plan period it will be the principal location for
the delivery of economic growth in the tourism, leisure and cultural sectors. Policy
SS3 states that within the City Centre, retail use (class E) and food and drink units
(class E) are acceptable in principle within the designated primary shopping area.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 47

5.6 Policy SS3 also encourages enhancements to the setting of the River Ouse
and River Foss and their frontages, turning them into attractive, vibrant and bustling
environments with improved access to the riverside and linkages to other parts of
the city centre. The Central Historic Core Conservation Area Appraisal also
identifies as an opportunity more riverside public spaces similar to that by the City
Screen cinema.

5.7 Since 1% September 2020, retail units (previously use class Al) and
restaurants and cafes (previously A3) are now within the same use class (E). A
change within the same use class does not require planning permission unless a
previous extant planning condition or legal agreement restricts the use. Retail
provision within York City Centre is protected under policy R3 of the DLP (2018).
Policy R3 states proposals for other main town centre uses (including food, drink
and entertainment uses as part of a vibrant evening economy) will be supported
where they:

- Are complementary to the Primary Shopping Area’s (PSA) retail function and
contribute to the viability of the city centre

- Have active frontages to reflect the character of the PSA and

- Would not have a detrimental impact on the overall character and amenity of
the PSA.

5.8 The site lies within a primary shopping frontage and as such consideration
must be given to the impact the development would have on this designation. Policy
R3 of the Draft Local Plan (2018) states “proposals that would involve the loss, by
change of use or redevelopment of class E ground floor space (shops) will generally
be resisted. However, proposals for other uses may be permitted if it can be
demonstrated that:

I.  the proposal has an active frontage and contributes to the vitality and viability
of the primary shopping frontage; the proposed uses will provide a service
direct to members of the public and can demonstrate a comparable footfall
generation to retail use;

ii. the proposal will have an attractive shop front which contributes positively to
the appearance of the street;

lii. the proposal would not result in non-retail uses being grouped together in such
a way that would undermine the retail role of the street;

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 48

iv. —a minimum of 70% class E uses will be required unless it can be demonstrated
that it would be beneficial to the vitality and viability of the primary shopping
frontage;

v. the proposal does not prevent upper floors from being effectively used,
including the possibility of independent use; and

vi. there are not a large proportion of vacant ground floor premises in the
immediate street”.

5.9 At present the buildings on-site are in Class E use, with ground floor retail
space with ancillary uses to the upper floors. The proposals involve the modification
of the existing retail units to revert to the historic footprint, creating smaller shops. In
addition to these the proposal also includes creating two larger units within Zone 4
to provide a varied retail offer. The scheme also provides two additional street
frontages (Waterloo Place / Riverside walkway) and Waterloo Place which are all
beneficial to the retail function of the area. The student entrances are minor in
scale, they would still include an active frontage and follow the advice of R3 which
seeks to retain or provide upper floor access so they can be effectively used. The
entrance are minor and appropriate in scale and given the contribution to vitality and
viability the provision of accommodation on the upper floors, would have a positive
effect overall.

5.10 The proposals will reduce the number of retail units but will provide new
hospitality and leisure units and repurposing of upper floors. New active frontages
are proposed along Waterloo Place and the riverside and the existing frontages
along Coney Street are not detrimentally affected. Service type uses are all
contained at a lower ground floor level so each unit contains an active frontage onto
the street. All the criteria in policy R3 (above) are satisfied and the scheme is
consistent with local and national policies in respect of the vitality and viability of city
centres.

5.11 The amendments through the process now include a variety of retail spaces
and other uses that contribute in a positive way to the vitality and viability of the
centre. City Development have advised that some demand for larger units in the
city centre and a condition is recommended (to continue to provide a choice in retail
offer) to prevent subdivision of the largest retail unit proposed in 19 Coney Street.
The composition of uses is appropriate when applying criteria in policy R3.

Student accommodation (PBSA)

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 49

5.12 Upper floors are to be utilised as student accommodation. The revised
scheme includes 358 rooms. DLP 2018 policy H7 establishes the locational criteria
for private PBSA off campus and requires sites to be appropriately located to
achieve good access to education institutions. The NPPF is broadly more
supportive of economic growth to meet identified need; section 11: making effective
use of land requires promoting effective use of land to meet need for housing and
other uses, making as much use as possible of previously developed land and in
decision-making giving substantial weight to such development proposals. Section
6 requires significant weight to be given to economic growth.

5.13 The site is situated in central York. Coney Street is in close proximity to York
St John University (approx. 0.75km) and has good access to the University of York
(approx. 3km as the crow flies). The site is highly accessible to many bus routes
beyond the pedestrianised area and connections via cycle path.

5.14 Policy H7 also requires applications to demonstrate the need for the student

accommodation. At paragraph 5.47 of the Explanation to the policy, it states:

“Whilst it is recognised that counting students can be difficult and student numbers

can vary depending on what source or definition is used, applicants should present

a proven need for student housing by providing an assessment of:

- existing and likely future student numbers and numbers requiring accommaodation
taking into account the proportion of students who study from home

- areview of the current level of provision, including the level of vacancies and the
guality of accommodation

- the likely future supply of accommodation based on extant planning permissions
and estate strategies of the relevant education provider.”

5.15 Paragraph 5.48 of the explanation to the policy makes it clear that the
assessment should relate to full-time students. The assessment submitted with the
application includes projects numbers of all students. Notwithstanding the distortion
that inclusion of these figures causes, it is accepted that there remains an unmet
need for PBSA in York.

5.16 Modifications to policy H7 also require the student bedrooms to be subject to
nomination agreements. The modifications to the policy can only be given limited
weight because they are subject to objections. No information has been provided to
demonstrate compliance with this provision. The agent for the application has
however outlined why they think this element of the policy has no weight.
Nominations are also reliant on university approval which is not necessarily

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 50

controllable by the applicants. In this instance given the outstanding objections to
this element of the policy it is not considered necessary in this instance to require
nomination information.

5.17 Modification MM5.17 requires new student accommodation to make a financial
contribution towards delivering affordable housing in the City, based on a
standardised formula, as follows: Average York Property Price — Average York
Fixed RP Price x 2.5% = OSFC per student bedroom. It is considered that the
principle of requiring a financial contribution to affordable housing meets the
statutory tests established by Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 and is a justified policy requirement. The affordable housing
contribution is covered in more detail below in this report, in the section titled
affordable housing.

Conclusions

5.18 Overall, in terms of the principal of development, the development is seen as
positive from an economic perspective and supports the York Economic Strategy
2022-32’s objective to future-proof city centre space by adapting spaces that are
currently under-used such as upper floors.

5.19 The general principle of the new uses can be supported and will support and
enhance an important section of the PSA in York City Centre. A mixed use will
enhance the daytime and night-time economy. The principle of development
therefore accords with the economic and social objectives of the NPPF in respect of
the economy and supporting vibrant communities and delivering a range of homes
and DLP 2018 policy SS3 which relates to the city centre and its role in achieving
the economic and social aspiration of the plan. In applying the NPPF (specifically
paragraphs 85 and 124) the decision-maker must give significant weight to the
economic benefits of the scheme and substantial weight to the delivery of housing
that meets an identified need.

Impact on Heritage Assets

5.20 The site is within the Central Historic Core Conservation Area, area 11 Central
Shopping Area. The following buildings are within the site —

Zone 2

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 51

19 Coney Street (Next etc) — building of merit (as identified in the Central Historic
Core Conservation Area) which is to be converted.

Zone 3

21 Coney Street — building of merit
23 Coney Street — Grade ||

25-27 Coney Street — Grade ||
29-31 Coney Street - unlisted

33 Coney Street — grade |l

Demolition is proposed for a later rear extension and the unlisted building at 29-31
Coney Street.

Zone 4

39-41 (WH Smith) — Grade Il listed.

43 (Boots) — unlisted — the rear / riverside section identified as a detractor in the
conservation area appraisal.

Demolition proposed of rear section of 39-41 and entirety of 43.

5.21 The site is in the designated City Centre Area of Archaeological Importance.
NPPF Footnote 72 of para.206 states that ‘Non-designated heritage assets of
archaeological interest, which are demonstrably of equivalent significance to
scheduled monuments, should be considered subject to the policies for designated
heritage assets’. The archaeological deposits are of national significance.

5.22 In terms of building retention (opposed to demolition) the NPPF in section 14
(meeting the challenge of climate change ...) states the planning system should
encourage the reuse of existing resources, including the conversion of existing
buildings. For the historic environment NPPF paragraph 213 states “not all
elements of a Conservation Area ... will necessarily contribute to its significance.
Loss of a building (or other element) which makes a positive contribution to the
significance of the Conservation Area ... should be treated either as substantial
harm under paragraph 207 or less than substantial harm under paragraph 208, as
appropriate”.

5.23 In zone 3 the listed buildings are originally houses, which have been merged
and extended over time, and evolved into commercial units. The key significance
lies in evidence of the original form and use, evidence of historic plot form and

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 52

hierarchy of buildings and architectural interest. There is no harm to significance as
a consequence of the demolition proposed. The character and appearance of the
Conservation Area benefits from the views afforded across the site of historic
townscape and roofscape. In zone 4 the buildings to be demolished have a neutral
to negative impact on significance.

Assessment
Significance

5.24 The management strategy for the Central Historic Core Conservation Area is
an important reference in shaping large scale redevelopment schemes such as this.
The advice it provides is that the design of new buildings should:

- Respect the characteristics which define York’s distinctive urban form, as
identified in the Heritage Topic Paper. For example: building lines, historic street
patterns, building scale, plot and block dimensions. In this respect the overview
for the Central Historic Core Conservation Area states significance includes a
tremendous diversity of architectural styles and phases causing constantly
changing variety and juxtapositions in the townscape.

- Respect local building heights.

- Place importance on the design of roofs and the roofscape: these are often in
effect another public frontage because they are often highly visible from raised
viewpoints (walls, Clifford’s Tower, the Minster), and new development should
contribute positively to the character of York’s distinctive skyline in this respect.

- Preserve existing views and look to create interesting new ones.

- Seek to add to the variety and texture of the Conservation Area, which is one of
its defining characteristics.

5.25 Historic England advice is that a key aspect of the strong urban form is the rich
townscape. The significance of this is the highly attractive environment with a
distinctive ‘grain’ which is characterised by compact planning, intimate streets and
spaces, views both grand and incidental. The roofscape and skyline are vital parts
of the character of the townscape. This is due to its pre-industrial character - a sea
of tiled roofs dominated by the towers and steeples of the Minster and churches -
and its prominence in the public experience from the elevated viewpoints of the City
Walls and Clifford’s Tower.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 53

5.26 The Conservation Area has evolved over time and the current situation is that
over the 20" century large scale retail/commercial spaces have grown, this has
resulted in merged plots and some loss of historic urban grain. The Historic
England advice notes the site at present detracts from the historic character of York
due to the ad-hoc accumulation of bulky, mainly utilitarian extensions to the ‘back of
house’ shops fronting onto Coney Street. This has created an unattractive edge to
the river.

5.27 DLP 2018 Policy SS3 includes an aspiration to enhance the setting of the
River Ouse and its frontage creating an attractive, vibrant and bustling environment
with improved access to the riverside. The conservation area appraisal identifies an
opportunity to provide increased public access to the riverside. The conservation
area appraisal states - “Intermittent access to the riverside is part of the historic
character of the area. However, there are certain places where intervention could
create more riverside public spaces similar to that by the City Screen Cinema. This
would require co-operation from a number of private owners but the benefits are
potentially great”.

5.28 The application site, in public viewpoints from the opposite side of the river,
Ouse and Lendal bridges is not attractive. The buildings in zone 4 are not of an
architectural style, shape or scale harmonious with the more historic context of
Coney Street. The rear of n0.43 (Boots) is identified as a detractor in the
Conservation Area appraisal. Riverside buildings in zone 3 are lower and more
discreet, this allows views of the historic and varied roofscape beyond, but the self-
seeded trees and low profile of the buildings do not formally address the river.
However (and as considered by Historic England) there are positive characteristics
that contribute to the significance of the area; the site still retains a sense of the
long, narrow historic plots that ran down to the river and due to the subservient scale
of certain buildings in public views the historic townscape and skyline can be
appreciated, specifically in zone 3.

Impact on significance
Conservation Area (CA)

5.29 The demolition proposed is not objected to in principle. It removes unlisted
buildings and structures that are either late 20" century and/or functional extensions
of proportions that do not respect the domestic scale of the listed buildings fronting
Coney Street. It is acknowledged this presents a regeneration opportunity to deliver

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 54

an enhanced riverside setting. The assessment is therefore whether the proposed
scheme is overall beneficial or harmful to the Central Historic Core Conservation
Area (its historic and architectural significance) and if there is less than substantial
harm, whether this outweighed by the public benefits of the scheme (whilst giving
great weight to conservation as required by NPPF para.205); this follows the
approach contained in NPPF section 16 in respect conserving and enhancing the
historic environment. The assessment of whether the benefits outweigh the harm is
at the end of section 5 of this report, as part of the overall planning balance.

5.30 The harms which have been identified as a consequence of the scheme —
Zone 3

- Harm to legibility of historic urban grain because the proposed leisure units
fronting the riverside span across multiple historic plots and are taller than
existing buildings. Legibility is eroded because new buildings are taller and more
dominant thereby reducing views through to the rear elevations of the
original/frontage buildings. The appearance of primary forms facing the street
with lower rear extensions and gardens leading to the river, giving a clear
hierarchy of historic plot width and development is reduced.

- Loss of wider views beyond the riverside buildings due to replacement buildings

being of a higher scale.

5.31 The level of harm is regarded as less than substantial and at the lower end of
the scale. The existing development (which is modern and to be replaced) cuts
across multiple plots. The level of harm to loss of wider views is very low. The
height of the new riverside buildings is varied; between 5 and 3.5 storey in height
and regarded as appropriate in the historic townscape (taking into account form and
articulation and referencing historic plot widths). This variation retains a degree of
views beyond these buildings of the townscape beyond. Whilst some loss of views
of the frontage buildings on Coney Street would still occur, this is of rear elevations;
not typically exposed to public views in the historic core.

Zone 4
- The buildings do not restore, but further deviate from historic plan form (Design &
Conservation Officers are now satisfied with the scale and massing of Zone 4).

- The side elevation of 4 Spurriergate would be exposed due to the creation of
Waterloo Place.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 55

5.32 Waterloo Place would be a new street leading down to the river. Its width has
been subject to adverse comments because it does not adhere to the narrow width
of historic snickleways and side streets in this section of the central historic core and
it would expose the side elevation of the neighbouring listed building. The width is
determined by the Yorkshire Water sewer beneath and their easement
requirements. The constraint allows for a public space, opposed to a narrow side
street, which would be a substantial benefit and as revised the proposed building
that would front it has been given a human scale through its architectural treatment.
The treatment of the corner that would be viewed from Coney Street, which was
originally subject to adverse comment, has been re-designed and the Council’s
design team is satisfied with the current approach. The creation of this new public
realm is regarded to be beneficial overall. The public benefits clearly outweigh the
harm that would result from exposing the side elevation of Grade Il listed 4
Spurriergate.

The proposals for zone 4 are also regarded as causing less than substantial harm,
at the lower end of the scale. For both plots when assessing loss, regard must be
given to the scheme as a whole.

Listed Buildings

5.33 The impact on individual listed buildings on site is not regarded to be harmful.
In the revised plans their original plan form is respected and plot widths legible in the
listed buildings fronting Coney Street. The scheme has been revised to preserve
and enhance architectural interest and importance. Later rear additions (of
unsympathetic scale) to buildings are removed and (although later additions)
shopfronts are improved. Whilst harm to the CA has been identified there is not
harm to the setting of listed buildings identified primarily because the buildings
affected have already had their settings affected by large scale rear extensions of
commercial design. Works to a degree reverse this harm, provide relief to original
facades and external amenity space is provided which is beneficial and therefore
overall, there is no harm to individual buildings.

5.34 Less than substantial harm, at the lower end of the scale is identified to the
setting of Grade Il listed 4 Spurriergate because the side elevation is exposed as a

consequence of demolition of 43 Coney Street and creation of Waterloo Place.

Archaeoloqgy

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 56

5.35 In applying the NPPF due to the significance of the archaeology that would be
affected it is subject to the policies for designated heritage assets.

5.36 Policy D6 of the DLP 2018 supports development proposals that affect
archaeological features and deposits where:

I. They are accompanied by an evidence-based heritage statement that
describes the significance of the archaeological deposits affected and that
includes a desk-based assessment and, where necessary, reports on intrusive
and non-intrusive surveys of the application site and its setting; including
characterisation of waterlogged organic deposits, if present:

ii.  They will not result in harm to the significances of the site or its setting;

lii. They are designed to enhance or better reveal the significance of an
archaeological site or will help secure a sustainable future for an
archaeological site at risk; and

iv. Harm to archaeological deposits is unavoidable, detailed mitigation measures
have been agreed with City of York Council that include, where appropriate,
provision for deposit monitoring, investigation, recording, analysis, publication,
archive deposition and community involvement.

5.37 The text associated with the policy notes that within the historic core,
substantial harm is defined as greater than 5% disturbance to buried archaeological
deposits. This enables development to take place on a site where sensitive deposits
were present while limiting destruction to up to 5% of the deposits on the site. The
policy has been developed using the evidence base document York Development
and Archaeology Study 1991.

Assessment on archaeology impacts

5.38 Sufficient investigation has taken place given the stage of the scheme and
constraints of the site. This includes desk-based assessments and on-site
investigation, including 6 months of hydrological monitoring. The monitoring is
ongoing and would be required for a 5-year period if the scheme were to progress.

5.39 In accordance with local policy a foundation design will be required to limit loss
of archaeology.

5.40 An archaeological remains management plan has been submitted (April 2024).

This will be amended following the 2nd phase of evaluation and competition of 12-

month hydrological monitoring. Planning conditions can secure a mitigation strategy

that follows local policy. The mitigation measures would be undertaken following the
Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 57

investigation and conditions require this work is published and added to the historic
environment record (HER). The conditions recommended by the Council’s
archaeologist in section 3 of this report would be included.

Design

5.41 The NPPF in respect of achieving well-designed and beautiful places in
paragraph 135 advises decisions should ensure places —

- Function well and add to the overall quality of the area.

- Are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping.

- Are sympathetic to local character and history while not preventing or
discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities).

- Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development.

- Create places which are safe inclusive and accessible.

5.42 In respect of innovation and change the management strategy for the Central
Historic Core Conservation Area is an important reference in shaping large scale
redevelopment schemes such as this. The advice it provides is that the design of
new buildings should -

- Respect local building heights.

- Place importance on the design of roofs and the roofscape: these are often in
effect another public frontage because they are often highly visible from raised
viewpoints (walls, Clifford’s Tower, the Minster), and new development should
contribute positively to the character of York’s distinctive skyline in this respect.

- Preserve existing views and look to create interesting new ones.

- Seek to add to the variety and texture of the Conservation Area, which is one of
its defining characteristics.

5.43 The scheme does broadly adhere to the above advice for new development in
the Central Historic Core Conservation Area. The amount of PBSA within the
scheme does follow the NPPF policies in that they encourage optimising the
potential of sites and making effective use of land; specifically in the context of
meeting housing need. The scheme would contain a composition of uses which
would add to the overall quality of the area. The architectural treatment of buildings
seeks to deliver a visually sympathetic scheme whilst providing a mix and amount of
uses, necessary to make the scheme viable.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 58

5.44 Given the existing composition of buildings on site there is evidentially an
opportunity for new development that regenerates the area; to provide riverside
access and continue the formal arrangement of fronting the river, as provided by the
Guildhall and the very highly regarded regeneration project between the Guildhall
and the application site (Former Yorkshire Herald building / City Screen cinema and
other buildings which the CA appraisal advises is one of the best examples of
contemporary architecture in the area). The scheme would deliver a riverside
walkway and positive formal frontage to the river. Although it does not honestly
restore the original urban grain, due to the variation in articulation and massing of
the proposed scheme, it would sit comfortably in its context and retain and
contribute to the variety and texture of the conservation area. The scheme is of a
scale and massing that the conservation areas requests in terms of preserving
views of the varied townscape and roofscape and creating new interesting views. In
design terms and NPPF paragraph 135 advice the scheme has multiple positive
aspects, most importantly in terms of how it affects the riverside elevation and its
provision of new public realm.

5.45 As summarised in the impacts on heritage section the scheme has been
revised to address key design issues brought up in consultation; the scale and
massing of buildings fronting the riverside, detailing of listed buildings, the use of
materials characteristic to the conservation area and articulation of the new
Waterloo Place elevation.

Secure by design

5.46 A condition can be used to cover secure by design measures. The plans and
submitted design and access reports illustrate that secure by design has been
considered taking into account access controls into buildings, covered and secure
cycle parking, lighting design and increased levels of natural surveillance.

Amenity

5.47 Policy D1 of the 2018 Draft Plan requires that residential amenity is
considered so that residents living nearby are not unduly affected by noise,
disturbance, overlooking or overshadowing. This is in conformity with NPPF
para.135 which requires that development have a high standard of amenity for
existing and future users.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 59

Surrounding occupants

5.48 The scheme is regarded not to have an adverse impact on the amenity of
neighbouring residents. To its northern extent (zone 3) 19 Coney Street is
converted and does not materially change in form or scale. Where student rooms
look outward towards no.17 they are towards a generally blank side elevation and
rooftop of the neighbouring commercial unit. Beyond the southern side of the site
(zone 4) neighbouring buildings have commercial rear outshots with no windows.
There are no overlooking issues and the proposed new riverside blocks would not
be over-dominant or imposing in any way over existing buildings.

Future occupants

5.49 NPPF Paragraph 129c refers to making effective use of land and states local
planning authorities should refuse applications which they consider fail to make
efficient use of land, taking into account the NPPF policies. In this context, when
considering applications for housing, authorities should take a flexible approach in
applying policies or guidance relating to daylight and sunlight, where they would
otherwise inhibit making efficient use of a site (as long as the resulting scheme
would provide acceptable living standards. The BRE (British Research
Establishment) guidance on site layout for daylight and sunlight advocates building
at a density that respects its context.

5.50 Amenity of future residents of the building is restricted in places (due to
existing site constraints) but is regarded to be acceptable and not out of character in
such a central location in the historic core.

5.51 At 19 Coney Street looking northward on the lower floors windows to student
rooms are only around 2m from the neighbouring side wall and in the internal
courtyard windows are 3.3m to 4.3 apart. Rooms are all single aspect. However,
19 Coney Street is a conversion and subject to existing site constraints. Where new
build is proposed in zones 3 and 4 separation distances in the courtyard areas
range from 6.7m at a pinch point to a typical separation of between 9m to 12m. This
range and variety is typical of the context and therefore acceptable.

5.52 There are a mix of studio apartments and clusters of ensuite rooms with
communal living/kitchen areas. The rooms are supplemented by communal amenity
space; 836 sgm internal space is provided and 560 sgm external space. There is
communal amenity space on each floor.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 60

5.53 A noise assessment has been undertaken; it evidences that with the required
mitigation / noise insulation measures internal noise levels will achieve national
standards (mitigation will be secured through condition). Public protection
mentioned noise transfer between floors and different uses, however this is a matter
covered by the building regulations.

5.54 Student room sizes are acceptable and consistent with those in approved
schemes in York. The communal amenity space is also comparable in area and
spaced across buildings in a similar manner to other approved PBSA schemes. The
rooms which have kitchens included are at least 20sgm and there is a variation in
room sizes. The design and access statement and planning statement (May
addendum) explains how inclusive access is provided both throughout the scheme
and the provision of accommodation with different levels of accessibility. 7% of the
rooms are ambulant and wheelchair accessible rooms. These are typically provided
In close proximity to service cores and lifts (although note there are not specific
Building Regulations requirements in respect of the length of “approach routes” to
individual dwellings). Rooms are of a size which means they can be adjusted to
accommodate users specific needs on a yearly basis.

Affordable housing

5.55 DLP 2018 policy H7 regarding off campus purpose- built student housing, as
modified, requires an off-site financial contribution towards delivering affordable
housing elsewhere in the city. The requirement is only applicable for developments
not to be owned by the York universities. The policy can be given moderate weight
at most (taking into account NPPF paragraph 48) because it has unresolved
objections.

5.56 A policy compliant off-site contribution would be £2,134,396 (£5,962 per
student room). The applicants provided a viability appraisal to demonstrate the
scheme could not afford to comply with policy H7. Subsequently the scheme was
revised and reduced to 358 student rooms (a reduction of 28 rooms) which had a
further detrimental affect on viability. Both the original and most recent schemes
have been subject to a viability appraisal, which have been subject to independent
review by a valuer and quantity surveyor appointed to act on behalf of the Council.

5.57 National planning guidance explains the role of viability assessments; a
process of assessing whether a site is financially viable, by looking at whether the
value generated by a development is more than the cost of developing it. This

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 61

includes looking at the key elements of - gross development value, costs, land
value, landowner premium, and developer return.

5.58 For land value, the benchmark land value is used, this is based upon the
existing use value, allowance for a premium to the landowner (to incentivise the sale
and takes into account the implications of abnormal costs; site-specific infrastructure
costs; and professional site fees). The guidance states that “where viability
assessment is used to inform decision making under no circumstances will the price
paid for land be a relevant justification for failing to accord with relevant policies in
the plan”. A standard input is reasonable profit for a developer, of between 15% and
20%.

5.59 The Council’s viability review of the scheme determines that if a profit of 15%
is allowed for, the scheme delivers a deficit of £1,319,308; the scheme is unable to
make any s106 contributions. In accordance with the national planning guidance it
Is recommended that a viability re-review mechanism is an obligation of panning
permission (included in the s106 agreement). The Council’s independent review
(referred to in 5.66) advises —

“Should the scheme be granted planning approval, we strongly advice that the
Authority carry out a further review of viability at the delivery stage in order to
accurately understand the viability of the scheme which, according to the applicants
figures will need to change significantly in order for the development to proceed. It is
important that the Authority retain the opportunity to recover any planning gain and
S106 contributions that may potentially become available”.

5.60 In accordance with previous viability re-appraisals on such large-scale sites,
the Council would require a review to include —

- An updated appraisal of the approved scheme, including quantity surveyor (QS)
appraisals from suitably qualified consultants to capture actual costs and a review
of revenue, depending on delivery i.e. whether the development is held as an
investment or sold on completion (as is envisaged by the current appraisal).

- An independent consultant appointed by the Council to provide a due diligence
check of the reasonableness of the appraisal.

- This review would form the baseline for an overage calculation to be undertaken
at a suitable point subsequent to start on site but prior to completion.

- A financial contribution (capped at policy compliance) would be required if the
scheme were to achieve a profit in excess of 15%. Any surplus in this adjusted
appraisal would be paid as a commuted sum in lieu of affordable housing.

- All costs to covered by the applicant.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 62
Promotion of sustainable transport

5.61 NPPF Paragraph 109 advises significant development should be focused on
locations which are or can be made sustainable, through limiting the need to travel
and offering a genuine choice of transport modes. This can help to reduce
congestion and emissions, and improve air quality and public health. Paragraph
116 applications for development should —

- address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all
modes of transport;

- create places that are safe, secure and attractive — which minimise the scope for
conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles, avoid unnecessary street
clutter, and respond to local character and design standards;

- allow for the efficient delivery of goods, and access by service and emergency
vehicles.

5.62 The scheme is in a sustainable location, in the heart of the city and within the

footstreets. An essentially car free development is totally appropriate in this

location. The scheme is able to provide 2 disabled car parking spaces for the PBSA

(in space behind 19 Coney Street). It has been evidenced this is sufficient, based

on the amount and type of accommodation proposed and national statistics on

requirements for the particular age group.

5.63 At least 5% rooms are fully accessible (rooms can also accommodate
ambulant users and can be adapted depending on specific needs). An access
statement, strategy and associated package of drawings has been issued which
explains how inclusive access would be provided throughout the scheme. This
includes level access for all users of the building, including to the cycle storage.
Cycle storage has 5% of provision being for over-sized cycles as recommended in
LTN 1/20.

5.64 The public realm design has been subject to input from accessibility groups
(workshop held in May 2023). The revised plans for the riverside walkway and
Waterloo Place were informed by this workshop, including lighting, provision of
seating, gradients and widths of walkway areas. Student accommodation entrances
were relocated to Coney Street to avoid the need to use the ramps and steps on
Waterloo Place.

5.65 Waterloo Place would include 14 cycle spaces for public use. This is highly
beneficial as servicing and access requirements prevent any stands being
positioned on Coney Street. Cycle storage for the student accommodation is
approx. 60%. This is consistent with that approved at other PBSA sites; post

occupation monitoring evidences this is more than sufficient to meet demand. There
Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 63

are covered and secure stores along with shower and changing facilities for the
commercial units; this is an enhancement over the existing provision on site for the
commercial units. Further space for cycle storage has been identified on the plans
for each zone (in the cycle strategy) for expansion in back of house areas for the
retail and leisure units. A planning condition would typically be used to require
ongoing monitoring of cycle stores and triggers for installation of further spaces if
demand requires.

5.66 Areas for waste storage are provided within the building, in the lower section.

The waste storage is in a discreet location and will not harm visual amenity. Due to
the development type the scheme will be subject to a commercial collection service.
The site, as previously, will need to have servicing arrangements that works around
the footstreets regulations, as is typical in the city centre.

Flood Risk & drainage
Flood risk

5.67 Policy ENV4 of the 2018 DLP is in accordance with NPPF para. 173 which
states that when determining applications, the LPA should only consider
development appropriate in areas at risk of flooding where, informed by a site-
specific flood risk assessment, it can be demonstrated that:

- Within the site, the most vulnerable development is located in areas of lowest
flood risk unless there are overriding reasons to prefer a different location.

- Development is appropriately flood resilient and resistant.

- Itincorporates sustainable drainage systems, unless there is clear evidence that
would be inappropriate.

- Any residual risk can be safely managed.

- And safe access and escape routes are included where appropriate, as part of an
agreed emergency plan.

5.68 Where demolition and rebuild is proposed the proposed development is
located within the floodplain of the River Ouse (part Flood Risk Zone 2 and part
zone 3) and therefore has a high probability of flooding. These elements of the
scheme therefore need to pass the sequential test and, due to the provision of the
student accommodation, the exception test. The commercial uses are classed (in
NPPF flood risk terms) as less vulnerable; the student accommodation more
vulnerable.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 64

Sequential Test

5.69 The LPA needs to be satisfied in all cases that the proposed development
would be safe and not lead to increased flood risk elsewhere. The aim of the
sequential test is to steer new development to areas at the lowest probability of
flooding (Zone 1). The NPPG states that when applying the Sequential Test, a
pragmatic approach on the availability of alternatives should be taken: "the area to
apply the Sequential Test across will be defined by local circumstances relating to
the catchment area for the type of development proposed. For some developments
this may be clear ... in other cases it may be identified from other Local Plan
policies, such as the need for affordable housing within a town centre, or a specific
area identified for regeneration. The York city centre area is a reasonable catchment
area in this case given the composition of uses.

5.70 The proposed composition of uses will enhance the vitality and viability of the
city centre and provides a riverside walkway and associated uses that are aspired to
in the Central Historic Core Conservation Area Appraisal. The accommodation
proposed on the upper floors is an essential component of the scheme, to enable
other benefits. Due to the evident regeneration benefits that are site-specific the
sequential test is passed.

Exception Test

5.71 For the Exception Test to be passed it must be demonstrated that a) the
development provides wider sustainability benefits to the community that outweigh
flood risk and b) a site-specific flood risk assessment must demonstrate that the
development will be safe for its lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its
users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, where possible, will reduce flood
risk overall (para. 170 of the NPPF).

5.72 The exception test is passed. Flood risk itself is addressed by design. The
development is at a level that means it is safe from flooding. The proposals raise
the internal Finished Flood Level (FFL) to a minimum level of 11.320m AOD (and
also the outside space) so that it is above the 1 in 100 year + 50% climate change
flood level. Entrances to the PBSA are all from Coney Street, in Flood Zone 1.
Flood risk would not be increased elsewhere, because —

- There will be no reduction in Flood Zone 3b ‘functional floodplain’ areas by the
inclusion of a raised external deck that will permit flood waters to pass beneath.

- The proposed surface water discharge rate will reduce the existing discharge rate
by 30% in accordance with The City of York Council SuDS (sustainable drainage)
Guidance for Developers (Aug 2018).

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 65

5.73 The wider sustainability benefits provided by the scheme relate to the
economic, social and environmental benefits arising from the mixed-use scheme
and enhancements to the riverside setting that will have significant regeneration
benefits for the city centre and make a positive contribution towards reducing carbon
emissions, because the development is in a sustainable location, essentially car
free, and the buildings would be required to achieve BREEAM excellent.

Drainage

5.74 In accordance with DLP 2018 policy ENV5 surface water run-off will be
reduced compared to the existing rate. The drainage strategy has been agreed in
principle and site-specific details would be approved through planning condition,
which is standard practice.

Sustainable design & construction

5.75 DLP 2018 policy CC2 sets out the sustainable design and construction
requirements that all new development (by type) must adhere to and demonstrate in
a Sustainability Statement. In summary, the policy requirements are:

- New residential development —carbon emissions — a reduction of a minimum of
31% over and above the requirements of Building Regulations Part L (2013), of
which at least 19% should come from energy efficiency measures. Pending
changes to the Building Regulations the aim is to achieve a reduction of up to
75% and a water consumption rate of 110 litres per person per day (calculated as
part G of the Building Regulations).

- Non-residential development over 100sgm internal floor area - meet BREEAM
‘excellent’ standard (or equivalent).

5.76 The applicant’s sustainability statement advises that a pre-assessment was
undertaken and the scheme can achieve BREEAM Excellent. It covers the aspect
of BREEAM each element of the scheme would be considered under. The carbon
reductions specified in CC2 will be required for the new-build PBSA.

Biodiversity

5.77 NPPF paragraph 180 advises decisions should contribute to and enhance the
environment by minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity. The

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 66

application was made in 2022 and in advance of national requirements to achieve at
least a 10% biodiversity net gain.

5.78 The applicants have issued a biodiversity calculation using the DEFRA metric.
This shows the scheme will significantly exceed a 10% net gain. Ecological reports
have been issued that determine protected species would not be harmed and
habitat enhancement is proposed. These matters can be secured through planning
condition.

Open Space

5.79 The NPPF advises that planning decisions should aim to create healthy and
inclusive places. Paragraph 96 states ‘access to a network of high-quality open
spaces and opportunities for sport and physical activity is important for the health
and well-being of communities. Planning policies should be based on robust and up-
to-date assessments of the need for open space, sport and recreation facilities
(including quantitative or qualitative deficits or surpluses) and opportunities for new
provision. Information gained from the assessments should be used to determine
what open space, sport and recreational provision is needed, which plans should
then seek to accommodate’.

5.80 Policy GI6 (new open space provision) of the DLP 2018 states ‘all residential
development proposals should contribute to the provision of open space for
recreation and amenity’... ‘The precise type of on-site provision required will depend
on the size and location of the proposal and the existing open space provision in the
area. Where there are deficiencies in certain types of open space provision in the
area surrounding a proposed development, the Council will seek variations in the
component elements to be provided by the developer to help to overcome them'.
The policy goes on to state that the Council will encourage on-site provision where
possible but off-site provision will be considered acceptable in certain
circumstances.

5.81 The Open Space and Green Infrastructure Update 2017 (referred to in the
DLP 2018) identifies the levels of amenity space required. This is not typically
capable of being provided on urban sites as there is not the space. As such an off-
site contribution can be requested. This must however meet the CIL Regulations —
be necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, reasonable in
scale and kind and directly related to the development. Typically for student
accommodation there has been a requirement for on-site amenity space (or off site

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 67

if practical due to site specific constraints). Sport contributions are not requested as
these are provided on campus by the universities.

5.82 The scheme provides 560 sgm external space within courtyards which would
be for residents use only. In addition Waterloo Place, and also the riverside
walkway are spaces which will provide public amenity space. This is a substantial
provision of open space for an urban area (which will also have biodiversity value).
Officers are satisfied the scheme is broadly compliant with open space policies.

Fire risk

5.83 The NPPG advises that fire statements are required, setting out fire safety
considerations specific to the development when (relevant buildings) contain two or
more dwellings or educational accommodation and meet the height condition of 18m
or more in height (this relates to the height of accommodation rather than the entire
building), or 7 or more storeys.

5.84 The 6-storey section of zone 4 is approx. 18m to the ceiling of the top floor a
fire strategy has been issued with the application which explains the provisions
within the buildings and how Building Regulation compliance would be secured.

Overall Planning Balance

5.85 Less than substantial harm to heritage assets; to the character and
appearance of the conservation area, at the lower end of less than substantial has
been identified. There is also less than substantial harm to 4 Spurriergate; the side
elevation of such would be uncharacteristically (and unexpectedly) exposed by the
creation of Waterloo Place.

5.86 Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 advises that in considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority
shall pay special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or
exercise of any features of special architectural or historic interest which it
possesses. Section 72 requires the Local Authority must pay special attention to the
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the
conservation area in exercising its planning duties.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 68

5.87 NPPF para.205 states “when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should
be given to the asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater
the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to
substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance”. Para.
208 goes on to advise that “where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should
be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate,
securing its optimum viable use”.

5.88 The National Planning Practice Guidance sets out what is meant by the term
public benefits and states that “public benefits ... could be anything that delivers
economic, social or environmental objectives as described in the National Planning
Policy Framework (paragraph 8). Public benefits should ... be of a nature or scale to
be of benefit to the public at large and not just be a private benefit. However,
benefits do not always have to be visible or accessible to the public ... for example,
works to a listed private dwelling which secure its future as a designated heritage
asset could be a public benefit.

5.89 The scheme is also contrary to DLP 2018 policy because on viability grounds
it is unable to provide an off-site contribution to affordable housing. An under-
provision of affordable housing as a principle could be given substantial weight in
the planning balance; the DLP 2018 explains how the site allocations only meet a
proportion of overall affordable housing need and to meet the target within the plan,
windfall sites need to contribute. However the lack of contribution has been
financially justified in this case and the scheme delivers multiple other benefits that
need to go into the planning balance.

5.90 The public benefits include social, economic and environmental considerations
and clearly outweigh the less than substantial harm to heritage assets identified.

5.91 DLP 2018 policy SS3 advises development proposals in the city centre will be
guided by the principles to —

- Revitalise the streets, places and spaces of the city centre and key commercial
developments will be delivered.

- Conserve and enhance the existing historic character whilst encouraging
contemporary high-quality developments that add to the sense of place and
create a prestigious and desirable location for thriving businesses.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 69

5.92 The background text refers to upper floors in the city centre and their under-
use. it states proposals that bring upper floors in York City Centre back into an
appropriate use are encouraged to ensure that upper floors do not become a wasted
resource, to the detriment of the economy and an imbalance in the life of the city
centre. In particular, the reuse of upper floors for residential use is encouraged.

This approach is aligned with NPPF policy on making effective use of land which
requires planning decisions “give substantial weight to the value of using suitable
brownfield land within settlements for homes and other identified needs” and
“‘promote and support the development of under-utilised land and buildings,
especially if this would help to meet identified needs for housing where land supply
is constrained and available sites could be used more effectively”. Further DLP
2018 policy SS3 looks to promote and integrate the universities within the city centre
and housing delivery.

5.93 The proposals meet national and local policy requirements to make effective
use of land, the use of the upper floors for student accommodation, for which it is
accepted there is identified need, are given substantial weight.

5.94 Whilst 19 Coney Street is a building of merit its side elevations leading down
to the river are exposed. This is not an intentional arrangement; the scale and
exposed blank side elevations appear uncomfortable in the riverside townscape.
Overall the current riverside elevation is not attractive with the backs of retail units
evident in riverside views.

5.95 The scheme provides an active riverside frontage comprising of active
frontages (on all floors) along with new public realm along the river. The variety in
massing and roof form respects the character and appearance of the Central
Historic Core Conservation Area.

5.96 In this respect the scheme is aligned with the aspirations for the city centre in
the DLP 2018 (SS3) — it would enhance the setting of the River Ouse and its
frontage, and deliver an attractive, vibrant and bustling environments with improved
access to the riverside and linkages to other parts of the city centre.

5.97 Creation of new pedestrianised public realm adheres with policy SS3 in
meeting the policy requirement to design streets around place and quality, not
vehicle movement, creating civilised streets that make the city centre easy,
enjoyable and safe to move around.

5.98 The scheme includes proposals to visually improve a significant number of
shopfronts along Coney Street and also create new active shop frontages, along
Waterloo Place and the riverside.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 70

5.99 The composition of uses have economic and social benefits. The works are in
the interest of the continued viability of the listed buildings on site by bringing them
into more comprehensive use through residential occupation of the upper floors.
There are economic gains that would be derived through both the provision of a
range of new commercial uses, an increased population in part of the city centre and
public realm which will attract visitors and trade. The benefits are helping to meet
identified housing need and there are strong interlinked benefits such uses bring to
the vitality of city centres. In York this is recognisable in Fossgate and Walmgate,
where streets are significantly more vibrant as a consequence of the introduction of
PBSA.

5.100 The proposed high-quality development along the riverside, public realm
and landscaping to open up the river frontage (as recommended in the Council’s CA
appraisal) will demonstrably improve the way this part of the CA appears and
functions, bringing a significant benefit to the vitality and viability of the city centre.
These benefits are also social benefits due to the creation of high-quality, well-
designed public realm, which facilitates activity and social interaction, contributing to
health, well-being.

5.101 There are environmental benefits; the biodiversity value of the site is
improved, and the amount of development proposed in a location that justifies a car
free development makes a significant contribution to York’s aspirations achieve zero
carbon and reduce private car usage.

5.102 In summary the public benefits in favour of the scheme are as follows -
Economic

- Competitive economy & support for growth; making the city centre more
vibrant and improving the public realm.

In accordance with the NPPF these benefits attract significant weight.
Social
- Provision of vibrant communities a number and range of homes to meet need.

- Improved design; townscape and provision of public realm creating safe
places and open space.

- Provision of Waterloo Place which would become a new public space, be of
biodiversity value and complement commercial units in the city centre.

Substantial weight.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 71

Environmental

- The significance of listed buildings on Coney Street is enhanced by providing
a new viable use of the upper floors, respecting historic plan form and better
revealing historic rear elevations by the removal of unsympathetic C20 extensions.
The scheme in this respect is consistent with advice in NPPF para. 203 which states
that in determining applications Local Planning Authorities should take into account
the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation.

- Improving biodiversity

- Moving to a low carbon economy - aligned with York’s aspiration to be zero
carbon. The buildings will meet policy standards for design and construction and
importantly deliver car free living in the city centre.

Moderate weight.

Equalities Assessment

5.103 The scheme has been considered with regard to the Equality Act 2010,
in particular taking into account the proposed mix of uses and accessibility
requirements and it is not considered that there are any specific equality implications
in regards to this application and a full Equalities Impact Assessment is not required.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The principle of development accords with the economic and social objectives
of the NPPF in respect of the economy and supporting vibrant communities and
delivering a range of homes and DLP 2018 policy SS3 which relates to the city
centre and its role in achieving the economic and social aspiration of the plan. In
applying the NPPF the decision-maker must give significant weight to the economic
benefits of the scheme and substantial weight to the delivery of housing that meets
an identified need. The provision of new public realm is also a substantial benefit
the scheme would deliver.

6.2 When a local planning authority finds that a proposed development would
harm a designated heritage asset the authority must give considerable importance
and weight to the desirability of avoiding such harm to give effect to its statutory

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 72

duties under sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990.

6.3 The harm resulting from the scheme to designated heritage assets is
considered less than substantial in terms of the impact on the character of the CA.
The lack of off-site affordable housing (justified on viability grounds) is also a factor
that weighs against the scheme. However substantial public benefits have been
identified that clearly outweigh the harm.

6.4 Technical issues can be addressed and planning conditions/obligations can
secure benefits identified where necessary, such as retaining the larger retail
floorplate in 19 Coney Street and provision of public access to Waterloo Place and
the river walkway.

6.5 There are multiple public benefits to the scheme which cumulatively are
substantial; they are economic, social and environmental. These benefits clearly
outweigh the identified harm to the conservation area. In applying the NPPF and
local planning policy and considering the benefits of the scheme overall clearly
outweigh the harm and justify approval of the scheme.

6.6 If the Council were minded to approve the companion application for listed
building consent then referral to the Secretary of State would be required, due to the
objection from a statutory consultee which is one of the amenity societies, following
the Arrangements for handing heritage applications: notification to Historic England
and National Amenity Societies and the Secretary of State Direction 2021.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve subject to Secretary of State Decision

7.1 That delegated authority to be given to the Head of Planning and Development
Services to:

- Determine the final detail of the planning conditions and planning obligations
below.

- Refer the companion application for listed building consent to the Secretary of
State for Communities and Local Application Government under the requirements
of Sections 12 and 15 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
Act 1990, and should the application for listed building consent not be called in by
the Secretary of State, then APPROVE this application subject to planning
conditions and completion of a s106 legal agreement to secure the matters listed
below.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 73

S106 heads of terms

- Viability review mechanism
- Scheme for public access to Waterloo Place and riverside walk.

Conditions
1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2 APPROVED PLANS

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Location plan 0001 P3
Site plan 10000 P4
Phasing plan 1200 P4

Landscape GA P20997-00-001-GIL-0100 revision 11

Typical student room 7000 P2

Site wide Elevations

Coney Street 1301 P4

Riverside 1300 P4

Listed Buildings - Door Types and Schedule 5020 P2
Riverside wall

Zone 3 section
Zone 4 section

1501 P4
1500 P4

Cycle strategy 1200 P3

Cycle stores 1205 P1

Access strategy 1203 P2, 1204 P2, 1206 P1

Refuse strategy 1201 P3

Zone 2 (19 Coney Street) and Zone 3 (21, 23, 25-27, 29-31, 33 Coney Street)

Floor plans and roof

Level 00 1100 P5
Level 01 1101 P4
Level 02 1102 P4
Level 03 1103 P4
Level 04 1104 P4
Level 05 1105 P4

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM

Item No: ba



Page 74

Roof 1106 P4

Floor plans showing works to listed buildings
1107 P3
1108 P4
1109 P4
1110 P3
1111 P3
1112 P3

Doors, joinery and ceiling, cornice plans
5002 P1
5003 P1
5004 P1
5012 P1
5013 P2
5014 P2

Elevations

Coney Street elevation 1300 P3

No0.19 Coney Street 1305 P3

No.21 Coney Street 1306 P1, 1307 P3
No.23 Coney Street 1308 P3, 1309 P2
No0.25-27 Coney Street 1310 P3

No0.33 Coney Street Rear 1314 P2

Large scale details 2002 P4, 2004 P3
Internal door types 5020 P2

Zone 4

Proposed demolition

0601 P3
0602 P3
0603 P3
0604 P3
0605 P3
0606 P3
Floor plans and roof
Level 00 1100 P5
Level 01 1101 P4
Level 02 1102 P4
Level 03 1103 P4
Level 04 1104 P4

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM

Item No: ba



Page 75

Level 05 1105 P4
Level 06 1106 P3
Roof 1107 P4

Floor plans and roof showing works to listed buildings
1108 P4
1109 P4
1110 P4
1111 P4
1112 P4
1113 P4

Listed Buildings - Doors / Joinery Plans
Level 02 5002 P4
Level 03 5003 P3
Level 04 5004 P4

Listed Buildings - Ceiling / Cornice Plans
Level 02 5012 P4
Level 03 5013 P3
Level 04 5014 P4

Elevations

Coney Street 1300 P3

Riverside 1301 P3

Waterloo Place 1302 P3

Courtyard 1303 P3 & 1304 P4

No0.39-41 Coney Street Demolition Elevation (Front) 1306 P2
No0.39-41 Coney Street Proposed Elevation (Front) 1307 P3
No. 39-41 Coney Street Demolition Elevation (Rear) 1309 P2
No. 39-41 Coney Street Proposed Elevation (Rear) 1310 P3

Sections

1500 P3, 1501 P3, 1502 P3, 1503 P3, 1504 P3, 1505 P3, 1506 P3

Large scale details
2002 P3, 2003 P3, 2004

Proposed Works to YW Infrastructure drawing
202070-BGP-01-00-DR-C-52-01144 rev PO1.

Flood zone/storage drawings
202070-BGP-01-00-DR-C-52-01141 P02
202070-BGP-01-00-DR-C-52-01142 P02
202070-BGP-01-00-DR-C-52-01143 rev P01

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM

Item No: ba



Page 76

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 Contract for redevelopment required prior to demolition

Prior to any demolition works in the relevant zone a binding contract for the carrying
out and completion of the works of redevelopment of the relevant zone, for which
planning permission has been granted, shall be entered into, and evidence of that
contract submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the demolition is followed by immediate rebuilding; to maintain
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and to prevent the
unnecessary loss of office space.

4  Construction management

Prior to commencement of the development, a Construction Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP) for minimising the creation of noise, vibration and dust
during the demolition, site preparation and construction phases of the development
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The CEMP shall also contain a complaints procedure which shall be be followed in
the event of a complaint being received about noise, dust, vibration and/or lighting.
All works on site shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved CEMP.

Reason: In the interest of protecting amenity.
5  Archaeology - evaluation

a) No archaeological evaluation or development (apart from demolition above
ground or preliminary groundworks) shall take place until a written scheme of
investigation (WSI) for a phase 2 evaluation has been submitted to and approved by
the local planning authority in writing. The WSI should conform to standards and
guidance set by LPA and the Chartered Institute for Archaeologists.

b) The site investigation and post investigation assessment required by part a of this
condition shall be completed in accordance with the programme set out in the
Written Scheme of Investigation approved under part a of this condition and the
provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of results and archive
deposition will be secured. (This part of the condition shall not be discharged until
these elements have been fulfilled in accordance with the programme set out in the
approved WSI).

c) A copy of a report on the evaluation, final 12 month hydrological monitoring report
and updated archaeological remains management plan shall be deposited with City

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 77

of York Historic Environment Record to allow public dissemination of results within 3
months of fieldwork completion (or such other period as may be agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority).

Reason: In accordance with NPPF section 16 as the site lies within an Area of
Archaeological Importance and the development will affect important archaeological
deposits which must be preserved in-situ or recorded prior to destruction.

6  Archaeological remains management plan (ARMP)

a) An updated ARMP shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval
following the phase 2 evaluation update and prior to commencement of
development (apart from demolition above ground or preliminary groundworks). The
ARMP shall include details of archaeological/hydrological monitoring, and
excavation. Archaeological mitigation during construction shall be completed in
accordance with the programme set out in the approved ARMP thereatfter.

b) Post-investigation assessment shall be completed in accordance with the
programme set out in the approved ARMP and the provision made for analysis,
publication and dissemination of results and archive deposition will be secured.
(This part of the condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been
fulfilled in accordance with the programme set out in the ARMP).

c) A copy of a final report and evidence of publication shall be deposited with City of
York Historic Environment Record to allow public dissemination of results within 9
months of fieldwork completion or such other period as may be agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In accordance with NPPF section 16 as the site lies within an Area of
Archaeological Importance and the development will affect important archaeological
deposits which must be preserved in-situ or recorded prior to destruction.

7  Archaeology - Hydrological monitoring

Evidence of provision for monitoring of and analysis and reporting on data from the
hydrological and water quality monitoring devices for a period of 5 years (unless an
alternative timeframe is approved in writing by the local planning authority following
other archaeological investigation) shall be submitted in the form of an annual
interim report in accordance with the terms of the approved WSI and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. A copy of the final report on the
archaeological programme detailed in the WSI will be deposited with City of York
Historic Environment Record within six months of the completion of the monitoring
period.

Reason: In accordance with Section 16 of NPPF and guidance from Historic
England on in-situ preservation of organic deposits and subsequent monitoring.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 78

8  Archaeology - building recording

A programme of archaeological building recording, specifically a written description
and photographic recording of the buildings within the site which are listed and
nos.19 and 21 Coney Street (which are buildings of merit) and the river wall, to
Historic England Level of Recording 2, shall be submitted to and approved by the
local planning authority in writing prior to commencement of development.

The programme of recording and reporting shall be completed in accordance with
the approved details thereafter and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of results and digital archive deposition with ADS will be secured. A
copy of a report shall be deposited with City of York Historic Environment Record
and digital archive images with ADS (to allow public dissemination of results) within
3 months of fieldwork completion (or such other period as may be agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority).

Reason: This condition is imposed in accordance with Section 16 of NPPF as the
buildings on this site are of archaeological and historic interest and must be
recorded prior to demolition, alteration or removal of fabric.

9  Archaeology - foundation design

No development (apart from demolition above ground or preliminary groundworks)
shall commence until a detailed scheme showing the scope and arrangement of
foundation design (including lift pits, flood storage and drainage (including
attenuation) but excluding areas where excavation has been accepted following
exhaustion of all design options on the Coney St frontage as set out in detail in the
ARMP) which preserve 95% of the deeper, most significant archaeological deposits
on the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: The site lies within an Area of Archaeological Importance. These details
are required to ensure

that disturbance of archaeological deposits by foundation and drainage are
minimised.

Note - The design shall ensure that to the rear of the original Coney Street building
line no destruction or disturbance shall be made to archaeological deposits below
8.5m AOD except for that caused by the boring or auguring of piles for the new
building foundation.

10 HWAY40 Dilapidation survey

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 79

Prior to works starting on site a dilapidation survey of the highways adjoining the site
shall be jointly undertaken with the Council and the results of which shall be agreed
in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the safety and good management of the public highway
the details of which must be recorded prior to the access to the site by any
construction vehicle.

11 Ecology - construction management

No ground works, demolition works and vegetation removal shall take place until a
construction management plan in respect of biodiversity (CMP: Biodiversity) has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. All
ground works, demolition works and vegetation removal shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved CMP: Biodiversity.

The CMP: Biodiversity shall include (but not be limited to) the following:

a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities.

b) Identification of 'biodiversity protection zones'.

C) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices)
to avoid or reduce impacts during construction.

d) Details of pollution prevention measures to avoid harm and potential mortality
to fish species from pollution

e) Details of biosecurity measures to stop the spread of waterborne diseases

a) and Invasive Non-Native Species,

f) Use of directional lighting during construction and operation, which will not
shine upon bat roosts, and forage and commuting routes.

g) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity
features.

h)  Programme of pre-commencement checking surveys, such as Otters and
nesting birds.

) Responsible persons and lines of communication.

), The roles and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or
similarly competent person.

K)  Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.

Reason: To facilitate the protection of notable/sensitive ecological features and
habitats on the application site and within the local area.

12  Ecology LEMP incorporating BNG metric

A Landscape Environment Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to the commencement of
the development. The development shall be carried out in accordance with details
shown on the approved LEMP. The content of the LEMP shall include the following:

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 80

a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed, in accordance with the
proposals in the Wold Ecology Biodiversity Net Gain Report issue 3.

b)  Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management.
c) Aims and objectives of management.

d)  Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives.

e) Prescriptions for management actions.

f) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of
being rolled forward over a five-year period).

g) Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the plan.
h)  Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures.

The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which
the long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the
management body(ies) responsible for its delivery. The plan shall also set out
(where the results from monitoring show that conservation aims and objectives of
the LEMP are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial action will be
identified, agreed and implemented so that the development still delivers the fully
functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved scheme.

Reason: In the interests of biodiversity, to comply with policy GI2 of the Publication
Draft Local Plan (2018) and secure the benefits of the scheme.

13 Ecology - biodiversity net gain

No development (apart from demolition above ground or preliminary groundworks)
shall commence in the relevant Zone until a biodiversity enhancement scheme has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the
commencement of works. The scheme shall include, but not be limited to the
recommendations set out in the Ecological Appraisal provided by Wold Ecology Ltd.
(July 2022) and a timetable for implementation. The proposed enhancement
measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and shall
be retained in that manner thereafter.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area, and to be in accordance with Paragraph 180 of the NPPF to contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment by minimising impacts on and providing
net gains for biodiversity, including establishing coherent ecological networks that
are more resilient to current and future pressures.

14  Ecology - external Lighting

All external lighting shall accord with Bat Conservation Trust Guidance (2018) Bats
and atrtificial lighting in the UK.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 81

Reason: To protect habitats of European Protected Species in accordance with
NPPF section 15.

15 Land Contamination

Prior to commencement of development in the relevant zone (excluding demolition),
a site investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken to assess the nature,
scale and extent of any land contamination and the potential risks to human health,
groundwater, surface water and other receptors. A written report of the findings must
be produced and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of
ground conditions and any risks arising from land contamination.

16 Land contamination — remediation

Where remediation works are shown to be necessary, development (excluding
demolition) shall not commence until a detailed remediation strategy has been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation
strategy must demonstrate how the site will be made suitable for its intended use
and must include proposals for the verification of the remediation works. It is
strongly recommended that the report is prepared by a suitably qualified and
competent person.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

17 Remediation - verification

Prior to first occupation or use, the approved remediation scheme shall be carried
out in accordance with its terms and a verification report that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to the
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems.

18 Drainage

There shall be no piped discharge of surface water from the development prior to
the completion of surface water drainage works, in accordance with details

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 82

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. If discharge to
public sewer is proposed, the information shall include —

- Evidence of existing positive drainage to public sewer and the current points of
connection.

- The means of restricting the discharge to public sewer to the existing rate less
a minimum 30 % reduction, based on the existing peak discharge rate duringa 1 in
1 year storm event, to allow for climate change.

- Storage volume calculations, using computer modelling, must accommodate a
1:30 year storm with no surface flooding, along with no internal flooding of buildings
or surface run-off from the site in a 1:100-year storm. Proposed areas within the
model must also include an additional 30% allowance for climate change. The
modelling must use a range of storm durations, with both summer and winter
profiles, to determine the worst case volume required.

- Details of the future management and maintenance of the drainage scheme.

Reason: To ensure that no surface water discharges take place and in the interest
of sustainable drainage.

19 Flood Risk

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment (20T2017 issue 004). Compensatory storage shall be provided as
stated in Appendix H of that document. The compensatory storage design shall be
submitted to, and be approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to the
commencement of works (apart from demolition and enabling works).

The design shall include -

- Detailed design drawings

- Calculations of loss and gain of storage.

- Management, and maintenance plans for the lifetime of the development, to
include details on how access will be provided for maintenance.

The approved design shall be fully implemented prior to occupation of the relevant
zone and shall thereafter be retained, operated and maintained for the lifetime of the
development.

Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future
occupants, and to prevent flooding elsewhere by ensuring that compensatory
storage of flood water is provided.

20 Materials

Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings or
other documents submitted with the application, samples of all proposed external

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 83

building materials to be used shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority, prior to the commencement of the construction of the
building envelope. For the avoidance of doubt, this includes vision and any non-
vision glazing, flat or pitched roofs. The development shall be carried out using the
approved materials.

Samples of materials shall include the following -

Brick Sample Panels

On-site sample panels of bricks, in each type of brick, in each type of bond,
including chosen mortar and pointing, and including any special brick features are to
be constructed. The sample panel shall be 2m by 1.2m minimum overall. If multiple
combinations of brick and/or bond are proposed each type to be 1m by 1.2m. The
agreed panel shall represent a minimum standard for the quality of workmanship
that the development should achieve, and the panel shall remain on site for the
duration of the brickwork package.

On-site mock-up sample constructions

The mock up shall be 1:1 scale but shortened overall sizes of elements can be
included. The contents and size of the mock-ups shall be agreed by the LPA in
advance of their construction.

Mock-up samples are to be carried out for Zone 3 and Zone 4 where different for the
following:

- Brick wall with feature staggered recessed brick planes, window, metal floor
spandrels integral with glazing, brick sill and parapet to head.

- Brick wall (different type) with feature staggered recessed brick planes, window,
part head of commercial level interface at bottom.

- Metal wall with window and metal roof interface.

- Raising of river wall treatment and interface with existing wall below and terrace
above, including sample floodwater apertures

Note: Sample materials shall be made available for inspection at the site. Please
make it clear in your approval of details application when the materials will be
available for inspection and where they are located. Samples should be provided of
sufficiently large size to be able to appropriately judge the material (including
joints/fixings where an important part of the visual quality of the material), and to be
provided together where materials are seen together.

Flat roofs are expected to be either stone ballast finished, paved or green/brown (no
exposed single ply membranes). Metal roofs are expected to be traditional standing
seam type. Samples are expected to be physical (not photographic) and should be
provided of sufficiently large size to be able to appropriately judge the material
(including joints/fixings where an important part of the visual quality of the material),
and to be provided together where materials are seen together.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 84

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the impacts on heritage assets.
21 Large scale details

Prior to commencement of construction (of the building envelope) of the relevant
zone the following large-scale details (to include section drawings and 3D drawings)
and manufacturers details of the external materials shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the works shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.

- Typical sections for new build at 1:20 scale - selection of typical bay construction
for differing material types, with variations for differing types of recessed feature
plane, including windows, ventilation grilles, guarding and any balconies, wall
interfaces at ground, set back upper floor transitions, roof, open or enclosed plant
room wall construction, together with overall maximum height AOD.

- Typical residential and commercial entrance areas including external soffit.

- Tunnel/ginnels and overhangs including soffits.

- Shopfronts.

- 19 Coney Street alterations to rooftop.

- Zone 4 folded roof detail.

- Riverside wall.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the impacts on heritage assets.
22  External equipment

Any ancillary external equipment associated with servicing the building shall adhere
to the following requirements —

- For flat roofs, without a solid roof parapet 1m or higher: service protrusions are
not allowed within 2m of any building edge. Any service protrusions lower than
1m above roof finish level elsewhere are allowed. Any proposals for service
protrusions higher than 1m above flat roof level elsewhere are to be submitted to,
and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to installation (but should
generally be expected not to be permitted).

- For flat roofs with a solid roof parapet 1m or higher: any service penetrations
higher than top of parapet shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority prior to installation.

- Pitched roofs: service penetrations are not permissible, unless approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority (through submission of drawings) prior to
installation.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 85

- Permanent external wall fixed equipment used to service the building are not
permissible, unless approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (through
submission of drawings) prior to installation.

- Plant rooms equipment is not to be higher than plant room screening.

- Open style roof edge protection is not permissible, unless subsequently approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. (Where provided it is expected to be for
visual inspection purposes only, designed to minimise visual impact, and at least
2m set back from the edge of building line).

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the impacts on heritage assets.

23  Side elevation of 4 Spurriergate - scheme for restoration (following demolition
of Boots)

Following demolition of 43 Coney Street a scheme for making good the exposed
side wall of 4 Spurriergate (and buildings to the rear) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the works shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of Zone 04.
(The scheme as shown on proposed design intent boundary wall is not an approved
drawing and any logo to the gable end of 4 Spurriergate should not be considered
approved).

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the impacts on heritage assets.
24 Public realm

The landscaping schemes, as shown on the approved landscape general
arrangement plan and proposed roof plan shall be completed in full prior to first
occupation of the leisure units and student accommodation within the relevant
phase (as shown on the approved phasing plan).

Prior to installation of the scheme details of the surfacing materials, furniture
(including lighting) and the species and stock size of soft landscaping of Waterloo
Place and the rooftop garden to 19 Coney Street shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance
with the approved details.

Any trees or plants which die, are removed or become seriously damaged or
diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size
and species, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees alternatives in writing.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity as the landscape scheme and public

realm is integral to the amenity of the development and the conservation area
setting.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 86

25 BREEAM

The development shall be constructed to a BRE Environmental Assessment Method
(BREEAM) standard of at least 'excellent’ (or equivalent). A Post Construction stage
assessment shall be carried out and a Post Construction stage certificate shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority within 6 months of first occupation/use of
the building. Should the development fail to achieve a BREEAM standard of
‘excellent' (or equivalent), a report shall be submitted for the written approval of the
Local Planning Authority demonstrating what remedial measures shall be
undertaken to achieve a standard of 'excellent’. The approved remedial measures
shall then be undertaken within a timescale to be approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To fulfil the environmental objectives of the NPPF and support the
transition to a low carbon future, and in accordance with policy CC2 of the Draft
Local Plan 2018 (note it is agreed that the BREEAM assessment types can be as
reported in the sustainability statement reference LLO90-RPT A03).

26  Carbon reduction
The new build purpose built student accommodation shall achieve -

- A reduction in carbon emissions of at least 31% compared to the target emission
rate (of which at least 19% should come from energy efficiency measures) as
required under Part L of the Building Regulations 2013. In addition should up to a
75% reduction in carbon emissions over and above the requirements of Building
Regulations Part L (2013) not be achieved, it shall be demonstrated that such
reductions would not be feasible or viable and such details shall be agreed and
approved by the local planning authority.

- A water consumption rate of no more than 110 litres per person per day (calculated
as per Part G of the Building Regulations).

Reason: To fulfil the environmental objectives of the NPPF and support the
transition to a low carbon future, and in accordance with policy CC2 of the Draft
Local Plan 2018.

27  Secure by design

A scheme of secure by design measures for the relevant phase shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of the phase (apart from demolition and enabling works) and the
works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The scheme
shall include access control and lighting to communal areas.

Reason: To create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible in accordance with
Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 87

NPPF paragraph 135f.
28 Cooking odours (cafe/restaurant)

Should the first use of any of the commercial/leisure units be a cafe or restaurant a
scheme shall be submitted to the local planning authority prior to first occupation of
that unit to demonstrate there shall be adequate facilities for the treatment and
extraction of cooking odours.

Details of the extraction plant or machinery and any filtration system required shall
be submitted to the local planning authority for written approval. Once approved it
shall be installed and fully operational before the proposed use first opens and shall
be appropriately maintained and serviced thereafter in accordance with
manufacturer guidelines.

Reason: To protect the amenity of student accommodation provided within the
building.

Note: It is recommended that the applicant refers to the updated Guidance produced
by EMAQ in September 2018 titled "Control of Odour and Noise from Commercial
Kitchen Exhaust Systems (September 2018)" for further advice on how to comply
with this condition. The applicant shall provide information on the location and level
of the proposed extraction discharge, the proximity of receptors, size of kitchen or
number of covers, and the types of food proposed. A risk assessment in accordance
with APPENDIX 3 of the EMAQ guidance shall then be undertaken to determine the
level of odour control required. Details should then be provided on the location and
size/capacity of any proposed methods of odour control, such as filters, electrostatic
precipitation, carbon filters, ultraviolet light/ozone treatment, or odour neutraliser,
and include details on the predicted air flow rates in m3/s throughout the extraction
system.

29 Noise (student accommodation)

The habitable rooms within the student accommodation hereby permitted shall
incorporate at least the glazing specification as detailed in table 4.1: Scheme of
Sound Insulation Works within the ENS noise impact assessment reference NIA-
10579-22-10747-v2.

Reason: In the interests of future occupants amenity, in accordance with NPPF
paragraphs 135 and 191.

30 Site facilities

The cycle parking storage, refuse bin storage, and disabled parking spaces shall be
provided, in accordance with the approved plans prior to first occupation of the
relevant phase. The facilities shall be retained for such use at all times.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 88

- All lift doors which provide access to and from cycle stores shall be at least
1.3m wide.

- Two tier cycling storage shall be gas assisted.

- Internal lighting shall be provided to all cycle stores.

Post occupation use of the cycle facilities shall be monitored annually and the
results issued to the local planning authority in writing. Should occupation levels
exceed 90% of any individual store, a strategy that details a scheme for the review
of cycle demand for each of the uses on site and the provision of extra spaces shall
be submitted to the local planning authority and implemented in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure there is suitable cycle storage; to promote sustainable transport
and in the interests of good design in accordance with sections 9 and 12 of the
NPPF.

31 Public benefits - external improvements to buildings

Prior to first occupation of the purpose-built student accommodation hereby
permitted the approved external works to the relevant building shall be fully
implemented in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: To secure the public benefits of the scheme in accordance with NPPF
section 16.

32 Retail units (size)

The retail units as shown on the approved plans shall remain in a Class E use and
shall not be sub-divided to the effect that the amount of floorspace in any of the
retail units (as identified in the approved plans) is reduced, unless it is first approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority that space at level 00 in retail unit 01 is
required for additional cycle storage.

Reason: In the interests of the vitality and viability of the primary shopping street and
the primary shopping area; to ensure that it continues to provide a reasonable
amount of larger retail spaces. In accordance with NPPF paragraph 90.

33  Provision of amenities in PBSA
The amenities for the occupants of the student accommodation (communal living
areas, laundry, study rooms etc) shall be provided in accordance with the approved

floor plans prior to first occupation of the relevant phase/zone and shall be retained
for the lifetime of the development.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 89

Reason: In the interests of good design and the living conditions of the occupants of
the development.

34  Flood risk management

The development hereby permitted shall incorporate the following flood risk
avoidance measures -

The building management company, PBSA operator and tenants shall appoint
responsible persons to sign up for the flood warning service and monitor the 24-hour
flood warning risk provided by the EA. Prior to first occupation of the building the
building management company and the PBSA operator shall prepare an action plan
to avoid damage to any property stored within the basements, which shall include an
appropriate trigger point for removal and relocation of goods (including cycles), at
times of flooding. The plan shall be adhered to for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To manage flood risk, including reducing flood risk elsewhere.
35 Unexpected contamination

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved
development that was not previously identified, it must be reported in writing
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment
must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme
must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

Reason: To ensure that the site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of
ground conditions and any risks arising from land contamination.

36  Building services

The combined rating level of any building service noise associated with plant or
equipment at the site should not exceed the representative LA90 1 hour during the
hours of 07:00 to 23:00 or representative LA90 15 minutes during the hours of 23:00
to 07:00 at 1 metre from the nearest noise sensitive facades when assessed in
accordance with BS4142: 2014, inclusive of any acoustic feature corrections

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 90

associated with tonal, impulsive, distinctive or intermittent characteristics.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities
of the area.

37 Waste storage

Waste and recycling bins shall be stored in the refuse stores at all times ( except for
at times of collection in respect of the retail units).

Reason: In the interests of good design in accordance with section 12 of the NPPF.
To ensure there is suitable cycle storage and refuse storage areas.

38 Restriction of use - PBSA

The student accommodation hereby approved shall be used only as student housing
accommodation. No person other than a student registered with, and engaged in, a
course of full time further or higher education (in the relevant year) or a delegate
registered with and attending a part time educational course or seminar within the
City of York administrative boundary shall occupy any part of the development at
any time.

The owner, or site operator shall keep an up to date register of the name of each
person in occupation of the development together with course(s) attended. The
register shall be available for inspection by the local planning authority on demand
at all reasonable times.

Any occupation by other persons outside of term time shall only occur if a scheme
detailing the terms of such arrangements has been first approved in writing by the
local planning authority, and thereafter in accordance with the terms of such an
approved scheme.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in order to control the future occupancy of
the development, as otherwise the development would involve other requirements in
order to be NPPF compliant, such as potentially requirements in respect of
affordable housing, education and open space provision.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. The Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016 require a

permit or exemption to be obtained for any activities which will take place:

- on or within 8 metres of a main river (16 metres if tidal)

- on or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16
metres if tidal)

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 91

- on or within 16 metres of a sea defence

- involving quarrying or excavation within 16 metres of any main river, flood
defence (including a remote defence) or culvert

- on the floodplain of a main river if the activity could affect flood flow or storage
and potential impacts are not controlled by a planning permission

For further guidance please visit https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-
environmental-permits or contact our National Customer Contact Centre on 03708
506 506 (Monday to Friday, 8am to 6pm) or by emailing enquiries@environment-
agency.gov.uk.

The applicant should not assume that a permit will automatically be forthcoming
once planning permission has been granted, and we advise them to consult with us
at the earliest opportunity.

2. Yorkshire Water
The developer is advised that the presence of Yorkshire Water sewers in Zone 4.
Yorkshire Water have advised that -

- A stand-off distance of 5 (five) metres is required at each side of the sewer
centre-lines and it may not be acceptable to raise or lower ground levels over the
sewer, nor to restrict access to the manholes on the sewer.

- Trees should not be planted within 5 metres eitherside of the line of public sewers
crossing the site.

- A proposal by the developer to alter/divert a public sewer will be subject to
Yorkshire Water's requirements and formal procedure in accordance with Section
185 Water Industry Act 1991.

3. LEGAL AGREEMENT
Your attention is drawn to the existence of a legal obligation under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relating to this development

4. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH
In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome: sought revised plans to address heritage concerns and through the use of
planning conditions.

Application Reference Number: 22/02525/FULM Item No: 5a



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93

Site of 19 - 33 Coney Street York
22/02525/FULM

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

purriergate

Centre

Scale: 1:920

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Department |Env, Transport & Planning

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Site Location Plan

Date 16 October 2024

SLA Number [Not Set

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee A

To be held on 24t October 2024

G6 abed



Site of 19 to 33 Coney Street, York

22/02525/FULM: Redevelopment of 19 to 33 Coney Street, land to rear of 35 to 37
Coney Street and 39 Coney Street to 2 Spurriergate comprising conversion of
retained buildings and new build elements of 3 to 6 storeys to create
commercial/business/service floorspace (use class E), purpose-built student
accommodation (sui generis) and public realm works including riverside walkway,
landscaping and access further to partial demolition of buildings

AND:;

22/02526/LBC: Internal and external alterations associated with the redevelopment
of 19 to 33 Coney Street and 39 Coney Street to 2 Spurriergate (involving conversion
and new build elements) following full and partial demolition of buildings

o
o)
«Q
D
(o]
o

COUNCIL

V.



Site Location Plan

Page 97




Existing Site Plan

COUNCIL

i

L\ cily'of \!i kiCouncil Plan

)

Comshittee_Meeling - 24th e'iﬂ'e‘.-

86 9bed



Proposed
Elevations —
Coney Street

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

i

=
I_ TN L

e e
L

il

|:| Coney Street Context Elevation
1:250

[ x ] o - tvtns
1:1000

Copyight

form i fobigden wriess permissin is granted n wiing.

the attenion o brow + company.

,h

Bl i |||lllll - '§IIII P ; e = v:".: ;
i “" Tl -!-Ilqm-,,-lluL_ S [
o | ——__ B A T ® 5 e T = =v- :E -
_____ RE. — | S L I @
(¢
(o)
©

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

+company

o
Coney Street Masterplan, York

g
Proposed Coney Street Elevation

14/10/22 PLANNING

= —
varies - see drawing At

Pommow wmoTmne el tpe b Gewegrmber oo
20133-BC- ZZ- XX-DR- A- 1301 P4




oolER A 8 EiRDE Hig
T e

i\---

I
{

o __—d

|x w gy WA ﬂﬁlguﬂ R -

ii’ BT 108 | ‘

L 1 3 4
N’ -
g4 4 i
i

-

Coney Street Context Elevation
1:2%0

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Y

Proposed Elevations — Coney Street (Extract)

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

00T sbed



Capyrgt:

e cramng s e s copyrt o bren corparyany eprochcton
ot s TGS 3 70 W,

o attenion oftrown + Compeany.

Proposed e —

Elevations — Coney
Street Zone 3

. od windows
" " lomaichexsting style
throughout

< 1808 st
T 700
— New trrazzo & bre~m~

—  _ | shopiront with sing
central entrance

|I| Proposed Coney Street Elevation
1:100

@ Rod brick - Various tones

=

Anodised Metal - Brorze

Glazing - Anodised Metal Frame - Brorze

E Timber Shopfront - Various Colours
(Cast Stono Shopiront - Various Colours

1710524 Ganeralupcstes to scale, massing s layouts odowng
scussions wih councl

Existing Stono - Cleaned

b W brown

Pl +company
Slate

E Glazod Brick - White

Pt
Coney Street Riverside
Zore 3

@ Metal Lowres - Bronze —

/l

CITY OF [ [5] s saksiace Proposed Coney Street Elevation
Y ] I 'nn [ T %mm&mum = _
‘ ' R K P— 04/11/22 PLANNING
Pleasa refer to listed building elevations for — —
|Z|Key Plan - Elevations . ) . . ) o= A 2 4 6 8 A‘Io
COUNCIL 150 City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024 —_—

20133- BC- Z3- XX- DR- A - 1300 P3




Proonosed Elevations — Coney Street Zone 3 (Extract)

MATERIAL KEY

Red brick - Various ioes
Anodised Metal - Broros

Glazing - Anodisad Metal Frame - Bronze
Timbssr Shopiront - Warious Colours
Cast Stons Shopfront - Varisus Colours

MNew Rander

Glred Brick - Whie

Metal Lowsres - Bromns

FIEEIEEE

S - E Existing Stomne - Chanad
5 CITY OF E“‘“ Slass Balusirade
Hit & Miss Brickwark
Existing Rendar - Ceanad
COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024 8

Va,



Proposed

Elevations —

Coney Street Zone

4

CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

K y Plan - ations

EEE [

AAAAAAAAAAAAA

il
—l

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

[01 ] Rod brick - Various tones

[02] euttbrick - various torws

[0o] saw

\E‘ Cast stono shopiront - Various colours
[05] Gtz brick sa risor - Various colours

[06]  Timber shoptront -various colours

n Brick - Gray / Red - Various tones. Hit and
‘miss as part of flood stratogy

[10] Giazing - Motal anodzod ramo
[(1] curtain waling - Mota anocized framo and spancrel
\E\ Motal Lowres

\Z‘ Meotal standing seam - Copper

lE\ GRC - various tones

[16] Portoratad Prant Screon
) SRS,
/j :gw-'rw o arcas mh“ third p-ny |.m

NOTES

Plaasa rafor to fisted buing elvations for
vt St o e SRty

P3 17/052¢  Ganeralupcses to scale, massing and ayouts okowng
scussions wih councl

P2 og1z3  Panninglsse

P1 041122 PLANNING ISSU

brown
+company

T
Coney Strest Riverside
Zone 4
drawing:
Proposed Coney Street Elevations
- o
04/11/22  PLANNING
= o
1:100 A1
2 4 3 8 10
_:ﬂ:_:_:___l
I~

Forurbs s e el tps b megmster  mdson

20133 - BC- Z4- XX- DR- A - 1300 P3




Proposed Elevations — Coney
Street Zone 4 (Extract)

Qi — — — — — —— —— — L — R —

e Lowel 10 -
17

[I

Lowel Dt

0T obed

1320

Glazing - Matal anodizad frame

[=]

Red brick - Various tones

Buft brick - Various tones Curtain Walling - Matal anodizad frame and spandrel

Siate 12| Motal Lowres

Cast stona shopfront - Various colours

14 Metal standing seam - Coppar

Glazed brick stall risar - Various colours

\‘ CITY OF Timber shopiront - Various colours 15 | GRC -various tonas

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

Brick - Gray / Red - Various tones. Hit and 168 Parorated Plant Scroen
miss as part of flood sirategy




Proposed
Elevations

(Detailed) Zone 4
Coney Street

%

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

o LR
25400

Lovel 04 - Lower,
250

Lovel 03 - Lower__
S

@lomer
13200

|:| Proposed Waterloo Place Bay Study E Proposed Coney Street Bay Study
1:50 1:50

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

E Prosgosed Courtyard Bay Study
ik

Capyrgt:

fon s omicden uress permissian s granied n witing.

o attenion oftrown + Compeany.

‘Wark and malsriss must compy wih he cuTent buldn reguiiions and any
mievant codes of praciis, nd MUs! b8 Bad N CoNKNCEoN Wi the buldng

GOT obed

1710524 Ganeralupcstes to scale, massing s layouts odowng
scussions wih councl

+company

Pt
Coney Street Riverside
Zone 4

rawrg

Proposed Bay Studies - Coney Street, Waterloo

Place and Courtyard

o .
04/11/22 PLANNING

=
1:50
1 2 3 4

Shost s
Al

5

Porurber o o o tpe b dmegrmbsr mvon

20133- BC- Z4- XX- DR- A - 2003

P3




Proposed Elevations

- Riverside

o

CITY OF

COUNCIL

l

This aramtng s he soe

ERI=]
e e

L Ecb=d=
SEEEEE
i

|I| Riverside Context Elevation
1:250

I o R K Key Bhary< Bt
1:1000

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

90T 9bed

jleee
ii!ii

+company

peoject.
Coney Street Masterplan, York

g
Proposed Riverside Elevation

o s

04/11/22 Planning

= S
varies - see drawing At

P e U —
20133- BC- ZZ- XX-DR-A- 1300 P4




Proposed Elevations — Riverside (Extract)

!:.!:,;l' L) W i : : b -
'/ ‘ ‘ T e 'I
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 3 [N R | £
' Il ERR 1

Il !.,‘;"L.l ] '“ m ullﬁaﬂiﬁ“a i) i I
L =EE F5a

| e -~’ |!

0B W WW G

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024 13




Proposed
Elevations
(Detailed)
Zones 2 and 3
Riverside

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Frameless glass balustrade

New anodised metal ?'fg

(bronze) window frame :uﬁ—J:
=

[P — —

28620

19 CS - T Foo
&=
¢ Existing rendar to ba
rotainod and
cearedrefutbished

fa BI-FL o B Lowic2
17.900 17.920

—— New anodised metal
(bronze) window frame, with
bronze sofid panels to lower
panas

4 EELELE
15020

J"
L

|Z| Proposed Riverside Elevation - Callout 2
1:50

|I| Proposed Riverside Elevation - Callout 1

1:50

brick i
loisure unit

-t —

P il ! Hifl
S S

|Z| Proposed Riverside Elevation - Callout 3
1:50

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

Copyriant

T crawing Is he sck Copyrightof rown + COTpany an FUAUCEN n any
fom i foicden e ss parTissian Is raned In wing.

0o notscae
e atienton of trown + compary.

Wark and materils must compy wii e cTent buldng regiions and any
elevant codes of practica, &nd must e ad In conuncion Wi {he buldng

80T abed

Ps 170524  Ganeral upcsts fo scae, massing and syouts odowng
‘scusslons wih counct
P3 081123 PLANNNG ISSUE
2 0 Famoew
P1 041122 PLANNNG ISSUE
EE

brown
+company

e
Coney Street Riverside

Zore 3

==

Proposed Bay Studies - Riverside

o s

04/11/22 PLANNING
= Shost i
1:50 Al

1 2 3 4 5

P
20133 - BC- Z3- XX- DR- A - 2002 P4




Proposed
Elevations —
Waterloo Place

i

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL
l

Key Plan - Elevations
1:500

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

E Rod brick - Various tones

Buff brick - Various tones

[@] s

E Cast stona shopiront - Various colours
Glazed brick stall riser - Various colours
Timber shopiront - Various colours

m Brick - Grey / Red - Various tones. Hit and
miss as part of flood strategy

Glazing - Metal anodized frame

|E| ‘CurtainWaling - Metal anodized frame and spandrel

|E| Motal Lowres

Motal standing seam - Copper

GRC - various tones.

Perforated Plant Scroen

7 Phasa 3 landscaping works are a future

// aspiration and wil not bo doiivered as part of
77 & parving sppicaton uiess i pay s

OWNBrSfip issues ara overcoma
NOTES

Ploase refer to listed buiing elevations for
‘elovation alterations to listed buiidings

T ramtng s he 508 oopyTightof roRn + COTpanY &Ny RAFCALCEDN I any
1o s oicen uness permission Is oraned In witng.

Ganeral upastes to scale, massing s syouts okowng
dscussions wih counct

P mos2e
P2 owizs  Paningisse
P 041122 PLANNING ISSUE
e

brown
+company

Pt
Coney Street Riverside

Zore 4

s

Proposed Waterloo Place Elevation

o s

04/11/22 PLANNING
= Shost s
1:100 A1

4 3 8 10
e e ——————1

Fommbe  aheJiom el pe e cawngrminr  veon
20133- BC- Z4- XX-DR-A- 1302  P3




Proposed
Elevations
(Detailed)
Waterloo Place
and Riverside
Zone 4

5

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

D?%“*"R""'E"’““"“B’C‘;W%f York Council Planning Con@fﬁ%@@%’?@w?ﬂfﬁ October 2024

hit and miss brick dotaling

——— sot back brick parapet datail

E| Proposed Waterloo Place Bay Study
1:50

Capyrgt:

e cramng s e s copyrt o bren corparyany eprochcton
ot s TGS 3 70 W,

o attenion oftrown + Compeany.

‘Wark and materials must compl Wi he Cuent bulding roguiations and any.
relavant codes of praciioe, nd Must ba .ad n Gonkncion wih he buldng.

OTT abed

1710524 Ganeralupcstes to scale, massing s layouts odowng
scussions wih councl

+company

==
Coney Street Riverside

Zone 4

e

Proposed Bay Studies - Riverside and Waterloo
Place

. o
04/11/22  PLANNING

= S
1:50 At

1 2 3 4 5

Porurber o rore o tpe b dmegrumbsr wvon
20133- BC- Z4- XX- DR- A - 2002 P3




Proposed Floor
Plans Level 00

Zone 3

THE RIVER QUSE

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Proposed Level 00
1:200

SH- T
2

Retail Unit 01

E Stknd Commural £
Amenty we
e

121

[Fo

ratail unit 03
saw

refail urit 04
o,

S
~Studdnt aiusa
S

|
LAl
-2 =
- | =
= ks §
- ‘commarcal bin stots
= " . & e
siafbie soraflgy <ERVTS S
e mn el
|
L 7
rotal uni 06
Y
ZONE 04

REFER TO DWG 20133 BC Z4-00 DR-A-1100

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

17

CONEY STREET

Copyright

T draing Is the 5ok copyrigh of rawn + company sy mproducton n any
o i fodicden uriess parmissian Is raniad In wilg,

D0 ot scae frm s crawng, any e peaNses on SIE SNoLSd DB Crought oo
e atienton of crown + Compeny

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT NOTES
For rad ine boundary plaasa refar to xisting proposad sito
plans.

Landscape Information shown illustratively. For al
lanﬂscspn fuiing proposad public reaim refer to Gilispies
Landscaps drawings and design repor

Internal Layouts, reler o typical room layouts

Cyclo Storage Strategy, rafer to cycls storage drawings,
Design and Accass Stabment and Travel Report.

Acovssibility, Falor to Accass Satemard by Jano Sipson
Acoess. Refar to acoessiilty drawings for locations

acoassible and adaptable rooms, and commentary or accmss
throughout the development

Firo Strateqy,

- Al student accommodation to have spriniders complying to
BS 0251202

LDt starar s cctaction an sl st e prviced
sach apart

- (hmmsm\al areas to be provided with L3 fre detaciion and

am syst
SAl mmpqm'mllalm ‘shoud achieva 60 minutss fira
rasistance.

- Dy risers located within staircores.

Retail & Leisure, inlomal fit out by tonnants

Servicas information - Reler to Troup Bywaters + Anders
drawings:

Risars Key:
KE  Kichen Extract ER  Ekotical Riser
SS  Smoko Shaft MR Mechanical Riser

Phasa 3 landscaping works are a fulura aspiration and
7] wainet B o o of et s
72| uniess third party land ownership issuss are overcome

ROOM KEY

o
TTT obed

PS  THOSPA  Ganeral upostss o soms, messing an Eyouts oA
Bscuselons with councl
P4 1324 Opolesiore you amends
B3 08123 PLANNNG SSUE
P2 22 Fomew
P 04122 PLANNING ISSUE
N

brown
+company

it
Coney Street Riverside
Zone 3

.

Proposed Level 00

. .
04/11/22  PLANNING
ks Shost sizm:
1:200 Al

4 8 12 16 20

— e —— —
N@ pourbe Sl oo b e mb dmdgmmtor e

20133 - BC- Z3-00- DR- A - 1100 P5




Proposed Floor
Plans Level 01 —

Zone 3

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

]

THE RIVER OUSE

Proposed Level 01

1:200

17

Ratail Unit 01
T4

ZONE 04

REFER TO DWG 20133 8C Z4-01-DR-A-1101

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

COMNEY STREET

Copyrignt

s draming b h scie copigh oftrown . compsry ary epeoducon i any

fomm s oicken uriess parmissian s i n weilig.

D ot sca o iis crawhg, any dIScapaNcses on Sie SNouG DB Crought oo
2 alienton of rown -+ Gompany.

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT NOTES

For red ine boundary please refar to axisting proposad sita
plans

Information shown illustratively. For

andscape al
landscape, including proposed publc realm refer to Gillspies
Landscaps drawings and design feport

Intornal Layouts, refer to typical room layouts

Cycle

Storage Strategy, refer to cyce siorage drawings,

Dosign and Access Stalsment and Travel Raport.

Accessibility, far to Accass Statment by Jane Simpson
Accass. Raer io accessibility crawings for locations of
‘accassible and adaptabie rooms, and comMentary for accass
throughout the davaiopmant

Fire Strategy,
- All student accommodation to have sprinkers complying to
S 0251-2021

~LD!1 standard fira daclaction and alarm should be providad fo
cach ap

ary

ment
- Commercial areas to be provided with L3 fire detection and
alam

systam

- All comparimentation should achieve 60 minuies fire
rasistanca
- Dry risars located within staircores

Rotall & Laisurs, intaral fit out by tennants

Sarvices Information - Rofor 1o Troup Bywalers + Andors
drawings

Risars Key:
KE  Kitchen Extract ER  Eectrical Riser
S5 Smoke Shaft MR Mechanical Riser

Z

ROOM KEY

[ sweren
[ e

O
O
O
(]
0O
O

Phase 3 landscaping works ara a fuiura aspiration ai
wil not be defivered as part of this planning applicatic
uniess third party land ownership iSSuss are overcon

Studio

1Bad

1Bad - Dual Occupancy

-

21T abe

Studio- Accessible

Student Ancillary

Rotal

Leisue

P4 WS4 Gareralupoetas o o massing and ayouts dowmy
dscussions win counct

PS ONIIZ3  PLANNINGISSUE

B2 OZS Foredw

PI D41IE2  PLANNNGISSUE

e T

brown
+company

s
Coney Street Riverside

Zone 3
s

Proposed Level 01
p .

04/11/22 PLANNING

=
1:200
4 8 12 16

ot
Al

20

[ — ]

ke o b aps ek Gmgastr ossn

20133-BC- Z3-01- DR- A- 1101

P4




Proposed Floor
Plans Level 02

Zone 3

THE RIVER OUSE

\
N CITY OF

YORK .

COUNCIL e

siudio
T

Lhed e
L = T d
studio ~| r stuio
i Ery
we | [
il 3
= e r‘"I [‘1 e
1 = =
T [ ansuio - piss | T
= . 3
] ensuilo p«m_l »-'msll‘tf__uh
~ ensuita
i T
L [ m— PR
ern T 2 ensuita - plus \“ studio < el “
i
=
ingichen gt

0

f

ZONE 04

REFERTO DWG 20{33.8C 24 02 DR-A-1102

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

CONEY STREET

Copyrignt

This rawing s ha scle of brown . company sny rpruducton n any
fomm s oicken riess parissian Is rarded In weling.

Do ot sl o i rawig, sny clscspancies on sl shoud B8 Broughtfoo
ha aheniion of trown « company

et s e

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT NOTES

For red line boundary pleass refer to existing proposed site
plans

Landscape Information shown ilustratively. For al
landscape, inclucing proposed public realm rafer to Gilispies
Landscaps drawings and design report

Internal Layouts, refar to typical room layouts

Cycle Storage Strategy, refer to cych storage drawings,
Dosign and Access Staiment and Travel Report.

Accessibility, Refer lo Access Stalement by Jane Simpson
Access. Rofer to accessibility drawings for locations of
accassible and adaptabie rooms, and commentary for acoess
throughout the development

Fire Strategy,

- All studant accommaodation to hava sprinklars complying to
BS 92512021

- LD1 standard fire dectection and alarm should ba provided to
‘each apartmant

- Commetcial areas to ba providsd with L3 firs detaction and

larm sysiam.
- All comparimentation should achieve 60 minutes fire
rasistance.

- Dry risars located within staircores

Retail & Loisure, intornal it out by tennants

Sarvicas Information - Ralar to Troup Bywaters + Anders

Risars Key:
KE  Kitchen Extract ER  Elecirical Riser
S5 Smoke Shaft R Mechanical Riser

[77] Phase 3 landscaping works are 2 fuure aspiration and
/ will not ba daliverad as part of this planning application
2| uniess third party land ownership issues are overcoma

ROOM KEY

O sweren
[ st o

O s

0 =

D 1 Bed - Dual Occupancy
[ s rcse
O oo
0 ==

O e

cTT obed

Pi OS24 Generslupdses 1o scle, massing s lsyous fodowing
lecusslons with councd
P3 OBIUZ  PLANNNGISSUE
P2 aioEm  Ferew
Bi 412 PLANNNGISSUE
e

brown
+company

s
Coney Street Riverside

Zone 3

ey

Proposed Level 02

e can

o4/11/22 PLANNING

= S
1:100 A1

2 4 ] 8 10

e e e e ——
N @ fomnie ahodmn  bd e b dmigamor

20133- BC- Z3-02- DR-A- 1102 P4




Proposed
Floor Plans

Level 03 Zone

3

\
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

THE RIVER OUSE

‘ansuite - it
= 7 nsu Stuso
= W
enstits - p\ls] ensui e =
TP i 5
= B © sk
its - Studio £
.wﬂ-ﬁﬂ 20m
" N ‘ S
ing/kitchen R S E oiped
@ o T =]
-0 i

ZONE 04

REFERTO DWG 20133 BC Z4 08 DR-A-1103

Proposed Level 03

120 City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

CONEY STREET

Copyrignt:

“This drawing I the sole Copyrght of brown « corpary any mpeoduction n any.
fomn s odn uriss parmissian 5 graniad In wiling.

0 ot scae 1T s Crawng, Ay S paNKses on SIE SNoLsd DB Crought oo
2 alienton of ewn + Compary.

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT NOTES
For red fine boundary piaasa refar to axisting proposad sito
plans

Landscape Information shown illustratively. For al
landscaps, incluing proposed pubic reaim rafer to Gillspies
Landscap drawings and design repor.

Internal Layouts, reler to typical room layouts

Cyclo Storage Strategy, refer 1o cyck storage drawings,
Design and Accass Stabment and Travel Report.

Acce Roler to Access Stalemart by Jane Simpsan
Access. Refar to acoassibility drawings for locations of
accassible and adaptabla rooms, and commentary for acoass
throughout the development

Fire Strategy,

- All studant accommodation to hava sprinklars complying to
BS 0051

- LD1 standard fire dectection and alam should be provided to
‘each apartme:

- Commercial areas to be providsd with L3 fire detaction and
alarm sysiam

- All comparimantation shoukd achieve 60 minules fira
resistanca.

- Dry risars located within staircores.

Fetail & Leisure, intamal il out by tennants

Services Information : Rafer to Troup Bywaters + Andars
drawings:

Risers Kay:

KE  Kitchan Extract ER
S5 Smoks Shaft MR Mechanical Risar

V Phasa 3 landscaping works are a futura aspiration al
// will not ba delivered as part of his planning appicatic
|

unless third party land ownership issues are avercon

ROOM KEY

D Ensuite Room
D Cluster Room
0 s
0 =

yTT obe

B4 {70524 Gensralupcsies o scale, massing anc eyouts odowing
dscusslons wihcoundl

P3 0123 PLANNING SSUE

P2 m2  Foreew

B1 D412 PLANNNG SSUE

E=

brown
+company

Coney Street Riverside
Zone 3

e

Proposed Level 03

e ot

04/11/22 PLANNING

== ot

1:100 Al

20133 - BC- Z3-03- DR-A- 1103 P4

—y— —— — ——
N @ pommber @Mamow o o mh dmigamior o




Proposed Floor
Plans Level 04

Zone 3

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

]

THE RIVER OUSE

Proposed Level 04

1:200

ZONE 04

REFER.TO DWG/20133 BC-74-04-DR-A-1104

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

CONEY STREET

Copyrigit:

This rawing s the scls capyightof brown + company any mproduction i any.
o Is fosicken uriess pe issin s i n wling

Do
8 atention o beown « company

ana muste

GEMERAL ARRANGEMENT NOTES

For red line boundary pleas refer to existing proposed site
plans

Landscaps Information shown illustratively. For al
landscape, including p public reaim rofer to Gillspies
Landscape drawings and design roport.

Internal Layouts, refer 10 typical room layouts

Cycle Storage Strategy, refor to cycks storaga drawings,
Design and Access Staiement and Travel Report.

Accessibility, Rater to Access Statemant by Jans Simpson
Accass. Paler to accassibilty drawings for locations of
accessible and adapiable rooms, and commentary for accass
throughout the development

Fire Strategy,

- All student accommadation to have sprinklars. compiying to
B 02512021

- LD1 standard fire dectection and alarm should be provided to
each aparimant

- Commercial arsas ta be provided with L3 fira datection and
alarm system.

- All comparimertation should achieve B0 minutes fire
resistance.

- Dry risars located within staircoros

Fotail & Leisure, iniaral it out by tenants

Services Information - Refor to Troup Eywalars + Andars
o

Risers Key:
KE  Kiichen Extract ER  Eecical Risor
ss ‘Smoka Shaft R Mechanical Risar

7 Phase 3 landscaping works aro a fuure aspiration and
é ‘will not be deliverad as part of this planning application
72| uniess third party land ownership issuss are overcoms

ROOM KEY

D Ensuite Room

D Cluster Room

[ swe

D 1Bed

D 1Bed - Dual Occupancy
D Studio- Accessible
D Studsnt Ancillary
D Petai

O s

GTT obed

Pi 0524 Genarslupcates i scak, massing snd lsyous lowing
lecusslons wih councl

P3 0BUZ3  PLANNNG SSUE

P wwzm Faeew

P 04122 PLANNNG ISSUE

EE

brown
+company

=

Coney Street Riverside
Zore 3

mng:

Proposed Level 04

e o
04/11/22 PLANNING

= e
1:100 Al

4 6 a8 10

2
— e — — —

2zt
N@ Phrurher  aabor sme kel o b Gmngeester  ovon

20133- BC- Z3- 04- DR- A- 1104 P4




Proposed Floor
Plans Level 05

Zone 3

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

[]

THE RIVER OUSE

Proposed Level 05
1:200

ZONE 04

REFERTO DWG 20{33.8C 24-05.DR-A-1105.

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

CONEY STREET

Goprignt

‘TN rwtng s he 50 CopyMN o BTN . COMpany &y EpLOUCEON 0 any
10 IS oicen Ul ss persin |5 B In WG,

D0 not scal from tis crawhg, any discapancies on sfs shoud s braught oo
#0 afenkon of beown « compeny

e muet e

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT NOTES

For red line boundary please refer lo exisiing proposed site
plans

Landscaps Information shown illustratively. For al
landscape, including proposed public reaim refer to Gillspies
Landscape drawings and design report.

Internal Layouts, rafer 1o typical room layouts

Cycle

Strategy, refor fo cyck storage drawings,
port.

Storage
Dosign and Accass Stalment and Traval ey

Accessibility, Refer to Access Statement by Jane Simpson

Access.

Pofer 1o accassibilty drawings for locations of

accassible and adaptabla rooms, and commentary for accass
throughout the dvelopment

Fire Strategy,
- All studant accommadation to have sprinkiers complying to

BS 0%

512021

-LD1 standard firs dactection and alarm should b provided to

aach

artmt

apartmant
- Commercial areas to be provided with L3 fira detection and

iarm .
- All compartme rtation shoukd achieve 60 minuses fira
rasistance.

- Dry risars located within staircores.

Rotall & Laisura, intemal fit out by tannants

Services Information : Refer 1o Troup Bywalers + Andars
drawings.

Risers Kay:
KE  Kitchen Extract ER  Bactrical Risar
S5  Smoke Shait MR Mechanical Risar

]

ROOM KEY

D Ensute Foom
D Custor Room
s

O
O
O
O
O
O

Phase 3 landscaping works are a fuura aspiration ai
wil not be dolivered as parl of tis planning applicali -U
uniess third party land ownership issugs ara ovarcon

91T abe

18ed

1 Bad - Dual Occupancy

‘Studio- Accessitle

Studont Ancillary

Petal

Leisira

Be 0574 Gereralupcses o scale, masing and lpouts foowing
dacussions wih counch

P3 0G123  PLANMNG SSUE

P ez Fareew

Fi 0#iizz  PLANNNG SSUE

=

brown
+company

=
Coney Street Riverside
Zore 3

g

Proposed Level 05

04/11/22 PLANNING

= e
1:100 Al

2 4 8 8 10
— e e e ——
N ———
20133- BC- Z3- 05- DR-A- 1105 P4




Proposed Roof
Plan Zone 3

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

THE RIVER OUSE

Proposed Roof Plan

1:200

CONEY STREET

ZONE 04

REFER TO DWG 20133 BC-Z4-06-DR-A-1106

Copyight-

o e Todicden urimss parrision i granied in weiing

the stenion of beown - company

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT NOTES
For red line boundary please refer to existing proposed site
plans.

Lands cape Information shown illustratively. For i
landscape, including proposed public resim refer o Gillspies
Landscaps drawings and design feport

Internal Layouts, refer to typical room layouts

Strategy, refer
Design and Access Statement and Travel Report.

Accessibility, Refer to Access Statement by Jane Simpsan
Access. Refer to accassibillty drawings for locations of
acoassible and adsptabls rooms, and commentary for acoess
throughout the development

Fire Strategy,
- All student aceommadation to have sprinklars complying to
BS 92512021

- LD standard fire dectaction and alarm should ba provided to
&ach spartment

- Commercial areas to b provided with L3 firs detaction and
slarm syste

- All compartmentstion shouid achisve 60 minutes fire
resistance.

- Dry risers located within staircores

Ratail & Leisure, intarnal it out by tennarts

Sarvicss Information : Refer io Troup Bywaters + Anders
drawings:

Risars Key:
KE  Kichen Exiract ER  Electrical Riser
S5 Smoks Shaft R Machanical Riser

[777] Phasa 3 tanscaging works sre = fure sspiration st
| witncbe seivered as purt o tis plarring spplation
] unless third party land ownerstip Issues are overcoma

/TT obed

P4 TNSR4  Ganerslupdatesto scals, maming and layouts fllving
dcumsions wih cunci

PS OBUES  PLANNINGISSUE

P2 0ZS  Foreview

Pl OUIZ2  PLANNINGISSUE

a1

brown
+company

o
Coney Street Riverside
Zone 3

=
Proposed Roof Plan

0411722 PLANNING

-
1:100 Al

P A e  ———

20133-BC- Z3- 06- DR- A- 1106 P4




Proposed Floor
Plan Level 00 —
Zone 4

\
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Proposed Level 00
1:200

THE RIVER OUSE

A0
mnm20'13"'3("1;\%%’A
refer o
o coninuate”
Studont Bke Store
I % (30)
z o~ g K= )“l 1
Leisura Unit 05 - BOH
oo s
. \
e
rae o,y L
Lt
11
o - -
Unit 04 - BOH Sk Bio Som
T \
Laisura Unit 04 ; E |lllm‘
= 4 I !
s &
=
- i~
- ‘Student Gommunal Be Pt
T mmercial Bin'Si it
L Staff Bia Stora
o - (26) B
I Pt

vt

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

Copyrignt

“This rawing s e sols copyght of brown + corpary any mpeoducion n any.
fom s lodbicen uness parmissian s i n wling

Dot sca
2 alianion of rown -+ GompETy

'GENERAL ARRANGEMENT NOTES
For red ina boundary pleasa rafer to axisting proposad sita
plans

Landscape Information shown llustratively. For &l
landscaps, including proposad pubic rsalm refar to Gilispies
Landscape drawings and design raport

Internal Layouts, rafer 1o typical room layouts

Cycle Storage Stratagy, refer to cyce siorage drawings,
Dasign and Accass Statament and Travel Raport

Accessibility, FEfar to Accass Stalemant by Jana Simpson
Accass. Fafar 10 accassiility drawings for locatons of
acoesshle and adaplable rooms, and commertary for accass
thoughout the development

Fire Strawgy,

- All student accommadation to have sprinklars complying 1o
BS 02512021

- LD1 standard fire dectection and alarm should be provided to
‘@ach apart

- Commarcial arsas to b providad with L3 fire datection and
alam sysiem

- All comparimentation should achieve 60 minues fire
resistancs.

- Dry risars located within staircores.

Retail & Leisure, infernal ft out by tennants

‘Services Information : Refer to Troup Bywaters + Anders
arawings:

Risers Key:
KE  Kilchen Extract ER  Ekclrical Aiser
S8 Smoka Shaft MR Mechanical Riser

/ Phasa 3 landscaping works are a futura
/ ‘aspiration and will not be deliverad as part of
7 this planning application uniess third party lan
ownarship sues are overcoma

ROOM KEY

D Ensuiie Room
D Cluster Room
D Studio

D 18ed

D 18ad Dual
D Studant Ancilary
D Retail

D Leisure

D Studio - Ambuiant
D Ensuito - Ambulant
D Studio - Accassble

12I06/24 Ganeral upcsles foscale, massing se ayouts odowig
acuzslons wih councl

TI0R4  Cyos soalayouts atersa
omivzE  Paing s

3332 7

v
4112 PLANNING ISSUE
T

brown
+company

e
Coney Street Riverside
Zone 4

aranrg

Proposed Level 00

e e

1411022 PLANNING

= St

1:200 Al
4 8 12 16 20

—p e — —

ke G (b ops  wh Gmingastr son
20133- BC- Z4- 00- DR- A- 1100 P5




Proposed Floor
Plan Level 01 —

Zone 4

\
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

D Proposed Level 01
1:200

o a0 ZaORA

otes to dranig 201
for

THE RIVER OUSE

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

Copyrignt

“This rawing s e scls copyvightof rown + corpany any mproducton n any

fom i lodbcen uiess pe ission Is raried in wefing.

Do ot scale T tis cawig, sny dlscrparcias on sl shoud Be broughtfo
brow « company.

tho afintion of

et s b

'GENERAL ARRANGEMENT NOTES
For rad ina boundary plaase refar to axisting proposad sit
plans

Landscape Information shown illustratively. For al
Iandscaps, incluing proposad public faaim rafer to Gillspies
Landscape drawings and design raport

Internal Layouts, rsfer o typical room layouts

Cycle Storage Stratagy, refer {0 cyce storage drawings,
Dasign and Accass Statment and Travel Raport.

Accessibility, Peler to Access Staement by Jane Simpson
Accass. Pafar 1o accassiilty drawings for locasons of
acoessiblo and adaplable rooms, and commentary for access
throughout the developmant

Fire Strawgy,

- Al student accommodation 1o have spririders complying o
BS 02512021,

- LD1 standard firs dactaction and alarm should bs provided to
‘aach apartment

- Commercial areas o ba provided with L3 fire dataction and
alam sysiem.

- Al compartmentation should achiev e 60 minutes fire
resistance.

- Dry risars located within staircores.

Retail & Leisure, inforal fit out by tannanis

Services Information : Refer to Troup Bywaters + Anders
drawings:

Risars Key:
KE  Kilchen Exiract ER  Ekctrical Risor
S5 Smoka Shaft MR Machanical Risar
7 Phase 3 landscaping works are a future
Z aspiration and will nat be dalvared as part of
2 his cation unless third party land

ownership issuss are overcome
ROOM KEY

D Ensuie Room
D Cluster oom
0 s

D 18ed

D 182d Dual
D Studant Ancilary
D Fetal

[ e

D Stuio - Ambuiant
D Ensuite - Ambulart
D Stuio - Accessibie

6TT obed

Om1vzs  Paming ks
w0z Forrevew
04112 PLANNNGISSUE

HEEERE]

170624 Gaerslpises 1 scale, massing s lyous foowing
lecusslons with councd.

T

brown
+company

e
Coney Street Riverside

Zone 4

aranrg

Proposed Level 01

e e

04/11/22 PLANNING

==
1:200
4 8 12 16

ot b roe ond e ke ooy e
20133- BG- Z4- 01- DR-A- 1101




Proposed Floor
Plans Level 02

Zone 4

CITY OF

YORK .

COUNCIL

THE RIVER OUSE

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

Copygp:

TS draaing IS he 50 CopyMN of AW . COMaNy &y BpFoCUCHoN n any.
0 I opicsen une 55 parmIESon I FanEd In wing.

Do
1 afanton of brown < compeny

it must e
s

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT NOTES
For red line boundary please refer fo exisiing proposed site
plans

Landscape Information shown illustratively. For all
Iandscapa, inciuding proposed pubic raaim rafar to Gillispies
Landscape drawings and design raport

Intsrnal Layouts, raler io typical room layouts

Stratagy, refer o cyc storage drawings,

Cycle Storage
Design and Acoass Staismant and Travel Raport.

Accessibility, Fefer to Acoess Stalement by Jano Simpsan
‘Accass. Pefer to acoassiilty drawings for locabons of

sbla and adaptable 100MS, and commantary for accass

a apt
throughout the development

Fire Strategy,

- All studant accommodation to have sprinklars complying to
BS 92512021

- LD1 standard fire dectection and alam shouid ba provided o
each apartment

- Commercial araas 1o bs providsd with L3 firs etaction and

systam
- All compartmentafion should achieve 60 minues fre
rosistanca

- Dry risars located witin staircoras.

Retail & Laisurs, intomai fit out by tannants

Sarvices Information - Ratar to Troup Bywatars + Andars

drawings:
Risars Kay:
KE  Kitchen Extract ER  Eklrical Aisar
S8 Smoka Shaft MR Mechanical Risar
7 Phase 3 landscaping works are a future
/ ‘aspiration and will not be delivered as part of
this planning application uniess third party lan

ROOM KEY

[ e e
[ o rom
O s

ownrship suss are overcoma

02T obed

70524 Ganeral upotes 1o scals, massing D Yo FaDwTg.
Bscissions win councl
a1z Panng an

v
041122 PLANNING ISSUE
=

brown
+company

et
Coney Street Riverside
Zone 4

g

Proposed Level 02

P e

04/11/22 PLANNING

o Srocsi
1:200 Al
8 12 16 20

[TYTR A © N ———
20133 - BC- Z4- 02- DR- A- 1102 P4




Proposed Floor
Plan Level 04

Zone 4

CITY OF

YORK .

COUNCIL

THE RIVER OUSE

on
on oA
g 20ip 007 00T e
e To O

studioamb -

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

Copyrigt:

TN draing I the 50 CopyIght of LA . COMany &y RpFOCUCHON n any.
10 1 oicsen s perSion IS Faed In wHing.

Do
0 afanton of brown = compey

i must e

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT NOTES
For red ine boundary please refer to existing proposed site
pians

Landscape Information shown illustratively. For all
landscape, including proposed public reaim refer to Gilispies
Landscape drawings and design rport.

Intornal Layouts, refer to typical room layouts

Cycle Storage Strategy, refer 1o cych storaga drawings,
Dasign and Acoess Staismant and Travel Raport.

Aecessibility, Rafer 10 Accass Stalemant by Jane Simpson
Acosss. Aefar 10 accasslty drawings for locasons of
accessible and adapiable rooms, and commertary for acoess
throughout the development

Fire Strateqy,

- Allsiudent accommodation to have sprinklers complying to
B 92512021

- LD1 standard fira dactection and alarm shouid be provided to
‘each apariment

- Commercial araas to be provided with L3 fire detection and
alam system.

- All compartmentation should achieve 60 minutes firs
resistance.

- Dry risers located within staircores.

Retail & Laisure, iniamal ft out by tennants

Services Information : Refer to Troup Bywaters + Andars
drawings:

Risers Kay:

KE  Kithen Extract ER  Elctrical Risar

S5 Smoke Shaft MR Machanical Riser

7 Phase 3 landscaping works are a future
7 ‘aspiration andwil ot be delvarad as part of
2 this planring application unless trird party land
‘OWNBrship SSU8s are Ovarcoma

ROOM KEY

D Ensuile Room
D Giuster Room

T2T obed

P4 {70524 Gensral updses o scale, massing and lyouls fllwing
ascussions win councl
P omnizs  PEng s
P 023 Forreew
P D412 PLANNING SSUE
e

brown
+company

Pt
Coney Street Riverside
Zone 4

.

Proposed Level 04

e s

04/11/22 PLANNING

= Socsi
1:200 Al
4 8 12 16 20

[T e—— ok e et van
N o

20133- BC- Z4- 04- DR- A- 1104 P4




Proposed Floor

Plan Level 05
Zone 4

\
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

won
e m.’:‘ﬂpﬂw
anaving 2013380 T30 o

rels 10 0

o
i aw
o
- onsuite
= stgio ami}, Sk
shudio § o
- studio )y “zame
o § 20 ik
¢ studio § " =
studio ) Studio §, = -,
EL 5
studio N ~
Y - A ¢ s
P % = .
THE RIVER OUSE I Ny % - Booassi
I g studio

- £

o e | 580

= studio f} "o

Studio | studio ystudio | =
EE W T e

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

Copyrigit

This raming s the scls copyrigh of rawn + company sy mproducton n any.
fomm I fosicden uriess perrsion s ranied In el

D0 Nt Sca 1T 1 (1. ANy GSCRPENCIES on s1k SO D2 DU 10
8 atention of beow” + COmpERy

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT NOTES

For rad line boundary pieass refar to axisting proposed sita
plans

Landscape Information shown illustratively. For al
landscape, including proposed public raaim refer to Gilispies
Landscape drawings and design raport

Intornal Layouts, refor 1o typical room layouts

Cycle Storage Strategy, refer 1o cyck storage drawings,
Dasign and Accass Statment and Travel Raport.

Aecossibility, Fefor to Accoss Staloment by Jane Simpson
Acoass. Refer o acosssiily drawings for locations of
‘acoassiie and adaptable r00ms, and commantary for access
throughout the developmant

Firo Stratogy,

- Al studert accommedation to have sprirklers comalying fo
BS 6251:2021

- LD standard fra dacieciion and alarm should be providad to
each apartment

- Commorcial areas to be provided with L3 fire detection and
alam systom

- All compartmentation should achicve B0 minues fire
resistance.

- Dry risars located withn staircores.

Retail & Leisure, inlarnal fit out by fennants

Services Information : Refer to Troup Bywaters + Anders
arawings:

Risars Key:
KE  Kithan Extract ER  Emctrical Risar
S5 Smoks Shaft MR Mechanical Risar

/ Phase 3 landscaping works are a future
7 aspiration and will ot ba daivared as part of
2 ihis ication unless third party lan
ownership issues are overcome
ROOM KEY

D Ensuite Room
D Cluster Aoom
0 s«

D 1Bed

D 1Bad Duai

D Studsrt Ancilary
D Petai

[ sem

D Studio - Ambulant
D Ensuite - Ambulant
D Studio - Accassile

2cT obe

P4 OS24 Ganeral upcstes to soms, maseing e DU RADWT
dscussions wih counct
B3 0 Plawing e
R wem  Fooew
Pl 04122 PLANNING ISSUE
e

brown
+company

=
Coney Street Riverside
Zore 4

arming

Proposed Level 05

o .

04/11/22 PLANNING

= prvp
1:200 Al
12 16 20

ot Gt Jaore el e wh dmingrutnr ko
20133 - BG- Z4- 05- DR- A- 1105 P4




Proposed
Roof Plan
Zone 4

\
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

THE RIVER OUSE

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

Copygp:

T draing Is the 50k copyright of rawn + cormpany sy mproducton n any.
1o b fobicden uriess perrsion s ranied In il

Do ot sca
e alenton of crowT + COmpERy

GENERAL ABRANGEMENT NOTES
For red ine boundary pleasa rafer to existing proposed site
plans

Landscape Information shown illustratively. For al
landcapt, incuing proposed pbi aam o o Gillspas
Landscape drawings and design report.

Intsrnal Layouts, raler io typical room layoues

Cycle Storage Strategy, refer fo cyce storage drawings,
Design and Acoess Staisment and Travel Reporl.

Acosssibtey, Fefr o Acoss Siamant by Jana Simpeon
Acoass. Pete o socasaity crawings forlocatons
‘accassble and adaptable rooms, and mmmnrlalym access
throughout the development

Fire Strategy,
- All studeni accommodation to have sprirklars complying fo
BS 9251:2021

- LD standard fra dactaction and alar shoud ba provided 1o
‘oach apartme:
- Commercial areas fo be provided with L3 fire detection and
alarm systam.
Al Gompartmeriation shoud achiove 60 minues ira
resistanca.

- Dy isars locatod within staircoras.

Retail & Laisure, intorma flt out by tennants

Services Information : Refer to Troup Bywaters + Andars
rawings:

Risars Kay.
KE  Kitchen Extract ER  Ekcliical Risor
S8 Smoka Shaft MR Mecharical Risar

7 Phase 3 landscaping works are a fulure
/ l!ﬂlamwwilrmbndei/eredlspinni
Z this planning appiication uriess third party land
ownarship issues ara overcome

c¢T obed

70524 Ganeralupcss to soms, maseing e DU RADWTY
‘scuslons wih councl
2012 Farrew

041122 PLANNING ISSUE
.

brown
+company

Pt
B3 08123 Plawinglsse
2
5]

et
Coney Street Riverside
Zone 4

fr—

Proposed Roof Plan

e ot

04/11/22 PLANNING

= St
1:100 Al
2 4 6 8 10

20133 - BC- Z4- 07 - DR- A - 1107 P4

— N e — —
N @ pourbe fMeTmw bl e mb dmgmmtor e




Copyrght

T drang s o < oyttt of Lo corpery ary sprcccton o any
10T IS A e PR TSSIn 15 G WL,

2 e o o« sy

Typical Room

e
L ,
E:] Plaase rsfer 1o General Arangament for location of
typical rooms. Accessibity drawings indicate
s :U Iocations of accassib and adaptabl oM.
5 ] Booms indated are ypical. varal oom
dimension may vary throughout.
% < s g g g
a B a d Fumiture Key
. 1 g g % < * g g
g 1 SrdoBad
2| £ E = H 2 Small Doule Bad
E
F [ | 3 DoueBad
= - 9% ~ 4 Wardobe
- o 5 Dask & high level shelving
= s = E 2 Desk
‘ - B &
= ‘\: 6 Sofa
Fi 0 B w Q ©] 7 Kiichanetia
o 6% J———g il T 8 Kichan
f 1 9 Tabe
et et = = 10.  Lightweight room divider
. . 1200 N 1200 N 20
2500 Vries 2800 - 3500 om0 000 4000
Typical Ensuite Bedroom Typical Cluster Room Typical Studio Typical 1 Bedroom Studio Typical 1 Bedroom - Dual Occupancy QJ
125-15sqm 18- 28sqm 20 sqm 21-25sqm 28+ sqm (Q
g &
i g
8 8
P2 e Pumegsas ™o
ST
s S

brown
g +company

it
Coney Street Riverside
Coney Street, York

CITY OF -

5650

Typical Rooms
Example Ambulant Studio Example Ambulant En-suite Example Accessible Studio Example Adaptable Room to form Accessible Studio
21 sqm 26 sqm 40 sqm
2124 sgm
e -
-+ A walmouned sackets el locaiad betusen - Anwanmoumes sooiis el osaton teween Compinaton o wa stidaroams 10 crosie an s
+ Alwalimounsd socistatc located bssen 480 s 1000men s FFL Swiches,outts 300 and 1000mm above FFL Safres, cutets o0 TG co S SEreon .y o yest s ot 04/11/22  PLANNING
00 ang 1000mm aoove FFL Swicres, cuie’s 23 et s M 3 are oreol prvisions 25 pr ADH 4.3 ‘Scoassiinly ncecs whererequitd
200 GOrHD| EOVISoN 36 par ADM 4.3, . 2 betwean 800 st - Handds o widowlocand betwean 80D and =
- Hamde b wioloceles teween 506 ang oo e o {000en sbove FPL. +© Alwakmoued socksts sk ocaiad bebween e
1000 alove FFL Nmm.mmmm.,wnmm + Monihade cant chansc'o sut el 400 and 1000 v PP Swikre, cuals 150 A1
-+ Nonmeoba can be crengea o sul inavioua mqie, 200 GOl EOVISIons 25 7 ADM 4.3
e sion o

COUNCIL = — City of Yorkmfmanmng Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024 =&w"="""" — e ——

Phrurber  miber cme kel e wh cmengester  meson

20-133 BC- ZZ- XX-DR- A- 7000 P2




Matural Stone Paving

Proposed =
Landscaping CR
General _

Arrangement and
Materials Key

Perforated Metal Canilever Deck

Matural Stone Steps and Handrais

Matural Stone Tactile Paving

Swone Edge

Saaine Wall

Meial Balusirade

Timber Seating

Raised Planter with Crnamental
Planting

[ Cmamenial Flaning

Formal Hedge

Proposed Tree

Proposed Kulti-Stem Tree

Waler Feature:

Sewer and Easement Zone

!
\ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 24th October 2024

Hokes. P —

) Corey Street P20557-00-001-GIL-0000 l .

B — Zones = = HELE-EY
Hr—— s = J GROUP

e - s GILLESPII§§

GeT obed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 127 Agenda Item 5b
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 24 October 2024 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel
Reference: 22/02526/LBC

Application at: Site Of 19 To 33 Coney Street York

For: Internal and external alterations associated with the

redevelopment of 19 to 33 Coney Street and 39 Coney Street to
2 Spurriergate (involving conversion and new build elements)
following full and partial demolition of buildings

By: Helmsley Securities Limited
Application Type: Listed Building Consent
Target Date: 29 September 2023

Recommendation: Approve after referral to Secretary of State

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 This application relates 19-33 Coney Street and 39-43 Coney Street / 2
Spurriergate which occupy plots between Coney Street and the river Ouse.

1.2 The scheme is split into zones; 2, 3 and 4. Zone 3 and zone 4 contain the
following listed buildings —

23, 25, 27 Coney Street Grade Il listed (zone 3)
33 Coney Street Grade Il listed (zone 3)
39-41 Coney Street Grade Il listed (zone 4)

1.3 The scheme includes demolition of later 20th Century structures to each of the
listed buildings. Demolished structures would be replaced by buildings ranging from
3-6 storey in height.

1.4 Within the retained frontage buildings ground floor uses would remain
commercial (use class E), or there would be provision of access to the student
accommodation proposed for the upper floors. The upper floors would be used as
student accommodation; they are currently ancillary to the ground floor commercial
uses. There are external works proposed, including alterations to shop fronts and
internal works to accommodate the proposed uses.

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/LBC Item No: 5b



Page 128

1.5 The scheme has been revised since submission. A key change in respect of
the listed buildings was a change to internal layouts. The plot width of the historic
buildings is now preserved and legible in the layout.

1.6 There is a companion application for full planning permission —
22/02525/FULM.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

Legislation

2.1 Section 16 of the of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
Act 1990 advises that in considering whether to grant listed building consent for any
works the local planning authority shall have special regard to the desirability of
preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest which it possesses.

2.2 The site is within a designated conservation area (Central Historic Core). The
Council has a statutory duty (under section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990) to consider the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of designated conservation areas.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

2.3 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the government’s
planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. The NPPF
Is supplemented by national planning practice guidance (NPPG). Section 16
contains policies in respect of conserving and enhancing the historic environment.

Draft Local Plan 2018 (DLP 2018)

2.4 The plan contains policies in respect of listed buildings and conservation areas
— D4: Listed Buildings and D5: Conservation Areas. The policies are consistent with
the NPPF.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

Design & Conservation

3.1 Officers advised they applaud the consideration given to individual listed
buildings and the endeavour to limit the heritage impact of the proposal. Whilst the
Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 129

comments from Design & Conservation advise the scheme cannot be supported,
this is because of the new build and the adverse effect on the wider conservation
area — this is a matter that is assessed in the companion full planning application.

3.2 The most recent revisions have further improved the setting and sustainable
use of the listed buildings within the application site. The revised drawings show
retention of front windows to retained buildings (it was initially proposed to replace
some with windows of different dimensions).

3.3 The issues officers asked to be covered through conditions are —

- Roof spaces have not been inspected but upgrading for insulation is required to
accommodate the scheme. A method statement is required.

- A building recording to document existing features.

- Windows — proposals for repairs and secondary glazing.

- Repairs — samples for repointing, replacement bricks, new brickwork, render
repairs or new render, any external paint, new roof coverings or replacement
slates or roof tiles, as well as new paving or similar.

Council for British Archaeology (amenity society)
Object (to superseded scheme).

3.4 The amalgamation of the listed buildings across the upper floors in zones 3
and 4 entails service risers and drainage downpipes proposed to be concealed
within the building envelope of listed buildings. This could lead to damp and water
ingress into historic fabric, hidden from view (officer note — this is not an unusual
approach and any issues would be due to lack of maintenance). Such strategies are
contrary to the conservation of the listed buildings & indicate the inappropriate
nature of this scheme.

3.5 The designed use of up to 400 student lets is dictating an architectural form
that would create an unjustified level of harm which could be reduced by creating a
less intensive mix of residential uses on the upper floors of the listed buildings
specifically, but also across the site. The viability of an alternative, less impactful
future residential use should be established to justify the level of harm to the listed
buildings on Coney Street and the Conservation Area.

3.6 To limit the effects on the significance of this row of listed buildings and
buildings of merit, changes to floor plans should:

- Retain the possibility to read and to experience historic boundary lines.

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 130

- Conjoining listed buildings should be minimised to conserve their significance as
independent plots and future proof versatility into the domestic use of the upper
floors.

Historic England
No objection.

3.7 Broadly welcome the proposed development. Support the principle of the mix
of uses proposed and making the river frontage publicly accessible. An objection
due to the architecture of the new buildings in zone 4 (south extent) has been
withdrawn following revised plans.

3.8 Welcome the sympathetic proposals to renovate the shopfronts along Coney
Street, based on surviving evidence and historic images. This will serve to
strengthen the historic character and appearance of the streetscape.

3.9 No objection to the internal alterations to the Grade Il listed buildings and
buildings of merit. It is clear the upper floors of the historic buildings are in need of
investment and a new use.

Twentieth Century Society (amenity society)
Object.

3.10 Advise that the WHSmith extension building is physically attached to Grade Il
listed 39 and 41 Coney Street. It should be regarded as a non-designated heritage
asset. A more thorough heritage assessment to justify demolition of the 1970’s
addition was requested. The 1970’s building is considered to have architectural
gualities and is sympathetic to its setting; its demolition is objected to.

York Civic Trust
Support.

3.11 Raised initial concerns/objections to the scheme but support the revised
proposals. The accumulation of properties along the street/river by the developer
presents a once-in-a-century opportunity for the city to affect positive change here. It
can reconnect historic association between Coney Street and the river following a
century of disconnection. It can create of a new community in the heart of the city.
The principle of the upper floor levels on Coney Street is supportable as 'above
shop' reuse, especially of listed buildings, believing this is the best way to maintain
historic properties.

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 131

3.12 Zone 4's building height has been lowered and is now approximately the same
height as the parapet of the building it most resembles architecturally, No.2 Low
Ousegate (‘Linley & Simpsons'), which the Trust previously recommended as a
maximum height. It is also now lower than the parapet of No.19 Coney Street.

York Conservation Area Advisory Panel
No objection.

3.13 Welcome the major changes to the proposed development including the
reduction in scale of some of the buildings, the better mix of pitched and flat roofed
buildings and the improved modelling. It was considered that the majority of the
comments & recommendations made at its meeting in December 2023 have been
accommodated.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

York Georgian Society
4.1 Object (to superseded scheme).
- Loss of plan form to listed buildings.

- Form and scale of new development in Zone 4 out of character on riverside
setting and junction between Coney Street and Waterloo Place uncomfortable in
the street scene.

4.2 The objection was received in 2023. Since the comments the scheme has
been revised. The amendments sought to address the concerns raised. In the
listed buildings, the interconnections between buildings have been removed (with
individual staircases in each property), Zone 4 has been reduced in scale and the
architectural treatment of the corner with Coney Street reconsidered.

4.3 No further representations made on the listed building consent application.

5.0 APPRAISAL

Key Issues

5.1 Section 16 of the NPPF advises Local planning authorities should identify and
assess the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 132

proposal (including by development affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking
account of the available evidence and any necessary expertise. They should take
this into account when considering the impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to
avoid or minimise any conflict between the heritage asset’s conservation and any
aspect of the proposal.

5.2 In assessment of potential impact, NPPF section 16 paragraph 205 explains
that when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of
a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s
conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be).
This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total
loss or less than substantial harm to its significance. Any harm to, or loss of, the
significance of a designated heritage asset should require clear and convincing
justification.

Significance

5.3 23 Coney Street - early C19th house, now shop with C20th shopfronts. The
historic domestic plan form remains largely intact on the upper floors. The building
has a large C20th rear extension (which extends behind 25-27) that detracts from
the original plan and plot form. As part of the scheme the C20th rear extension is to
be demolished. The shopfront would be improved through installation of new
stallriser and glazing of appropriate materials and proportions.

5.4 25-27 Coney Street - mid C19th shop with C20 modernisations including
shopfronts. The building is listed for group value with other buildings in Coney
Street. The historic C19th staircase and sub-division of main rooms remain on the
upper floors. As at 23 the building has a large C20th rear extension that spans
across multiple plots and detracts from the original plan and plot form and is to be
demolished as part of the scheme. Sympathetic works to shopfront — glazing,
stallriser and corbel detail proposed.

5.5 33 Coney Street - early C18, C19 re-fronted & altered, C20 altered. The main
building has a long rear extension the full width of the plot (which is to be
demolished) and loss of plan form due to C20th commercial use. Very little historic
fabric has been retained in the building which now has a multi-storey concrete of
steel frame supporting the main elevation and historic roof fragments. The proposals
for a new shopfront and changes to the floor plan on Levels 0-3 do not impact on
historic fabric or significance.

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 133

5.6 39-41 Coney Street - originally 3 houses early C18, late C18 with richer
interiors; modernised in late C20 and 41 a mid-C19 house with C20 shopfront. The
latter is included in the listing for group value as integral part of this important
historic street. These buildings have been merged. The original plan form is
evident on the upper floor of 39. The proposed reinstatement of a rear section to
No. 41 is a beneficial repair the floor plan. Modern shop fronts would be replaced;
the proposals are more appropriate to the building in their traditional proportions,
detailing and materials. The demolition of the mid/late C20th rear section (which
spans across multiple historic plots and extends down to the riverside) is regarded
as not harmful; it reveals the original rear sections of the buildings. There is no
harmful impact on the setting of the buildings; the original plot form is not eroded.

5.7 The (late medieval) industrial heritage of Coney Street, with long narrow plots
and a presence of lanes leading down to the river pre-dates the buildings the subject
of this application which were introduced in the C18th and C19th. In the C18th and
C19th period townhouses, some incorporating shops, were introduced, in some
cases existing houses were re-fronted, concealing older structures behind. Within
the plots leading down to the river, there were a mix of gardens to affluent properties
and commercial and industrial uses. By the C19th the area became increasingly
commercial. On the 1852 map there is evidence of plots combined to create larger
commercial premises. This trend continued through the C20th also influenced by
damage during bombing raids in 1942. The Woolworths (now Boots) store, which it
is proposed to demolish was completed in the 1950’s. The street was the primary
shopping street in the city in the post-war period and again saw plots merged and
premises expanded to provide larger commercial floorplates.

5.8 The significance of the listed buildings lies in remnants of historic plot form,
group value townscape value of the buildings fronting Coney Street, the remaining
plan form and architectural interest in the interiors. Significance has been
substantially eroded by C20th commercial uses and creation of commercial floor
plates spanning across historic plots. All of the listed buildings affected have had
mid/late C20th rear extensions that span across multiple plots and extend down to
the riverside.

Impact on significance

Listed Buildings

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 134

5.9 The scheme has been revised on multiple occasions to address objections in
respect of impact on the historic and architectural significance of the listed buildings
and the conservation area.

- The internal layouts within historic sections of listed buildings has been revised
so the sub-division between buildings and plan form is preserved.

- External elevations have been revised so historic window articulation is
preserved (in certain areas more traditional detailing is restored; secondary
glazing is proposed on the grounds of energy efficiency and noise reduction).
The Coney Street / Waterloo Place elevation has been revised to give it a more
human scale and address issues raised with the articulation at the corner leading
into Waterloo Place.

- Proposed building heights on the riverside have been lowered to acceptable
degree; they respect local building heights in this section of the riverside, they
continue to allow views of the historic townscape of the buildings beyond and the
massing respects the variety found in the townscape within the Central Historic
Core Conservation Area.

5.10 The original plan form on the upper floors of each listed building would be
preserved. At ground floor level plan form has been lost to accommodate
commercial uses; evidence remains on upper floors which have been underused
and neglected in the C20th. Historic plot widths are therefore legible in the listed
buildings fronting Coney Street and in their function. External works respect the
proportions, details and use of materials of the building’s significance; the condition
of the listed buildings is enhanced.

5.11 Whilst the new blocks span across multiple plots, in their riverside articulation
they reference the plot widths of the groups of buildings along Coney Street. There
is therefore no harmful change to the setting in this respect; the entire site along the
riverside is characterised by modern extensions which span across plots and are of
disproportionate scale to the historic frontage buildings.

5.12 A benefit of the scheme is that the later rear additions to listed buildings are
removed. The later additions were introduced to provide enlarged commercial
floorplates and are of unsympathetic scale and span across multiple historic plots.
Following demolition, rear courtyards are then introduced in zone 3 and there is
separation created between the historic buildings fronting Coney Street and the new
build proposed along the riverside. This element of the scheme would better reveal
the historic scale and form of the listed buildings affected.

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 135

5.13 Roofs are expected to require a degree of insulation to accommodate the
proposed student use and be compliant with modern building regulation standards.
These areas are yet to be investigated. A methodology could be approved by way
of condition to ensure these works respect fabric of historic significance.

5.14 The historic domestic sections of listed buildings, fronting onto Coney Street
are preserved by the scheme. No harm to the setting of listed buildings within the
scheme is identified as a consequence of the new build, primarily because the
buildings affected have already had their settings affected by large scale rear
extensions of commercial design. The scheme, to some degree, reverses this
harm, provides relief to historic rear facades and external amenity space is provided
in zone 3 (courtyard access from Coney Street is created through nos.29-31 which
are not listed).

Conservation area

5.15 NPPF para. 203 advises that in determining applications, local planning
authorities should take account of:

a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets
and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local
character and distinctiveness.

5.16 The demolition proposed is not objected to in principle. It removes unlisted
buildings and structures that are either late 20" century and/or functional extensions
of proportions that do not respect the domestic scale of the listed buildings fronting
Coney Street. Itis acknowledged this presents a regeneration opportunity to deliver
an enhanced riverside setting. The assessment is therefore whether the proposed
scheme is overall beneficial or harmful to the Central Historic Core Conservation
Area (its historic and architectural significance) and if there is less than substantial
harm, whether this outweighed by the public benefits of the scheme (whilst giving
great weight to conservation as required by NPPF para.205); this follows the
approach contained in NPPF section 16 in respect conserving and enhancing the
historic environment.

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 136

5.17 The harms to the Conservation Area identified as a consequence of the
scheme are —

Zone 3

- Harm to legibility of historic urban grain because the proposed leisure units
fronting the riverside span across multiple historic plots and are taller than
existing buildings. Legibility is eroded because new buildings are taller and more
dominant thereby reducing views through to the rear elevations of the
original/frontage buildings. The appearance of primary forms facing the street
with lower rear extensions and gardens leading to the river, giving a clear
hierarchy of historic plot width and development is reduced.

- Loss of wider views beyond the riverside buildings due to replacement buildings

being of a higher scale.

5.18 The level of harm is regarded as less than substantial and at the lower end of
the scale. The existing development (which is modern and to be replaced) cuts
across multiple plots. The level of harm to loss of wider views is very low. The
height of the new riverside buildings is varied; between 5 and 3.5 storey in height
and appropriate in the historic townscape (taking into account form and articulation
and referencing historic plot widths). This variation retains a degree of views
beyond these buildings of the townscape beyond. Whilst some loss of views of the
frontage buildings on Coney Street would still occur, this is of rear elevations; not
typically exposed to public views in the historic core.

Zone 4

- The buildings do not restore, but further deviate from historic plan form (Design &
Conservation Officers are now satisfied with the scale and massing of Zone 4).

- The side elevation of 4 Spurriergate would be exposed due to the creation of
Waterloo Place.

5.19 Waterloo Place would be a new street leading down to the river. Its width has
been subject to adverse comments because it does not adhere to the narrow width
of historic snickleways and side streets in this section of the central historic core and
it would expose the side elevation of the neighbouring listed building. The width is
determined by the Yorkshire Water sewer beneath and their easement
requirements. The constraint allows for a public space, opposed to a narrow side
street, which would be a substantial benefit and as revised the proposed building
that would front it has been given a human scale through its architectural treatment.

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 137

The treatment of the corner, that would be viewed from Coney Street, which was
originally subject to adverse comment, has been re-designed and the Council’s
design team is satisfied with the current approach. The creation of this new public
realm is regarded to be beneficial overall. The public benefits clearly outweigh the
harm that would result from exposing the side elevation of Grade Il listed 4
Spurriergate.

5.20 The proposals for zone 4 are also regarded as causing less than substantial
harm, at the lower end of the scale. For both plots when assessing loss, regard
must be given to the scheme as a whole.

Public Benefits

5.21 The public benefits in favour of the scheme are as follows -
Economic

- Competitive economy & support for growth; making the city centre more vibrant
and improving the public realm.

In accordance with the NPPF these benefits attract significant weight.
Social
- Provision of vibrant communities a number and range of homes to meet need.

- Improved design; townscape and provision of public realm creating safe places
and open space.

- Provision of Waterloo Place which would become a new public space, be of
biodiversity value and complement commercial units in the city centre.

Substantial weight.
Environmental

- The significance of listed buildings on Coney Street is enhanced by providing a
new viable use of the upper floors, respecting historic plan form and better
revealing historic rear elevations by the removal of unsympathetic C20
extensions. The scheme in this respect is consistent with advice in NPPF para.
203 which states that in determining applications Local Planning Authorities
should take into account the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the
significance of heritage assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with
their conservation.

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 138

- Improving biodiversity

- Moving to a low carbon economy - aligned with York’s aspiration to be zero
carbon. The buildings will meet policy standards for design and construction and
importantly deliver car free living in the city centre.

Moderate weight.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The principle of the development, in terms of the composition of uses
proposed, accords with the economic and social objectives of the NPPF, in respect
of the economy and supporting vibrant communities and delivering a range of
homes. It is also consistent with DLP 2018 policy SS3 which relates to the city
centre and its role in achieving the economic and social aspiration of the plan. In
applying the NPPF the decision-maker must give significant weight to the economic
benefits of the scheme (paragraph 85) and substantial weight to the delivery of
housing that meets an identified need (paragraph 124). The provision of new public
realm is also a substantial benefit the scheme would deliver.

6.2 When a local planning authority finds that a proposed development would
harm the special architectural or historic interest of a listed building or would harm
the character or appearance of the Conservation Area, the authority must give
considerable importance and weight to the desirability of avoiding such harm to give
effect to its statutory duties under sections 16 and 72 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

6.3 The scheme would not cause harm to the listed buildings the subject of this
application. The scheme would cause less than substantial harm, at the lower end
of the scale, to the character of the Conservation Area. Substantial public benefits
have been identified that clearly outweigh the harm and these are set out in
paragraph 5.21 of this report.

6.5 There are multiple public benefits to the scheme which cumulatively are
substantial; they are economic, social and environmental. These public benefits are
also to the significance of the listed buildings the subject of this application and
include putting them to a use consistent with their conservation, as advocated by
NPPF section 16. The external works improve the significance of the listed
buildings, including by better revealing their historic scale and form and the internal

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 139

works preserve remaining historic plan form and bring the upper floors back into
use. In applying paragraph 196 of the NPPF, which advises that the harm should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, the public benefits of the
scheme overall clearly outweigh the harm and justify approval of the scheme,
notwithstanding the considerable importance and weight attached to this harmful
impact.

6.6 If the Council are minded to approve the application, then referral to the
Secretary of State would be required; due to the objection from a statutory consultee
which is one of the amenity societies, in accordance with the Arrangements for
Handling Heritage Applications - Notification to Historic England and National
Amenity Societies and the Secretary of State (England) Direction 2021.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve subject to referral to the Secretary of State
and the following conditions:

1 TIMEL2  Development start within 3 yrs (LBC/CAC)

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Location plan 0001 P3

Site plan 10000 P4

Phasing plan 1200 P4

Landscape GA P20997-00-001-GIL-0100 revision 11

Typical student room 7000 P2

Site wide Elevations
Coney Street 1301 P4
Riverside 1300 P4

Listed Buildings - Door Types and Schedule 5020 P2

Riverside wall
Zone 3 section 1501 P4
Zone 4 section 1500 P4

Cycle strategy 1200 P3
Cycle stores 1205 P1
Access strategy 1203 P2, 1204 P2, 1206 P1
Refuse strategy 1201 P3

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Zone 2 (19 Coney Street) and Zone 3 (21, 23, 25-27, 29-31, 33 Coney Street)

Floor plans and roof

Level 00
Level 01
Level 02
Level 03
Level 04

1100 P5
1101 P4
1102 P4
1103 P4
1104 P4

Page 140

Level 05 1105P4
Roof 1106 P4

Floor plans showing works to listed buildings
1107 P3
1108 P4
1109 P4
1110 P3
1111 P3
1112 P3

Doors, joinery and ceiling, cornice plans
5002 P1
5003 P1
5004 P1
5012 P1
5013 P2
5014 P2

Elevations

Coney Street elevation 1300 P3

No0.19 Coney Street 1305 P3

No.21 Coney Street 1306 P1, 1307 P3
No.23 Coney Street 1308 P3, 1309 P2
No0.25-27 Coney Street 1310 P3

No0.33 Coney Street Rear 1314 P2

Large scale details 2002 P4, 2004 P3
Internal door types 5020 P2

Zone 4

Proposed demolition
0601 P3
0602 P3
0603 P3

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



0604 P3
0605 P3
0606 P3

Floor plans and roof

Level 00
Level 01
Level 02
Level 03
Level 04
Level 05
Level 06
Roof

1100 P5
1101 P4
1102 P4
1103 P4
1104 P4
1105 P4
1106 P3
1107 P4

Page 141

Floor plans and roof showing works to listed buildings
1108 P4

1109 P4

1110 P4

1111 P4

1112 P4

1113 P4

Listed Buildings - Doors / Joinery Plans
Level 02 5002 P4

Level 03 5003 P3

Level 04 5004 P4

Listed Buildings - Ceiling / Cornice Plans
Level 02 5012 P4

Level 03 5013 P3

Level 04 5014 P4

Elevations

Coney Street 1300 P3

Riverside 1301 P3

Waterloo Place 1302 P3

Courtyard 1303 P3 & 1304 P4

N0.39-41 Coney Street Demolition Elevation (Front) 1306 P2
No0.39-41 Coney Street Proposed Elevation (Front) 1307 P3
No. 39-41 Coney Street Demolition Elevation (Rear) 1309 P2
No. 39-41 Coney Street Proposed Elevation (Rear) 1310 P3

Sections
1500 P3, 1501 P3, 1502 P3, 1503 P3, 1504 P3, 1505 P3, 1506 P3

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 142

Large scale details
2002 P3, 2003 P3, 2004

Proposed Works to YW Infrastructure drawing
202070-BGP-01-00-DR-C-52-01144 rev PO1.

Flood zone/storage drawings
202070-BGP-01-00-DR-C-52-01141 P02
202070-BGP-01-00-DR-C-52-01142 P02
202070-BGP-01-00-DR-C-52-01143 rev P01

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 Interior audit / recording

A programme of archaeological building recording, specifically a photographic
recording of the interior of the listed buildings within the site shall be submitted to
and approved by the local planning authority in writing prior to commencement of
development on the relevant listed building. The programme of recording shall
identify features of significance that are to be retained in-situ (and the extent of
repairs where applicable) and the development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: In accordance with Section 16 of NPPF as the buildings on this site are of
archaeological and historic interest and must be recorded prior to demolition,
alteration or removal of fabric.

4 Schedule of works

Prior to commencement of works on the upper floors of the relevant listed building a
method of works statement, explaining how the works specified below would affect
the significance of the architectural and historic importance of the building shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The works
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

- Roof structure upgrade and installation measures.
- Bathroom pods.

Reason: In the interests of impacts on the significance of listed buildings.
5 Repairs and use of materials

Prior to commencement of works to the relevant listed building a schedule of repairs
and samples for repointing, replacement bricks, new brickwork, render repairs or

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 143

new render, any external paint, new roof coverings or replacement slates or roof
tiles, as well as new paving or similar shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The works shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved details prior to first occupation of the relevant listed building.

Note: Sample materials shall be made available for inspection at the site. Please
make it clear in your approval of details application when the materials will be
available for inspection and where they are located. Samples should be provided of
sufficiently large size to be able to appropriately judge the material (including
joints/fixings where an important part of the visual quality of the material), and to be
provided together where materials are seen together.

Reason: In the interests of the historic and architectural interest of the listed
buildings.

6  Windows

Prior to commencement of works to the upper floors of the relevant listed building a
schedule of repairs and works to windows, including full details of secondary glazing
(shown in context) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved

details prior to first occupation of the relevant listed building.

Reason: In the interests of the historic and architectural interest of the listed
buildings.

7  Shopfronts

Prior to commencement of construction (of the building envelope) of the relevant
listed building large-scale details of the works to shop fronts shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The works shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the historic and architectural interest of the listed
buildings.

8  New partitions
All new partitions shall be scribed around existing historic details.

Reason: In the interests of the significance of the listed buildings.

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 144

Application Reference Number: 22/02526/L.BC Item No: 5b



Page 145

Site of 19 - 33 Coney Street York
22/02526/LBC

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

purriergate

Centre

Scale: 1:920

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Department |Env, Transport & Planning

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Site Location Plan

Date 16 October 2024

SLA Number [Not Set

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 01/08/2024 Planning Committee A second meeting
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 05/09/2024 Planning Committee A
	Minutes


	5a Site of 19 to 33 Coney Street, York [22/02525/FULM]
	Site of 19 to 33 Coney Street, York Site Plan [22/02525/FULM]
	Site of 19 to 33 Coney Street, York Presentation [22/02525/FULM]
	Slide 1: Planning Committee A
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27
	Slide 28
	Slide 29
	Slide 30
	Slide 31


	5b Site of 19 to 33 Coney Street, York [22/02526/LBC]
	Site of 19 to 33 Coney Street, York Site Plan [22/02526/LBC]


